SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Board of Trustees: Joshua Barrow - President, Ida Green - Vice President, Debra Turner - Clerk, Thomas Newmeyer,
Caroline Van Alst
Superintendent: Will McCoy

Sausalito Marin City School District
Agenda for the Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees
Bayside Martin Luther King Jr. Academy
200 Phillips Drive, Marin City, CA 94965

Thursday, November 9, 2017

6:00 p.m. Open Session — Bayside/Martin Luther King Jr. Multi-Purpose Room
1. OPEN SESSION - Call to Order
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE , 2 minutes
3. AGENDA REORGANIZATION/APPROVAL

Are there any requests from the Board to move any agenda item to a different location? 2 minutes
4. BOARD COMMUNICATIONS 10 minutes
5. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 30 minutes

Because the Board has a responsibility to conduct district business in an orderly and efficient way, the following procedures shall
regulate public presentations to the Board. The Board is asking that members of the public wishing to speak fill out a form located on
the counterftable, stating their name and address; the agenda item; and the topic to be discussed.

The Governing Board is prohibited from taking any action on any item raised in this section unless the item is specifically agenized.
Members of the Governing Board may ask a question for clarification, provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual
information, request staff to report back at a subsequent meeting on any matter or take action directing staff to place a matter of
business on a future agenda. Governing Board members may make brief announcements or briefly report on his/her own activities as
they related to school business.

State open meeting laws allow members of the public to lodge public criticism of District policies, procedures, programs, or services.
However, those same laws include specific provisions designed to protect the liberty and reputational interests of public employees by
providing for the non-public hearing of complaints or charges against employees of the District. Under these laws, it is the employee
subject to complaints or charges who is provided the right to choose whether those complaints or charges will be heard in open or
closed session. It is therefore the desire of the Sausalito Marin City School District that complaints against an employee be put in
writing, and that when the Board hears complaints or charges against an employee it do so in closed session unless the employee
requests an open session. Consistent with the law and the opinion of the State Attorney General's Office, please submit any
complaints against an employee in writing, to the administration, in accordance with the district’s complaint procedure. This procedure
is designed to allow the District to address complaints against employees while at the same time respecting their legitimate privacy
rights and expectations.

6. CORRESPONDENCE 5 minutes
6.01 Dr. Shirley Thornton — Rotary Club of Sausalito
6.02 Willow Creek Academy — Proposition 39 Facilities Request

7. DISTRICT REPORTS

7.01 Superintendent 20 minutes
- Update on Corrective Actions Matrix
- Facilities
7.02 Site Leadership — David Finnane 5 minutes
7.03 Willow Creek Academy 5 minutes
8. STANDING BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS
8.01 Willow Creek Academy Oversight (Barrow, Turner) 5 minutes
9. DISCUSSION ITEMS

Entire board packet on www.smcsd.org/School Board/Meeting Agendas and Minutes

1 of 154



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

CONSENT AGENDA ' 5 minutes

10.01  Consider Approval of the 2017-2018 Document Tracking Services Contract, $695 (Renewal)
10.02 Payment of Warrants — Batches 14-17

10.03 Minutes of the October 16 and October 24, 2017 Board Meetings

ACTION ITEMS - ltems Removed from the Consent Agenda: Any item removed 15 minutes
from the Consent Agenda may be discussed and acted upon individually

11.01  Consider Approval of the Revised 2016-2017 Unaudited Actuals, Fund 40 Only
11.02 Sausalito District Teachers Association — Collective Bargaining Negotiations Process

PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS

POLICY DEVELOPMENT 20 minutes
13.01 Board Policy 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities — First Read

13.02 Board Policy 0430 - Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education — First Read

13.03 Administrative Regulations 1312.3 and 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures - First Read
13.04 Board Policy 1330 —~ Use of School Facilities - First Read

13.05 Administrative Regulation 3230 — Federal Grant Funds - First Read

13.06 Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 3311 — Bids - First Read

13.07 Board Policy 3312 — Contracts - First Read

13.08 Board Policy 3470 — Debt Issuance and Management — First Read

FUTURE MEETINGS :
14.01 The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees will be on Thursday, December 14, 2017 in the
Bayside/Martin Luther King School Multi-Purpose Room

FUTURE TOPICS

ADJOURNMENT

Entire board packet on www.smcsd.org/School Board/Meeting Agendas and Minutes

2 of 154



Dear Will,

This is a copy of the letter the staff members of Bayside MLK, Jr. Academy and
Willow Creek Academy will receive along with their checks. This year all entries
were approved.

Dr. Tea

October 27, 2017

Sausalito Marin City School District
200 Phillips Street
Marin City, CA 94965

Thank you for applying for the Rotary Club of Sausalito’s Mini-Grants. Our Rotary
club has long supported the teachers and staff serving the students of the Sausalito
Marin City School District. The club was so impressed with the presentations made
by last year’s recipients. They spoke about the difference the grants made for their
students. Because of the quality of this year’s entries, the club voted to increase the
total amount granted from $2,500.00 to $4,200.00.

Congratulations. You were chosen as one of the awardees this year. We look forward
to your presentation at our Spring Luncheon where you will share with the Rotary
Club of Sausalito the outcome of your project, and whether you reached your stated
goals.

We wish you continued success.

Ricky Adams

resident
Rotary Club Of Sausalito

Enc: Award Check from Rotary

3 of 154



Name School Grade Reviewer#1Reviewer#2 Reviewer#3 Reviewer#4 Reviewer#5 Total Score Ranking

LINDSEY ROBERTS  Willow Creek 6th-8th 35 35 32 30 35 167 1
MARY THOMPSON Bayside/MLK Trans K 35 35 29 32 35 166 2
KELLY BROWNING Willow Creek  2nd 35 32 28 30 35 158 3
JULIE FREDRICK Bayside/MLK  6TH 33 35 27 33 31 159 4
ANNE SISKIN Willow Creek  3rd 35 35 31 33 25 159 5
JENNIFER CARRADE  Willow Creek  4th 35 35 32 31 20 153 6
LAUREN BUNTING Bayside/MLK  Kind. 33 35 25 31 29 153 7
ALISE PEREZ Willow Creek  Kind 35 32 25 31 29 152 8
JENNY SCHMIDT Willow Creek  4th 30 35 32 31 148 148 9
ADRIENNE THOMPSON Willow Creek  4th 30 35 32 31 20 148 10
JENNIFER BANKS Bayside/MLK  1st 23 33 26 30 33 147 11
LOUIS EDNEY Bayside/MLK  3rd 35 35 22 29 26 146 12
HOPE FELDMAN Willow Creek  Kind 35 33 28 31 19 146 13
JARED BACKER Willow Creek  5th 30 31 0 27 28 116 14

4 of 154



Delivery method: By Hand
October 24, 2017

Superintendent Will McCoy
Sausalito Marin City School District
200 Phillips Drive

Marin City, CA 94965

RE: Request for Proposition 39 Facilities for the 2018-19 School Year
Dear Superintendent McCoy:

I am writing on behalf of Willow Creek Academy Charter School (“Charter School”) to request
reasonably equivalent school facilities from the Sausalito Marin City School District School
District (“District”) pursuant to Education Code Section 47614 (i.e., Proposition 39) and Title 5
of the California Code of Regulations (“CCR™) Section 11969.1 through 11969.11, as amended
(“Implementing Regulations”). This request reserves all rights under the Memorandum of
Understanding between the Charter School and the District.

Proposition 39, passed by the voters of California on November 7, 2000, requires school districts
to make available, to each charter school operating within the school district, school facilities
sufficient for each charter school to accommodate all of the charter school’s in-district students in
conditions reasonably equivalent to those in which the students would be accommodated if they
were attending other public schools of the school district. Facilities provided shall be contiguous,
furnished, and equipped, and shall remain the property of the school district. In addition, the
school district must make reasonable efforts to provide the charter school with facilities near to
where the charter school desires to be located. (See Education Code Section 47614(b)).

The Proposition 39 Implementing Regulations, adopted by the State Board of Education (“SBE™)
in 2002, and amended in 2008, require the Charter School to make an annual written request for
facilities. Title 5 CCR Section 11969.9(c)(1) specifies the information that must be included in
the annual facilities request. This request, along with the information submitted herewith, meets
and exceeds the requirements of Education Code Section 47614 and the Implementing
Regulations. As you are aware, Willow Creek Academy was established at an existing public
school site pursuant to Education Code Sections 47605(a)(2), 52055.5, 52055.55, or 52055.650.
Therefore, Willow Creek Academy requests that the District make available the Charter School’s
existing site.

4153307530 . Faxi 4153310622 wwwowillowereekacademy.org
636 Nevada Street, Sausalito, CA 94065

5 of 154



Projected Average Daily Attendance (ADA)

In accordance with Education Code Section 47614(b)(2), the District is required to allocate
school facilities to Willow Creek Academy for the following school year based upon a projection
of average daily classroom attendance provided by the Charter School.

Willow Creek Academy’s Board of Directors has determined that a reasonable projection of the
Charter School’s in-District average daily classroom attendance for the 2017-18 school year is
402.8. The following is a break down of Willow Creek Academy’s projected average daily
attendance (“ADA”™) as required by 5 CCR Section 11969.9(c)(1). The Charter School’s ADA
figures are based on the methodology outlined in the following section.

Please note:
o “Prior year” means the fiscal year prior to the year in which a facilities request is made.
For this request, the prior year is 2016-17.
e “Current year” means the fiscal year in which a facilities request is made. For this
request, the current year is 2017-18.
e “Request year” means the fiscal year for which facilities are being requested. For this
request, the request year is 2018-19.

Table 1: Total ADA

A B C D
Grade l_\ctual Total Projected Total Projected Total Request Year
Level Prior Year (P-2) Current Year

K 4427 37.05 38.80

1 44,27 43.70 41.80

2 44.27 41.80 41.80

3 4426 3895 41.80

4 44.70 50.35 41.80

5 44.60 49.40 4940

6 44.60 44 65 47.50

7 31.83 39.90 47.50

8 31.82 44,63 47.50
Total 374.62 390.45 397.90

6 of 154



Table 2: Total In-District ADA

A B C D
Grade Actual Total Projected Total
Level Projected Total Request Year
K 37.35 37.05
1 37.35 34.20
2 37.35 35.15 41.80
3 37.34 32.30 35.15
4 32.32 38.95 32.30
5 32.22 37.05 38.95
6 32.22 37.05 37.05
7 20.11 29.45 37.05
8 20.10 30.40 29.45
Total 286.36 316.35 323.00
Table 3: Total Classroom ADA
A B C D
(ES‘;? pr_?_______g:x?;;o[ﬁlz Projected Total Current Year | Projected Total Request Year
C1 c2 C3 C1 c2 C3 C1 C2 C3
K 22.14 18.52 18.52 19.40 19.40
1 22.13 22.14 21.85 21.85 20.90 20.90
2 2213 2214 20.90 20.90 2090 20.90
3 22,13 22.14 19.48 19.47 20.90 20.90
4 22.35 2235 16.78 16.78 16.78 20.90 20.90
5 2230 2230 24.70 24,70 24.70 24.70
6 2230 2230 2232 22.33 2375 23.75
7 15.92 1591 19.95 19.95 23.75 23.75
8 15.91 15.91 22.32 2233 23.75 23.75
Total 374.62 390.45 403.60

Fax: 415.331.10622

www.willowe

s

6306 Nevada Street, Sausalito, CA 94065

7 of 154

ckacademv.org




Table 4: Total In-District Classroom ADA

A B C D
(13_:\’2&'3 el Total Projected Total Current Year Projected Total Request Year
C1 Cc2 C3 C1 c2 C3 C1 c2 C3
K 18.68 18.67 17.10 17.10 18.53 18.52
1 18.68 18.67 20.90 20.90 17.10 17.10
2 18.68 18.67 17.56 17.56 20.90 20.90
3 18.68 18.66 16.15 16.15 17.56 17.56
4 16.16 16.16 13.00 13.00 12.95 16.15 16.15
5 16.11 16.11 18.53 18.52 19.47 19.48
6 16.11 16.11 18.53 18.52 18.53 1852
7 10.06 10.05 14.72 14.73 18.53 18.52
8 10.05 10.05 15.20 15.20 14.73 14.72
Total 286.36 316.35 323.00

The following tables represent the projected in-District ADA (from Table 2 above) and in-
District classroom ADA (from Table 4 above) broken down by grade level and the school in the
District the pupils are otherwise eligible to attend. (5 CCR Section 11969.9(c)(2).)

Table 5: In-District ADA Broken Down by Grade Level and District Schools Where Pupils
Would Otherwise Attend:

School K

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

MLK

Bayside | 37.05

34.20

41.80 | 35.15

32.

30

38.95

37.05 | 37.05-| 29.45

Table 6: In-District Classroom ADA Broken Down by Grade Level and District Schools
Where Pupils Would Otherwise Attend:

School K 1 2 3
Bayside MLK]!853 118.52 17.10 ]17,10 20.90 |zo.9o 17.56 ll7,56
4 5 7 8
1615 [1615 1947 1948 [i1853  [is.52 18.53 {1852 14.73 14.72
4153317530 . Fax: 4153311022 . www.owillowereekacademv.org

636 Nevada Street, Sausalito, CA 94665

8 of 154




Methodology Used In Making ADA Projection:

Title 5 CCR Section 11969.9(c)(1)(B) requires the facilities request to include a description of the
methodology for the ADA projections. Willow Creek Academy utilized the following
methodology in calculating the ADA projections:

1. Analyze current residency and enrollment data at each grade level;

2. Compare current data with projections from previous years;

3. Use2016-2017 ADA percentage to estimate 2017-2018 ADA at each grade level.
School Enrollment ADA Claimed Growth Percentage # of Wait Listed
Year at P-2 Change Children
2009-10 177 168.14 NA
2010-11 215 204.82 21% 3
2011-12 250 235.69 16% 12
2012-13 292 278.10 17% 27
2013-14 325 308.90 11% 13
2014-15 358 339.02 9% 5
2015-16 378 354.99 9% 4
2017-18 411 374.62 9% 16

As demonstrated herein, we have analyzed our School’s historical enrollment, and growth trends,
prior ADA figures, and historical wait list numbers in order to arrive at our total projected in-
District classroom ADA figure for the request year. For the 2018-19 school year, the ADA
figures are based on current year ADA projected into the following year with small adjustments
made for anticipated growth based on grade-level caps.

Supporting Documentation

Title 5 CCR Section 11969.9(c)(1)(C) requires the facilities request to include supporting
documentation. The Implementing Regulations state that when a charter school is not yet open
(i.e., not yet providing instruction) or to the extent an operating charter school projects a
substantial increase in in-District ADA, the annual request must include documentation of the
number of in-District students meaningfully interested in attending the Charter School. Please be
advised that because Willow Creek Academy projects a substantial increase in ADA, we have
attached and incorporated herein by reference the following supporting documentation that fully
substantiates the reasonableness of our in-District ADA projections for the 2018-19 school year:

4153307530 . Fax: 41533101622 . www.willowereekacademy.org
636 Nevada Street, Sausalito, CA gag65

9 of 154




A roster of current year students, by name, address, and phone number;

A declaration from the Head of School regarding Willow Creek Academy’s annual ADA,
retention rate, and number of newly received enrollment applications for new students for
the current year;

P-2 ADA forms for prior school years;

4. A copy of our waiting list for the current school year demonstrating the continuing
interest in enrollment in our School.

-

W

As you review Willow Creek Academy’s ADA projections and supporting documentation, please
keep in mind that the Proposition 39 regulations do not specify or require a particular type of
supporting documentation to be used. Schools may submit any type of supporting documentation
that they used to arrive at their ADA projections. This documentation must be “sufficient for the
district to determine the reasonableness of the projection, but ... need not be verifiable for precise
arithmetical accuracy.” (Section 11969.9(c)(1)(C); emphasis added.) The supporting
documentation is intended only to demonstrate reasonableness of Charter School’s request, not
mathematical exactitude. However, should the District desire additional documentation or
information regarding the Charter School’s ADA projections, please contact me as soon as
possible. We remain willing to cooperate with the District to immediately address any questions
or concerns about this request and the supporting documentation.

Operational Calendar:

Title 5 CCR Section 11969.9(c)(1)(D) requires the facilities request to include the Charter
School’s operational calendar. The Charter School’s operational calendar is attached for your
review. The Charter School’s first day of instruction will be on or approximately Wednesday,
August 22, 2018 (pending Willow Creek Academy Board of Directors approval of the 2018-19
calendar), therefore we will need access to the facility on or before Monday, August 6, 2018, in
order to prepare. Please note that Title 5 CCR Section 11969.9(j) requires the District to ensure
that a furnished and equipped facility meeting the requirement of Proposition 39 be made
available to the Charter School no less than ten (10) working days prior to the charter school’s
first day of instruction. In addition, in accordance with Section 11969.5, the space allocated must
be made available for the Charter School’s entire school year regardless of the School District’s
instructional year or class schedule.

Educational Program:

Title 5 CCR Section 11969.9(c)(1)(F) requires the facilities request to provide information
regarding the charter school’s educational program that is relevant to the assignment of
facilities. Willow Creek Academy’s educational program does have unique facilities needs. As
you are aware, key components of the educational program of Willow Creek Academy include
project-based learning that combines language arts, mathematics and history/social studies with

4159311022 www.willowereekacademy.org
ievada Street, Sausalito, CA 04065

10 of 154



environmental education, garden/nutrition/cooking, intensive work in science and a strong
integrated arts program (music, visual arts, dance and theater). In order to effectively provide
these aspects of our educational program, as well as the general classroom organization, the
facility allocated to the Charter School must provide the following:

e 19 classrooms for direct instruction

3 offices for counseling, testing and other purposes (Rooms 14, 15, and 16);

e A minimum of 4 additional rooms that can be used for small group work or special
education small group instruction (Rooms 5, Sa, 5b, and 8);

»  The library (for instruction, research and specialized classroom space)

e A computer lab or flexible growth classroom (Portable A);

* 1 room for specialized Literacy instruction and Literacy Specialist office (Rm. 13)

¢ 1 room Maya Angelou Center for Restorative Justice (Rm. 22)

» I room for Assistant Head of School office (Rm. 23)

e 2 rooms for our After-School program and offices (Portables P-3 and P-4)

° 2 rooms for Art instruction (Visual Arts and Music, Rooms 24 and 17)

* 2 rooms for shared special education classes (SMCSD and MCOE, Rooms 9 and P-35)

¢ The Multi-purpose Room

e Qutdoor garden spaces

WCA'’s educational program and projected ADA growth will require additional classrooms above
the current allocation for 2017-18.

In addition, and in accordance with its charter and its budget, Willow Creek Academy operates
grade levels kindergarten through 8" grade on one contiguous school site. Due to the nature of the
site, it is critical to have our rooms as close together as possible both to maximize learning time
and also to reduce undue exposure to inclement weather and safety risks. Willow Creek
Academy’s educational program requires a single contiguous school site in which to operate. By
contiguous it is important that all kindergarten classes be located in the same building cluster; the
same for first grades, etc. It is essential for a strong education and social collaboration that
similar grade levels be located adjacent to each other to insure cross class planning and sharing by
the teachers at those grade levels and also to group appropriate play areas for various aged
classes.

Facility Location:

Title 5 CCR Section 11969.9(c)(1)(E) requires the Charter School to provide information
regarding the District school site and/or general geographic area in which the Charter School
wishes to locate. Based upon the needs of Willow Creek Academy and the residency of the
projected student enrollment, Willow Creek Academy requests facilities on its current
campus. The Charter School requests the use of Portables 1-4 and Portable A, Rooms 1-4,
Rooms 6-8, Rooms 19-28, Rooms 10-12, and other necessary spaces to meet the educational

G15.330. 7530 0 Faxi 415.9311622 . wiwvw.willowereekacademy.org
: :

636 Nevada Street, Sausalito, CA 94965

11 of 154



needs outlined in the above section. Willow Creek Academy also requests use of art (currently
Room 24) and music (currently Room 17) rooms, a school office space, and an appropriate site in
which to have breakfast and lunch served and eaten (the Multipurpose Room).

Procedures and Timelines:

In accordance with the Implementing Regulations, the District is required to review the Charter
School’s attendance projections and to express any objections that it has about the Charter
School’s attendance projections in writing on or before December 1, 2017. The Charter School
must respond to the District’s written objections, if any, on or before January 4, 2018, and will
either reaffirm or modify its projections as it deems necessary. (5 CCR Section 11969.9(d).)

Furthermore, we look forward to receiving a written preliminary facilities proposal from the
District on or before February 1, 2018, as required under the Implementing Regulations. (5 CCR
Section 11969.9(f).) The preliminary proposal must include, at a minimum, the following
information: (1) a breakdown of the number of teaching stations (classrooms), specialized and
non-classroom based space to be allocated to the Charter School, with an indication as to whether
the space is exclusive or shared use; (2) the projections of in-District classroom ADA on which
the proposal is based; (3) the specific location of the space; (4) all conditions pertaining to the
space, including a draft of any proposed agreement pertaining to the Charter School’s use of the
space, (typically referred to as a facilities use agreement); (5) the projected pro rata share amount
and a description of the methodology used to determine that amount; and (6) a list and description
of the comparison group schools used in developing its preliminary proposal, and a description of
the differences between the preliminary proposal and the Charter School’s facilities request. In
accordance with the Implementing Regulations (5 CCR Section 11969.2(d)), if the District’s
preliminary proposal (or final notification) does not accommodate Charter School at a single
school site, the District’s governing board must first make a finding that the Charter School could
not be accommodated at a single site and adopt a written statement of reasons explaining the
finding. The Charter School has until March 1, 2018, to respond to the preliminary proposal,
expressing any concerns, addressing differences between the preliminary proposal and the
facilities request, and/or making counter proposals.

The Implementing Regulations Section 11969.9(h) requires the District to provide a written final
notification regarding the space to be allocated to the Charter School prior to April 1, 2018. The
final notification specifically must include, at a minimum, the following:

1. The teaching station, specialized classroom space, and non-teaching station space
offered for the exclusive use of the charter school and the teaching station,
specialized classroom space, and non-teaching station space which the charter is to
be provided access on a shared basis with District operated programs, if any;

2. For shared space, if any, the proposed arrangements for sharing;

413.33L.7530 . Fax: 4153311022 . www.owillowereekacadeniv.org
636 Nevada Street, Sausalito, UA 04065

12 of 154



(V%)

The in-District classroom ADA assumptions for the Charter School upon which the

allocation is based and, if the assumptions are different than those submitted by the

charter school, a written explanation of the reasons for the differences;

The specific location of the space;

All conditions pertaining to the Charter School’s use of the space;

The pro rata share amount and a description of the methodology used to determine

that amount;

7. The payment schedule for the pro rata share amount, which shall take into account
the timing of revenues from the state and from local property taxes; and

8. A response to the Charter School’s concerns and/or counter-proposals, if any.

o

A California Court of Appeals decision has made clear that, in meeting their Proposition 39
obligation, school districts must give the same degree of consideration to the needs of charter
school students as it does to the students in district-run schools. The court noted that
“accommodating a charter school might involve moving district-operated programs or changing
attendance areas” and that providing a contiguous school facility to a charter school might require
disruption and dislocation among district students, staff and programs. Ridgecrest Charter
School v. Sierra Sands Unified School District, 130 Cal.App.4™ 986 (2005). In addition, the
Court concluded that a school district responding to a request for facilities must issue a statement
of reasons at the time it makes its final determination that is “thorough” and “factual” enough to
permit “effective review by the courts”; the statement of reasons issued by the school district
must demonstrate that the district has “adequately considered all relevant factors” and that the
district can “demonstrate a rational connection between those factors, the choice made, and the
purposes of [Proposition 39].” Furthermore, as the District may be aware, two recent court cases
clarified the manner in which a school district must allocate facilities to a charter school.
Specifically, Bullis Charter School v. Los Altos School District (200 Cal.App.4th 1022), among
other things, requires the District to perform a calculation of the square footage of all of the
specialized and non-teaching station spaces at the comparison schools. The District must base its
allocated of space to the Charter School on this analysis. In addition, California Charter Schools
Association v. Los Angeles Unified School District (Los Angeles Superior Court No. BC 438336)
clarified that a school district cannot use a loading standard to allocate teaching stations to a
charter school, but rather must allocate teaching stations based on the actual teaching station to
ADA ratio at the comparison schools.

Although Proposition 39 requires the District to allocate a school facility for Charter School use,
Willow Creek Academy is amenable to discussing alternative facilities arrangements that meet
both the needs of the District and the Charter School.

415.991.7550 . Fax: 415.33

: iHowereekacademy.org
636 Nevada St

CA gaghs

13 of 154



The Willow Creek Academy Board of Directors has delegated to me the responsibility to
negotiate the allocation of a facility under Proposition 39. All communications regarding this
matter should be sent to my attention at the address below. My contact information is as follows:

Kurt Weinsheimer
Email: kurtrwi@email.com
Phone: 650-759-2425

I appreciate your time and consideration of this request and I look forward to developing a
mutually agreeable plan to meet the facilities needs of Willow Creek Academy’s students.

Sincerely,
DocuSigned by:

kot lecnalecmen

D0AS2739C703449. .
Kurt Weinsheimer

President, Willow Creek Academy Board of Directors

ce: Tara Seekins, Head of School
Marcella Alexis Addae, Board of Directors
Jim Henry, Board of Directors
Jeff Knowles, Board of Directors
Lexi Mussallem, Board of Directors
Salley Peck, Board of Directors
Marijke Smit, Board of Directors
Johanna Vander Molen, Board of Directors
Clark Warden, Board of Directors
Lisa A. Corr, Legal Counsel
Hilary Harmssen, CCSA Regional Director

Attachments (the following attachments are incorporated by reference herein):
e 2017-18 Student Roster (as of 10/1/17)
e Head of School Declaration
e P-2 Report

Wait list (as of 10/1/17)

‘ax: 415.331. 160 www.willowereekacademy.org
636 Nevada Street, Sausalito, CA 94065

14 of 154



Sausalito Marin City School District | inventory - Corrective Actions

ON-
Action GOING \ FREQUENC TRACKING REPORT
P
# Category ONE- LEAD ACTION v PROCESS TIMELINE Togress UPDATES
TIME
. - - - 4/11/17
Ensure that properly credentialed teachers are Coordination By Start of 5/16/17
1 Personnel 1/ SUPT providing all subject area instruction, including 7 with MCOE with | each School In Process 8/15/17
physical education. - . each new hire Year 9/14/17
Dec, with
Policies & : Budget & LCAP Budget
2 oticie 1/ SUPT Implement effective LCAP Process and Development. 4 ucee ucge in Process 8/15/17
Regs Calendar Calendar
Adoption
Policies & Recognize and demonstrate primary responsibility to
3 Regs ‘l BOARD students enrolled.in the district's Bayside Martin 4 TBD TBD Not Started
& Luther King, Jri Academy.
Begin 2017-18;
4 WCA \I SUPT Renegotiate WCA MOU and Funding. 4 T8D Complete Jan In Process
2019
Policies & Review all existing agreements/Memoranda of 41117
5 A v oo [EENE S (hﬁogs) 3 N/A N/A COMPLETED | 5/16/17
& g : 9/14/17
Board Reporting
within 1st six By Start of 4/11/17
6 Students SUPT ional i ic . COMPLETED
uden wl Address Instructional Materials Insufficiency 3 weeks of school | School Year 9/14/17
year
8/14/17
7 Students 1/ SUPT Restore educational enrichment programs, 3 LCAP TBD In Process 1 0/ /16//17
8 | Students | « | supt/prin |Review the instructional and program needs for 3 LcAP Aug-17 COMPLETED | 9/14/17
students and adjust staffing accordingly.
Coordination
i J L N | By Start of
9 Personnel «J CBO Maintain appropriate CLAD teacher requirements. 3 with MCOE with School Year COMPLETED 9/14/17
: : each new hire
Ensure classes have been assigned a permanent Principal Report | Within first 20 8/15/17
10 | Personnel \J PRINCIPAL  Jteacher within the first 20 working days of the 3 to days of In Process 9/14/17
semester. : Superintendent Semester
i _ Principal Report
B f
11 Students ‘\, PRINCIPAL Ensur(? students have textbooks or instructional 3 to y Start o COMPLETED 8/15/17
materials to use at home or after school. ) Schoof Year
Superintendent
4/11/17
12 Students 1] PRINCIPAL |Develop Individual Learning Plans (ILP) for students. 2 TBD Jan-18 in Process 5/16/17
8/15/17
13 Students ‘\J 18D EI"ISU.VE an Equitable Education for students of the 5 18D T80 In Process
district.
14 | Students | v 18D Develop an Education Reform Plan. 2 8D T8D In Process
Policies & o Develop timeli impl LF T s o : : : B
15 | ToNCes e “SUPT velop timeline to Implement FCMA 2 FCMAT Updates | Jan-18 In Process 9/14/17
Regs recommendations.
Policies & 3 :
16 Regs ¢ CBO Establish proper account coding. 2 N/A N/A COMPLETED 4/11/17
Review and follow up on any audit exceptions or .
Policies & management letter findings or recommendations Resolution of
1 4 .
17 J 8O Ber ingings or recomm 2 2015-16 Audit T8D In Process 9/14/17
Regs descriptions of corrective actions or plans to correct -
; Findings Report
items.
4/11/17
D | t E i
18 | Students | SUPT ini;’::,:: a;:':r:’: fg:golc"mpe“samw ducation 1 N/A N/A COMPLETED | 5/16/17
e 8/15/17
19 Students . SUPT Develop Transm?nal Kindergarten and Preschool 1 TBD TBD 1n Process 5/16/17
outreach strategies.
20 Students v 8D Maintain sufficient classroom space. 1 TBD TBD Unknown
e o
21 Students \I SUPT ru ‘ona’ progra s‘ aximi ? © L 1 Bargaining Spring COMPLETED 9/14/17
learning and comply with the Collective Bargaining Sessions
Agreements.
Page 1

15 of 154




Sausalito Marin City School District | inventory - Corrective Actions

Action

Category

ON-
GOING \
ONE-
TIME

LEAD

ACTION

FREQUENC
Y

TRACKING
PROCESS

TIMELINE

Progress

REPORT
UPDATES

22

Students

SUPT/PRIN

Use the LCAP process and the professional
knowledge of staff to determine the needs of
students at Bayside MLK and an adequate level of
funding to meet those needs.

LCAP Calendar

Jan-18

tn Process

9/14/17

23

Students

SUPT/PRIN

Provide subject matter instruction for middie school
students, Realign funding prioritiés as needed to
ensure that this occurs,

N/A

N/A

COMPLETED

9/14/17

24

WCA

T8D

Recognize and demonstrate relationship with WCA is
as charter school authorizer.

TBD

18D

Unknown

25

Facifities

8D

Annually re-evaluate in a public setting facility use
provisions including effects on Bayside/MLK
students.

Not Started

26

Facilities

TBD

Develop a five-year facilities master plan that
incorporates demographics, student enrofiment,
facility capacity, capital improvements and funding
methodologies to support student housing needs.

27

Personnel

T8D

Not Started

Consider ret:énﬁg&ﬁng staffing to align with the
number of students being served. i

28

Personnel

SUPT

N/A

N/A

COMPLETED

9/14/17

Review the need for both a superintendent and a
principal; consider combining these roles in one
position.

N/A

N/A

COMPLETED

4/11/17
8/15/17

29

Personnel

8D

Consider using any salary savings to staff part-time
teaching pqsiiions to provide targeted student
intervention... . . .

Not Started

30

Policies &
Regs

T8D

Honor the commitments made in board bylaws and
policies:

Not Started

31

Policies &
Regs

18D

Ensure that all volunteers and employees follow
board policies and administrative regulations.

Not Started

32

Internal
Controls

T8D

Assess all requests for expenditures for goods and
services to ensure financial resources equitably
support all district students.

Not Started

33

WCA

T8D

Review Demographics at WCA related to the decline
in African American Students.

Not Started

18D

Ensure that all students have equal access to WCA,
regardless of race, ethnicity, socio-economic level, or
disability.

Not Started

[*2]
ur

- TBD

Implement strategies to address decline in academic
performance,

3

Not Started

36

Students

18D

Develop a multi-step plan, open to all stakeholders,
to evaluate the advantages and disadvantages of
different school site and district grade level
configurations.

Not Started

37

Facilities

CcBo

Seek competitive bids on public works projects over
$15,000 and equipment, materials or supplies to be
furnished, sold or leased in excess of current bid
fimits.

TBD

T8D

In Process

5/16/17

38

Facilities

T8D

Obtain and maintain equipment listings from
director of maintenance and operations.

Not Started

39

Facilities

T8D

Ensure the school building, building system, or part
of the school grounds is in'a condition that does not
pose a threat to the health and safety of students,
teachers, or school employees.

in Process

40

Facilities

DIR.
MAINTENANC
E

Ensure restrooms are fully operational, maintained
and accessible, cleaned reguiarly, and stocked at all
times.

COMPLETED

4/11/17

41

Personnel

SUPT/PRIN

Develop comprehensive Staff Professional
Development Plan.

Professional
Development
Calendar

Oct-17

In Process

4/11/17
5/16/17
8/15/17

16 of 154

Page 2




Sausalito Marin City School District | Inventory - Corrective Actions

Action

Category

ON-
GOING \
ONE-
TIME

LEAD

FREQUENC

ACTION
Y

42

Personnel

v

78D

TRACKING
PROCESS

TIMELINE

Progress

REPORT
UPDATES

Comply with Admmnstratweﬁ eacher ratio
requirement. . ~

43

Personnel

v

CBO

Follow Up Needed

Provide training fé( ;irbper,at‘tehdénce?éc‘oﬁnﬁng{ ‘

Personnel

8D

TBD

Oct-17

in Process

8/15/17

Consider online, read-only access to financial
mfnrmat(on bv sate admm;s’trators and department ‘
managers. .

45

Personnel

T8D

Not Started

Consider commrssionmg a study to determme
appropriate staffing levels for both certifi cated and
classified employees.

46

Personnel

T8D

Not Started

Revxew confidential employees’ wark respons:bmt:es
to ensure they meet Government Code Section

47

Personnel

T8D

Not Started

3540.1 requirements.

Revise confidential employe‘ejob descriptions (and
classifications) as needed.

48

Personnel

18D

Not Started

Send personnel staff members 1o training conducted
by CODESP and/or CPS on a variety of pertinent 1

subjects. ~

49

Personnel

T8D

T8D

Dec-17

In Process

Communicate tp every employee the ‘expéctation of
compliance with all policies and procedures, code of 1
ethics and standards of conduct.

50

Personnel

CBO

T8D

T8D

In Process

Develop and implement ongoing employee fraud
prevention training programs.

51

Personnel

T8D

In coliaboration
with District
Auditors

Oct-17

In Progress

8/15/17

Ensure that employees are cross-trained in key areas
of responsrb\hty

Not Started

52

Personnel

TBD

Develop desk manuals of emplcyee duties; ensure
that each emplovee includes step-by-step
procedures for all assigned duties in their desk

Not Started

53

Personnel

CBO

Ensure that each employee understands their
responsibility for records retention.

54

Personnel

18D

Operations
Manual (under

development)

Provide ektensive training for all employeeé involved
in purchasmg if the online QSS purchase order 1
system is implemented. .

55

Personnel

T8D

By Mid School
Year

Partially
Implemented

8/15/17

T8D

T8D

in Process

Dependmg on the leadership structure, revieiv the
need for other positions such as director of facwlmes 1
and assistant principal.

TBD

8D

In Process

L
&

Nprrnnnal
Jorsennd:

<

S tred v..u.:uu_ -._.4

Cnnduct a salary study of its management posmons

“:Both within the district and with.

[y

57

Personnel

COMMUNITY
SCHOOL
COORD.

Unknown

Ensure written 2oreements between each
organizatlon and district is approved by the board,
includes certification of all apphcable employee
clearances.

comparab!e districts. l
i

58

Personnel

T8D

TBD

T8D

Partially
Implemented

Rewse job descriptions as necessary among distrjct
office staff to accommodate the changes in 1
procedures,

TBD

TBD

in Process

59

Personnel

CBO

Provide the assistant to the busmess manager with
outs;detrammg to assist with the assigned
accounting duties, and hold the employee 1
responsible for completing the assigned duties
correctly.

N/A

N/A

COMPLETED

4/11/17

60

Internal
Controls

SUPT

Provide monthly updates to Board on outstanding
actions.

In Process

4/11/17
5/16/17
8/15/17
9/14/17
10/16/17

61

Internal
Controls

TBD

Implement Year End financial procedures. 1

Operations
Manual {under
development)}

Dec-17

In Process

17 of 154

Page 3




Sausalito Marin City School District | inventory - Corrective Actions

ON-
Action GOING \ FREQUENC TRACKING REPORT
4 Category ONE- LEAD ACTION Y PROCESS TIMELINE Progress UPDATES
TIME
it i Establish intai icati n
62 nterna \l 180 stablish and mam.talr? better communication at a 1 In Process
Controls levels of the organization.
Internal I j heets i i
63 na y 8O Ensure c?:mp oye.e timesheets are signed prior to 1 N/A N/A COMPLETD 4/11/17
Controls processing the timesheets for payment.
. Operations .
I 1 f Partiall
64 nterna 1] CBO Develf)p and implement proper procedures for cash 1 Manual {under 18D artially
Controls handling. Implemented
development)
i . . .
- nternal \I 80 Momtor open accounts with updated and authorized 1 N/A N/A COMPLETED 9/14/17
Controls signers.
Internal
66 " \I CBO Reconcile bank accounts. 1 N/A N/A COMPLETED 9/14/17
Controls
Internal In collahoration
67 (&:]0] R ite holdi ts. 1 TBD In Process
Controls */ econcile holding accounts with MCOE
Policies & 5/16/17
68 olicie ‘I CBO Maintain annual Statement of Economic interests. 1 N/A N/A COMPLETED /16/
Regs 8/15/17
Int I
69 C::::;E:s \I T8D Reconcile and maintain ASES program records. 1 TBD 18D In Process
Internal . .
70 Y TBD Establish procedures for FRPM and/or EL eligible. 1 in Process
Controls
71 Internal . T80 Establish appropriate procedures child nutrition 1 18D TBD In Process
Controls program.
lici . 3
72 Policies & *I T80 Prowd.e clear and concise budget presentations and 1 TBD 180 In Process
Regs materials.
1 | Partialt
73 nterna % TBD Implement sound financial internal control structure. 1 v
Controls implemented
internal Take immediate steps to construct separate travel
74 Controls ¢ TBD request and reimbursement forms that more closely 1 In Process
meet needs.
lici . . ;
5 Policies & . 8D Establish meal and mileage rates for use in employee 1 Not Started
Regs travel.
Policies & "
76 Regs ¢ T8D Implement the procedures for travel expenditures. 1 In Process
Jici i : ‘ i i Partiall
77 Policies & . 18D implement the procedures regarding revolving 1 18D 180 ially
Regs accounttransactions. implemented
policies & s drministrati
78 olicies ‘[ 8O Update. all board policies and f ministrative 1 18D 180 In Process
Regs regulations by the end of the fiscal year. .
Develop and implement a protocol to ensure future
policies & 3 o poli
79 olicies N 8D requlnrt'ad ch.anges 1o b?ard policies and 1 18D 18D In Process
Regs administrative regulations are adopted by the
districtin‘a timely fashion:
Polici R o :
20 olicies & “/ 80 Ensure fhat allboard pohc.ues and ?dmlnlstratnve 1 n Process
Regs regulations are posted to its website.
81 Policies & J 8D Annually adopt and ?onfmumcate board approved 1 In Process
Regs budget goals and objectives.
Policies & Implement a set of board-approved guiding
82 Regs L3 SuPT principles outlining the district’s financial priorities 1 Not Started
& for use in decision making.
Prepare a formal budget development calendar,
83 Policies & . 18D including cn.tical tasks, dﬂeadlmes and the staff 1 Not Started
Regs member assigned. Obtain annual approval of the
calendar from the governing board.
18 of 154 Page 4




Sausalito Marin City School District | Inventory - Corrective Actions

ON-
Action GOING \ FREQUENC TRACKING REPORT
4 Category ONE- LEAD ACTION v PROCESS TIMELINE Progress UPDATES
TIME
Implement a budget development process that
Polici H . i
84 olicies & . 8D includes sxte‘adm:m‘stxjatqrs and department - 1 In Process
Regs managers and holds them accountable to stay within
their budget. ‘
Prohibit other fund or restricted program
85 Internal \, 8o efu:r?af:hment vlwthout the ?xpress support of the 1 Follow Up Needed
Controls district's executive leadership and the governing
board.
I ibi inclusi i
86 Interna \l 8O Prohibit the inclusion of carryover balances during 1 N/A N/A COMPLETED 4/11/17
Controls budget development.
Conduct budget study sessions for the governing
87 Internal ‘J 8D board and all mteres.ted sta.ketfo(ders during budget 1 Not Started
Controls development and bring periodic updates to the
board during the process.
38 internal “I 18D P.ernt?f.ircally assess fiscal health to help ensure its 1 In Process
Controls viability.
89 Internal “I 80 Prowds? regular and frequent budget revisions to the 1 N/A N/A COMPLETED 8/15/17
Controls governing board for approval.
a0 Internal ‘J 180 Perfor.m annu?I and periodic duties to ens.ure 1 Not Started
Controls compliance with state and federal regulations.
internal Ensure that the required current state and federal
91 \I TBD legal employment notices are posted in staff 1 Not Started
Controls
lounges.
02 internal ‘I T80 E.nsure' that the‘board m'.eetmg calendar contafms 1 18D TBD In Process
Controls financial reporting deadlines to ensure compliance.
Policies & Susvey the board regarding specific areas of interest .
93 Rews «I TBD or topics for which they would like additional 1 Not Started
& explanation or training.
internal Present all adjustments resulting from the
94 Controls \I cBO independent audit of the prior year’s financial 1 Not Started
records to the governing board for approval.
95 Internal . o Review processes for applying indirect costs and 1 Not Started
Controls revise procedures beginning with fiscal year 2011-12.
Policies & !mprove‘communication practices, identify
9% | pege. L ¥ | SUPT |measurable objectives and implement strategiesto | 1. Not Started
Rego: achieve those objectives. e
Internal ) . - . o PN
97 -3 CRO . Develop and implement fraud detéction methods = i Not Started
Controls
| -
08 nternal ° 80 Cre:.:lte a policies and procedures manual for the 1 Not Started
Controls business department.
l - ' ot L .d :
99 Personnel $ CBO mp'e’?? it payral procedureg that will provide o 1 TBD TBD in Process
sound internal control structure.
Revise job descriptions as necessary among district
100 | Personnel ¢ cBoO office staff to accommodate revised payroll 1 Not Started
procedures. ‘
101 | personnel . 80 Establish an mdwtdual payroll file for each‘ 1 N/A N/A COMPLETED 8/15/17
employee. ‘
lk‘n‘plemerﬁt a calendaring system in the Personnel
102 | Personnel '3 PRINCIPAL |Department to track the dead-lines for employee 1 Not Started
evaluations.
Page 5

19 of 154




Sausalito Marin City School District | Inventory - Corrective Actions

ON-
Action GOING \ FREQUENC TRACKING REPORY
M Category | = b LEAD ACTION v PROCESS TIMELINE Progress UPDATES
TIME
Provide siteS/depai'tmenm with notifications from
r: D i .
103 | personnel N PRINCIPAL the Personnel epartment regardmg dead ines for 1 Not Started
empiovee evaluatmns, and track cemphance w;th
the evaluatnon dead!mes
Provide dnstnct admumstrators / department heads
104 | Personnel ¥ SUPT with training in documentmg employee 1 Not Started
performance ‘
105 | personnel . SUPT Implement the procedures for employee recruitment 1 Not Started
/ seiectnon
: s h ‘. ' - ‘f‘
106 | personnel . SUPT/CBO Subr.mtt‘ e cemﬁcated‘a‘nd classified emp!uyx:nent 1 Not Started
apphcatmn formsto legal counsel for evaiuation.
107 | Personnel . cBo Adopt; standardized forms for use in the employee 1 In Process
selection process. :
¢ Y ' - o) : :
108 | Personnel ° SUPT implement Defensible Employmgnt Testing for 1 Not Started
meeting selectxon requirements.
Provide annual notice to each employee to conf“ irm
109 | Personnel wl CBO their vacation and personal necessity/sick leave 1 N/A N/A COMPLETED 10/16/17
balances.
d |
110 | personnel | @ 80 'm‘,"‘?m?m the pmcf“’d“'es for employee 1 In Process
resignations and retirements.
Take immediate steps to fully implement the QSS
111 internal . 8o posnf!on control module, u}cllu‘dmg the use of an 1 Not Started
Controls outside consultant for the initial system setup to
lessen the burden on district office staff.
Revise job descriptions of district office staff as
| .
112 Interna . SUPT necessary'to ensure thfat adequate mternal.c‘ontrois 1 Not Started
Controls are established for maintenance of the position
control system,
internal Ensure that one person does not have the ability to
113 Controls '3 CBO access both the demographic and payroll screens of 1 Not Started
employees in the position control module.
Internal .
114 ¢ CBO Review employee change of status form. 1 Not Started
Controls
internal include a check box or signature line reflecting
115 ) ¢ CBO verification of board approval if required for the 1 Not Started
Controls ‘
m el et e o s -tsersonnel action on the changesf status form. - oo ~ e g s g
| |
116 nterne: . 8O, . Establish steps to process the district’s posmon 1 Not Started
Controis - ~eeRe s lcontrol transactions. N a e
internal
117 [ CBO implement the procedures for purchase orders, 1 in Process
Controls
118 Internal ° 8o Uts'hze open‘ purchase orders for ongoing purchases 1 In Process
Controls of inexpensive items from the same vendor.
119 Internal ° SUPT Consult w.ath iegal counsel regarding xt:s july 2011 1 Not Started
Controls award of its contract for the food service program.
N . . Operations
120 Internal N SUPT lmmed'late(}l C(?ntact legal counse! with questions 1 Manual {under N/A COMPLETED 10/16/17
Controls regarding bidding. .
development)
Operations
| i i let
121 (I:nternal \, BO Meet w‘nt‘h leg:j!:f)un;eI 1o obtain a complete set of 1 Manual {under N/A COMPLETED 10/16/17
ontrols competitive bidding documents. development)
122 internal . SUPT Provide training for staff on bidding requirements 1 Unknown
Controls and procedures,
Internal DIR. Establish a policy requiring three quotes to be
123 ¢ IMAINTENANC| '2v!ish @ policy Tequining quot 1 Unknown
Controls p obtained when items exceed a specified amount.
P
20 of 154 o8e'




Sausalito Marin City School District | Inventory - Corrective Actions

ON-
Action GOING \ FREQUENC TRACKING REPORT
4 Category ONE- LEAD ACTION Y PROCESS TIMELINE Progress UPDATES
TIME
| | | S N 5 TN
128 nterna . 80 ssue district cre.dtt.cards in both the individual's 1 N/A N/A COMPLETED 41117
Controls name and the district's name.
internal Ensure that each person'issued a credit card signs a
125 Controls ¢ CBO usage agreement that provides specifics of the credit 1 N/A N/A COMPLETED 10/16/17
card program.
internal Require a purchase order for ail purchases of goods Operations
126 Controls v C80 and services via credit card, with the exception of 1 Manual (under N/A COMPLETED 10/16/17
some travel expenses. development)
DIR if the inventory is incomplete, consider changing
I . : X
127 nternal . MAINTENANC vendors t.o perfors:n a.com'plete equipment mv.ento‘ry 1 Not Started
Controls /1T and provide the district with procedures to maintain
an inventory system.
Policies & Review grant proposals and implementation details
128 Regs v SUPT 1o ensure that services align with the district's goals 1 Not Started
& and follow board policy.
129 WCA 4 T8D Faithfully implement the provisions of the MOU, 1 Not Started
even when they are not favorable to WCA.
Provide the public and all interested parties an
130 WCA ‘] TBD opportunity to hear and give input on the financial 1 In Process
arrangements between the district and WCA,
Establish separation between operational and fiscal
131 WCA \I T8D structures for WCA facilities, purchasing, 1 TBD TBD In Process
administrative and other services.
132 WA ‘J 18D H(-)Id. public hearing abm{t .provrsn.)f»s of charter 1 Unknown
within 30 days after receiving petition.
Review the applicable lease costs associated with
133 WCA ‘I T80 th}e space proyxded to WCA, if any, -each fiscal year 1 Unknown
with data derived from the annual independent
auditor’s report.
Establish a formal charter school oversight review
134 WCA «I 8D process consistent with the requirements in the 1 Not Started
California Education Code....
Revise the current MOU to correct inconsistencies
135 WCA 1] TBD with requirements in the California Education Code 1 T8D TBD In Process
and Title 5, California Code of Regulations.
Be specific about the form and frequency of
136 WCA ‘\l TBD.. ... loversight practices; ensure that expectations are ST Not Started ..
“lclearly defined in policy and/or the MOU. -
Routinely monitor WCA's student recruitment, issues
137 WCA ‘J 18D related to rastal and ethnfc bala.nce, and 1 Not Started
implementation of other items in the charter
petition to ensure compliance.
138 WCA ‘J 18D Initiate a compre.henswe review of WCA's 1 Not Started
enroliment practices...
139 WCA ‘/ 180 lmmeidxatew require the ch?rter school to cease ) 18D TBD In Process
refusing enrollment to special needs students (SDC).
Ensure that the total percentage of WCA students
allowed because of the enroliment priority for
140 WCA T8D 1 Unknown
‘l children of a charter school's founders, teachers and
staff is small.
Ensure that WCA's charter petition and its website
141 WCA *I T8BD provide the same information regarding admission 1 Unknown
priority order and classifications.
Page7

21 of 154




Sausalito Marin City School District | Inventory - Corrective Actions

ON-
Action GOING \
M Category ONE-

TIME

LEAD

ACTION

FREQUENC
Y

TRACKING
PROCESS

TIMELINE

Progress

REPORT
UPDATES

142 WCA y 78D

tracking system of students granted admission to
WCA through the lottery are not enrolling their
students.

Ensure that the charter school develops a systematic

Unknown

NOTES

Actions are displayed in order of frequency.

< Ongoing
L 2 One-Time

LEGEND

Green = Facilities

Peach = Personnel

Blue = Policies and Regulations
Gray = Internal Controls

Pink = WCA

Yellow = Students

COMPLAINT / FINDING CLASSIFICATIONS

FCMAT

MCOE $-PT PLAN

AUDIT FINDING

UNIFORM COMPLAINT (UCP)
WILLIAMS COMPLAINT

MCOE CREDENTIAL MONITORING
INSTRUCTIONAL MAT'L INVENTORY
COMMUNITY DEMANDS

22 of 154

Page 8




Sausalito Marin City School District (SMCSD)
INVENTORY OF CORRECTIVE ACTIONS UPDATE

Date of Report: 10/16/2017 By: William McCoy, Superintendent, SMCSD

, Terena Mares, Deputy Superintendent, MCOE
Corrective Action #: 7 Category: Students '
Agency/Group(s):
L] FCMAT MCOE 9-PT Plan UJ Audit Findings [ CDE Uniform Complaint

MCOE Credential Monitoring [ MCOE Sufficiency of Instructional Materials

X Community Demands L] Williams Complaint

Action Description:  Restore educational enrichment programs.

Action Status: in Process \/ On Going Action

Lead: Superintendent, SMCSD

Status Update: The district met with Center for Excellence on [Add Date] to discuss how to restore
Foreign Language; this was the first of five meetings.

Previous Update(s) Provided:
9/14/17: As outlined in the district’s LCAP, arts and music have been restored. However, the LCAP
does not provide for the restoration of foreign language.

MCOE Report to SMCSD-Inventory of Corrective Actions Update

23 of 154




Sausalito Marin City School District (SMCSD)
INVENTORY OF CORRECTIVE ACTIONS UPDATE

Date of Report: 10/16/2017 By: William McCoy, Superintendent, SMCSD
Terena Mares, Deputy Superintendent, MCOE
Corrective Action #: 60 Category: Internal Controls
Agency/Group(s):
L] FCMAT X MCOE 9-PT Plan L] Audit Findings ] CDE Uniform Complaint

(] MCOE Credential Monitoring [ MCOE Sufficiency of Instructional Materials

[J Community Demands L1 Williams Complaint

Action Description:  Provide monthly updates to the Board on outstanding actions.

Action Status:  In Progress \/ On Going Action

Lead: Superintendent, SMCSD

Status Update: Superintendent McCoy presented to the board at its 9/14/17 meeting with an
update to Inventory of Corrective Actions: 1,5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 15, 17, 21, 22, 23, 27, 60, 65 and 66.
The board will continue to receive monthly updates at its regular board meeting on the status of
individual corrective actions. Additionally, as a component of the original FCMAT Study
Agreement with the Marin County Office of Education, FCMAT is providing follow-up support that
includes as assessment of the progress in implementing the recommendations included in the
report. Progress in implementing the recommendations will be documented to the Marin County
Office of Education in a FCMAT management letter. The follow-up visit is scheduled during the last
week of October and the completed management letter is anticipated for February 2018.

Previous Update(s) Provided:

9/14/17: Superintendent McCoy presented to the board at its 8/15/17 meeting with an update to
Inventory of Corrective Actions: 1, 2, 10, 11, 12, 18, 28, 41, 43, 50, 53, 60, 68, 89 and 101. The
board will continue to receive monthly updates at its regular board meeting on the status of
individual corrective actions. '

8/15/17: Superintendent McCoy presented to the board at its 5/16/17 meeting with an update to
Inventory of Corrective Actions: 1, 5, 12, 18, 19, 37, 41, 60 and 68. The board will continue to

receive monthly updates at its regular board meeting on the status of individual corrective actions.

5/16/17: Superintendent McCoy presented to the board at its 4/11/17 meeting with an update to

SMCsD-Inventory of Corrective Actions Update

24 of 154




Inventory of Corrective Actions: 1, 7, 8, 13, 15, 19, 32, 33, 48, 54, 55, 58, 83, and 122. The board
will continue to receive monthly updates at its regular board meeting on the status of individual
corrective actions.

4/11/17: On March 14, 2017, the Board was provided with a draft of the Inventory of Corrective
Actions. The board will continue to receive monthly updates on the status of individual corrective
actions in addition to an updated Inventory of Corrective Actions.

SMCSD-Inventory of Corrective Actions Update

25 of 154




Sausalito Marin City School District (SMCSD)
INVENTORY OF CORRECTIVE ACTIONS UPDATE

Date of Report: 10/16/2017 By: William McCoy, Superintendent, SMCSD
Terena Mares, Deputy Superintendent, MCOE
Corrective Action #: 109 Category: Personnel
Agency/Group(s): ;
X FCMAT ] MCOE 9-PT Plan L] Audit Findings L1 CDE Uniform Complaint

L1 MCOE Credential Monitoring [ MCOE Sufficiency of Instructional Materials

L] Community Demands LJ Williams Complaint

Action Description: Provide annual notice to each employee to conﬂrm their vacation and
personal necessity/sick leave balances.

Action Status: COMPLETED v/ On Going Action

Lead: Chief Business Official, SMCSD

Status Update: The district now issues a payroll letter of agreement for each regular district
employee; this includes sick leave and vacation balances.

Previous Update(s) Provided:

SMCSD-inventory of Corrective Actions Update

26 of 154




Sausalito Marin City School District (SMCSD)
INVENTORY OF CORRECTIVE ACTIONS UPDATE

Date of Report: 10/16/2017- By: William McCoy, Superintendent, SMCSD
Terena Mares, Deputy Superintendent, MCOE
Corrective Action #: 120 Category: Internal Controls
Agency/Group(s):
X FCMAT [J MCOE 9-PT Plan [ Audit Findings L] CDE Uniform Complaint

L] MCOE Credential Monitoring  [1 MCOE Sufficiency of Instructional Materials

(] Community Demands U Williams Complaint

Action Description: Immediately contact legal counsel with questions regarding bidding.

Action Status: COMPLETED v On Going Action

Lead: Chief Business Official, SMCSD

Status Update: The district has documenté@@ written protocol for contacting legal counsel with
questions related to bidding for projects that exceed $15,000. In addition, contracts that exceed

$5,000 require board approval prior to th yeginning of the project.

Previous Update(s) Provided: ;

SMCSD-Inventory of Corrective Actions Update

27 of 154




Sausalito Marin City School District (SMCSD)
INVENTORY OF CORRECTIVE ACTIONS UPDATE

Date of Report: 10/16/2017 By: William McCoy, Superintendent, SMCSD
Terena Mares, Deputy Superintendent, MCOE

Corrective Action #: 121 Category: Internal Controls

Agency/Group(s):
FCMAT O] MCOE 9-PT Plan [ Audit Findings [} CDE Uniform Complaint

[J MCOE Credential Monitoring  [J MCOE Sufficiency of Instructio

L] Community Demands L] Williams Complaint

Action Description: Meet with legal counsel to obtain a
documents.

Action Status: COMPLETED

Lead: Chief Business Official, SMCSD

Status Update: Interim Chief Busines Officia
competitive bidding documents. The di

ensure the district has current doctr

Previous Update(s) Provided:

SMCSD-Inventory of Corrective Actions Update

28 of 154



Sausalito Marin City School District (SMCSD)
INVENTORY OF CORRECTIVE ACTIONS UPDATE

Date of Report: 10/16/2017 By: William McCoy, Superintendent, SMCSD
Terena Mares, Deputy Superintendent, MCOE
Corrective Action #: 125 Category: Internal Controls
Agency/Group(s): .
X FCMAT [J MCOE 9-PT Plan [ Audit Findings I CDE U form Comé;!,aint

[J MCOE Credential Monitoring ] MCOE Sufficiency of Instructio

L] Community Demands L] Williams Complaint

Action Description: Ensure that each person issued a cred:t card sagns a usage;
provrdes specifics of the credit card program.

Action Status: COMPLETED ¢ One-Time Action

Lead: Chief Business Official, SMCSD

Status Update: The district has a credit card usage agreement on file that has been signed by the
district credit card holders, the CBO and Superintendent.

Previous Update(s) Provided:

SMCSD-Inventory of Corrective Actions Update

29 of 154




Sausalito Marin City School District (SMCSD)
INVENTORY OF CORRECTIVE ACTIONS UPDATE

Date of Report: 10/16/2017 | By: William McCoy, Superintendent, SMCSD
Terena Mares, Deputy Superintendent, MCOE

Corrective Action #: 126 Category: Internal Controls
Agency/Group(s): . 1
FCMAT ] MCOE 9-PT Plan [ Audit Findings ‘L—B CDE Umform Compialnt

[J MCOE Credential Monitoring [0 MCOE Sufficiency of Instructlon\ Matenals

[J Community Demands ] Williams Complaint

Action Description: Require a purchase order for all purchases of goods and serwces via credit
card, with the exception of travel. 4

Action Status: COMPLETED ' \jm Gg,j;ﬁg Action

Lead: Chief Business Official, SMCSD

Status Update: As part of the written p dures for purchases the district requires a purchase
order for all goods and services. The dist

, ;redn‘. card is used for supplies/materials and some
travel expenses. Under emergency ci mstances t é‘:z,reqmrement of a purchase order may be
waived by the Superintendent or Chief Busin

Previous Update(s) Provided:

SMCSD-Inventory of Corrective Actions Update

30 of 154




Sausalito Marin City School District
Agenda ltem: 10.01 Date: November 9, 2017

Correspondence X Consent Agenda
Reports

General Functions

Pupil Services

Personnel Services

Financial & Business Procedures
Curriculum and Instruction

Policy Development

Public Hearings

<

ltem Requires Board Action: ltem is for Information Only: []

ltem: Consider Approval of the Document Tracking Services Contract for the 2017-2018 School
Year in the Amount of $695 (Renewal).

Background:

Document Tracking Services (DTS) provides software that assists the District and Willow Creek
Academy in annual preparation of the School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The District also
prepares the annual Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) through DTS.
Addresses LCAP Goal(s)/Action(s):
Goal 1 — Student Achievement, Action 5
Fiscal Impact: Included in the 2017/2018 Budget

$466 Paid by Unrestricted Base Funds

$229 Paid by Willow Creek Academy

$695 Total

Recommendation: Approve

Attachments: Document Tracking Service 2017-2018 Invoice

31 of 154



DocotenT Thackis Sehvices

August 21, 2017

Sausalito Marin City School District
200 Phillips Drive

Sausalito, CA 94965

Re: Document Tracking Services

INVOICE #9496504

Pursuant to the licensing agreement between Sausalito Marin City School District and Document Tracking

Services (DTS):

Document Tracking Services

Document Tracking Services [10/15/17 to 10/15/1 8
3 schools and District Personnel = 4 sites
License Agreement includes up to 5 documents

Translation Services

2017 Spanish School Accountability Report Card:
$150 x 2 School Accountability Report Cards

Total Balance Due:

Please Make Checks Payable To: Document Tracking Services
Send to:

Aaron Tarazon, Director
Document Tracking Services
10225 Barnes Canyon Road, Suite A200
San Diego, CA 92121
" 858-784-0960 - Phone
858-587-4640 - Corporate Fax

Thank youl

$395

$300

$695

e s fime] fras e Tntecion ¢ Bo.

Appibved Per Payment (Signature) ! Name/Role (Printed)

32 of 154



[0CUMENT

TRACKING SERVICES

LICENSING AGREEMENT

This Agreement effective October 15, 2017, is made and entered into by Sausalito
Marin City School District as Licensee and Document Tracking Services (DTS) as
Licensor each a “Party” and collectively the “Parties”.

Licensee desires that DTS provide a license to use DTS proprietary web-based application
in accordance with the following provisions:

A.

License. DTS hereby grants to Licensee a non-exclusive license to use DTS
application in order to create, edit, update, print and track specific documents as
described in Exhibit A of this agreement.

(i) DTS retains all rights, title and interest in DTS application and any registered
trademarks associated with the license.

(i) Licensee retains all rights, title and interest in the documents as described in
Exhibit A of this agreement.

Internet Areas. All parties including third party licensees shall not be permitted to
establish any “pointers” or links between the Online Area and any other area on or
outside of the DTS login without the prior written approval.

. Term of License. The term of the Agreement is for one (1) year from the effective

date (as noted in paragraph one) of the license agreement.

. Personnel. DTS will assign the appropriate personnel to represent DTS in all aspects

of the license including but not limited to account set up and customer license
inquiries.
Content. DTS will be solely responsible for loading the content supplied by Licensee

into DTS secure server and provide complete access to Licensee and its
representatives.

. Security of Data. DTS at all times will have complete security of Licensee documents
-on dedicated. servers that only authorized DTS perspnnel will have access to; all login

by DTS authorized will be stored and saved as to time of log-in and log-out.

(i) Licensee may request DTS to only store Licensee documents for the period of
time that allows Licensee and its authorized personnel to create, edit and
update their documents.

. Management of Database. DTS shall allow Licensee to review, edit; create, update
- and otherwise manage all content of Licensee available through the Secure Login of

DTS.

. Customer License. DTS shall respond promptly and professionally to questions,

comments, complaints and other reasonable requests regarding any aspect of DTS
application by Licensee. DTS business hours are Monday-Friday 8AM PST to 5PM PST
except for national/state holidays.

33 of 154



DOcUMENT TRACKING SERVIGES

. License Fee. Licensee shall pay a fee of $395.

. Document Set Up Fee. The one-time set up fee for documents as described in Exhibit
A and made a part of this Agreement is $0. :

. Payment Terms. Licensee shall pay the annual licensing fee upon execution of the
Agreement between parties and the electronic submittal of the invoice to Licensee.

. Number of Documents. The maximum number of documents per school district is
limited to five (5).

. Warranty. Licensee represents and warrants that all information provided to DTS,
including but not limited to narratives, editorials, information regarding schools, is

-owned by Licensee and Licensee has the right to use and allow use by DTS as called
for hereunder and that no copyrights, trademark rights or intellectual property rights
of any nature of any third party will be infringed by the intended use thereof. In the
event any claim is brought against DTS based on an alleged violation of the rights
warranted herein, Licensee agrees to indemnify and hold DTS harmless from all such
claims, including attorney fees and costs incurred by DTS in defending such claims.

. Definitions.

(i) Document. A document is defined as a) a specific template provided by CDE or;
b) any specific word document or forms that have different fields or school
references such as elementary, middle or high schools* submitted by District or
CDE; or c) individual inserts submitted by District or CDE that are integrated

into existing documents or are offered as supplemental and/or addendums to
other report documents.

* Licensee submits a SPSA template for their elementary, middle and high
schools, which is counted as three (3) separate documents.

(if) Customized Documents. Any document that is not a standard CDE template is

P U S S e s g ke L. T T RPN RPN S T TS SR SR
considered & customn document and as such may be subject to additional setup -

' 7 execution of this agreemeric.
. Document Setup Fee. DTS will charge a one-time setup fee of $200 per standard
document up to a maximum of $850 for customized documents.

. Additional Fees. Licensee shall pay additional fees if Licensee exceeds the number of
documents as described in section L of this agreement. The fee for each additional
document is $39 per document times the number of schools in the district. The fee
shall be payable within thirty (30) days from DTS invoice.

. Additional Services. DTS can also provide Data Transfer and Document Translation
services to Licensee for an additional fee. The fee for each additional service would
be agreed upon between the parties and invoiced at the time the services were
requested. The fee shall be payable within thirty (30) days from DTS invoice.

fees; DTS shall provide an estimated cost of these additional fees prior to the

34 of 154



DocuMENT TRACKNG SERVICES

The Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date.

Document Tracking Services, LLC

By: Aaron Tarazon, Director
Document Tracking Services
10225 Barnes Canyon Road, Suite A200
San Diego, CA 92121
858-784-0960 - Phone
858-587-4640 - Corporate Fax

Date: August 21, 2017

Licensee

By: (s 0, zasasin o0
v/, ! ~

Date: [0-"3-1F

Sausalito Marin City School District

35 of 154



DOCUMENT TRACKING SeRvices

Exhibit A

The following are standard documents to be used in conjunction with the license.

1. 2017 School Accountability Report Card, English & Spanish (Custom Template)
2. Others to be identified as needed.

36 of 154



Sausalito Marin City School District

Payment of Warrants
11/9 , 2017

Attached warrants include:

Batch 14 Fund 01 in the amount of $282,465.56
Batch 14 Fund 13 in the amount of $112.35
Batch 15 Fund 01 in the amount of $39,213.74
Batch 15 Fund 13 in the amount of $2,890.82
Batch 16 Fund 01 in the amount of $55,102.45
Batch 16 Fund 13 in the amount of $978.92
Batch 16 Fund 14 in the amount of $1,122.00
Batch 16 Fund 78 in the amount of $69,626.56
Batch 17 Fund 01 in the amount of $22,872.47
Batch 17 Fund 13 in the amount of $1,924.95

Prepared by Vida Moattar
Sausalito Marin City School District Business Office

37 of 154



MARIN COUNTY
OFFICE OF EDUCATION

1117 LAS GALLINAS AVENUE/R.O. BOX 4925 MARY JANE BURKE (415)472-4110
SAN RAFAEL, CA 94913-4925 MARIN COUNTY FAX (415) 491-6625
marincoe@marink12.ca.us SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

VENDOR PAYMENT CERTIFICATION

Date /D/////?‘

District Name SAUSALITO MARIN CITY District No. 47

The Governing Board of the District named hereon hereby authorizes and directs payment
of vendor payments inthe total of $ D §3. $AX 4/

FUND NUMBER BATCH NUMBER - AMOUNT
oY, ¢ Q82 Y6<, <
/X Ly [, 2 ¢

Authorized Signature Wﬁ/w 44 %
/4 / _

Business Form No. 119

léUlls.DlNG THEFUTURE . . . ONE STUDENT AT A TIME
38 of 154

Marin County Office of Educatio



APY250  L.00.05 Marin County Office of Education 10/12/17 PAGE 44
COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER

DISTRICT: 047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED 10/13/2017
BATCH: 0014 GENERAL FUND
FUND : 01 GENERAL FUND
WARRANT VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE ABA NUM  ACCOUNT NUM
REQ# REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

.._-..-.---..--_....---_----....-.-......---....-—-_----_---_------..--............_-..-...._----....-........_..--............-.---.—--...._—_----_-----_---—-. ___________

20176812 002550/ ASSOCIATED VALUATION SERVICES

-P0-180020 1. 01-0000-0-5849.00-0000-7200-700-000-~000 5685 292.59
HARRANT TOTAL $292.59

20176813 070358/ AT&T

P0-180003 1. 01-0000-0-5970.00-0000-7200-700-000-000 9/17 52.62
HARRANT TOTAL $52.62

20176814 070329/ AT&T CALNET 3

PO-180001 1. 01-0000-0-5970.00-0000-2700-104-000-000 110.9 110.90
WARRANT TOTAL $110.90
20176815 001811/  STATE OF CALIFORNIA
PV-180135  01-0000-0-5821.00-0000-7200-725-000-000 259537 ’ 32.00
WARRANT TOTAL $32.00
20176816 070935/  CINTAS CORPORATION
PO-180056 1. 01-8150-0-5840.00-0000-8110-104-000-000 626148581 304.25
WARRANT TOTAL $304.25
20176817 070192/ COMMUNIQUE INTERPRETING INC.
PO-180095 1. 01-6500-0-5840.00-5770-1132-700-000-000 17-09147 : 2,303.75
: WARRANT TOTAL $2,303.75
20176818 070761/  CON E SOLUTIONS
P0-180025 1. 01-0000-0-5840.00-0000-7705-700-000-000 7-9/17 2,400.00
WARRANT TOTAL $2,400.00
20176819 071025/  DAVID FINNANE
PV-18023  01-0003-0-4300.00-0000-2700-104-300-000 - Parent Night/Incentives  152.97
S e © WARRANT TOTAL 7 ' $152.97
20176820 001305/  GOPHER SPORTS
P0-180072 1. 01-0000-0-4300.00-1131-1010-104-000-000 9381070 1,417.18
PO-180120 1. 01-0000-0-4300.00-1131-1010-104-000-000 9379632 : 211.20
WARRANT TOTAL _ $1,628.38

39 of 154



APY250

DISTRICT: 047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT

L.00.05

Marin County Office of Education

COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER
FOR WARRANTS DATED 10/13/2017

"BATCH: 0014 GENERAL FUND

FUND

WARRANT

20176821

20176822

20176823

20176824

20176825

20176826

20176827

20176828

20176829

: 01

VENDOR/ADDR
REQ#

071041/

001704/

001235/

002345/

070326/

070922/

000065/

071040/

070406/

GENERAL FUND

NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE
REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP

LESHAWN HOLCOMB

01-0000~0-4300.00-1110-1010-104-000-118

PV-180139
HARRANT TOTAL
HOME DEPOT -
PV-180133 01-8150-0-4300.00-0000-8100-104-000-000

WARRANT TOTAL

JOANNE'S PRINT SHOP

PV-180136 01-0000-0-4300. 00-0000-2700-104-000-000
WARRANT TOTAL
KONE INC.
PO-180006 2. 01-8150-0-5840.00-0000-8110-104-000-000

WARRANT TOTAL
MARIN SANITARY SERVICE

P0-180002 1. 01-0000-0-5550.00-0000~8200-104-000-000

WARRANT TOTAL

N2y

P0-180117 1, 01-6500-0-4300.00-5770-1110~700-000-~124
. WARRANT TOTAL

SAUSALITO-MARIN CITY SANITARY
PV-180134 01-0000-0-5540.00-0000-8200-103-000-000

01-0000-0-5540.00-0000-8200-104-000-000
WARRANT TOTAL

- LAYRENCE SIEGEL

01-6500-0-5829.,00-5770-7100~7006-000-000

PV-180127
WARRANT TOTAL
SILYCO
P0-180016 1. 01-0000-0-5849.00-0000-7716-104-000-000

WARRANT TOTAL

40 of 154

ABA NUM  ACCOUNT NUM

DESCRIPTION

CTC Clearance, Supplies

Blower, Landscape Cloth

Finnane Business Cards

10/17 BMLK

9/17

$381295

SAUS 17-18-1

SAUS 17-18-1

Case 2017070980

SEP2017

10/12/17 PAGE 45

AMOUNT

340.19
$340.19

293.17
$203.17

95,38
$95.38

131.28
$131.28

800.00.
$800.00

177.54
$177.54

17,144.50

1,703.84
$18,848.34

8,632.00
$8,632.00

5,760.00
$5,760.00



APY250  L.00.05

DISTRICT: 047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT
BATCH: 0014 GENERAL FUND
FUND s 01 GENERAL FUND

WARRANT VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE
REQ#  REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP

Marin County Office of Education
COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER
FOR WARRANTS DATED 10/13/2017

ABA NUM

ACCOUNT NUM
DESCRIPTION

10/12/17 PAGE 46

AMOUNT

20176830 071036/ STAFFING OPTIONS & SOLUTIONS

P0-180107 1. 01—6500-0-5835.00-5770—1182-700-000-000
WARRANT TOTAL

20176831 001531/ STAPLES
P0-180100 1. 01-0000-0-4300.00-1110-1010-104-000-006

P0-1§0121 1. 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-2700-104-000-000

PV-180128 - 01-0000-0-4300.00~1110-1010-104-000-007
PY-180129 " 01-0000-0-4300.00-1110-1010-104-000-003
PV-180130 01-0000-0-4300.00-1110-1010-104-000-116
PV-180131 01-0000-0-4300.00-1110-1010-104-000-007
PV-180142 01-0000-0-4300.00-1110-1010-104-000-007

WARRANT TOTAL

20176832 070639/ TEKK INTERNATIONAL

P0-180109 1. 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-2420-104-000-000
WARRANT TOTAL
20176833 070677/ LYDIA TUVESON

PV-180132 01-6500-0-5835.00-5770-1182-700-000-000

WARRANT TOTAL
20176834 070525/ US BANCORP EQUIP. FINANCE INC

P0-180012 1. 01-0000-0-5605.00-0000-7200-700-000-000
WARRANT TOTAL

20176835 T70759/ ~ VERIZON WIRELESS

P0-180013 1. 01-0000-0-5840.00-0000-7200-700-000-000
: WARRANT TOTAL
20176836 002172/ WILLOW CREEK ACADEMY

PV-180137 01-0000-~0-8096.00-0000-9200-103-000-000

HARRANT TOTAL

41 of 154

M0019228

8046487263 Bunting
8046487263 BMLK
8046487263 Edmondson
8046487263 Thompson
8046487263 Haddad
8046487263 Lehrer

8046487263 Frederick

24690

02L72017-2018

8-9/17

10/17

October 2017 in lieu

2,460.00
$2,460.00

63.59
92.40
37.83
15.68
67.99
60.74

59.86
$398.09

166.50
$166.50

456.50
$456.50

888.62
$888.62

418.49
$418.49

235,322.00
$235,322.00



APY250 L.00.05 ‘ Marin County O0ffice of Education
COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER

DISTRICT: 047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED 10/13/2017 »
BATCH: 0014 GENERAL FUND
FUND : 01 GENERAL FUND
WARRANT VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE ABA NUM  ACCOUNT NUM
REQ#  REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION
**% FUND TOTALS *** TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS: 25 TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:

TOTAL ACH GENERATED: 0 TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL EFT GENERATED: 0 TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL PAYMENTS: 25 TOTAL AMOUNT:

42 of 154

10/12/17 PAGE 47

$282,465,56*
$.00%
$.00*%
$282,465.56*



APY250  L.00.05

" DISTRICT: 047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT
BATCH: 0014 GENERAL FUND
CAFETERIA FUND

FUND : 13

WARRANT VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT)

20176837 070973/

20176838 070799/

*** FUND

*kk

**% DISTRICT TOTALS ***

REQ#

TOTALS ***

BATCH TOTALS ***

Marin County Office of Education

COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER

FOR WARRANTS DATED 10/13/2017

DEPOSIT TYPE

REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y 0BJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP

.----__------—----____—-—-_----_----_------—-_------_---_---_-_-----_---_---____---_------__-----_---___—------------— ..............

ROCK ISLAND REFRIGERATED

PV-180141

VERITABLE VEGETABLE INC.

PV-180140

TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS:
TOTAL ACH GENERATED:
TOTAL EFT GENERATED:
TOTAL PAYMENTS:

13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-700-000-000

WARRANT TOTAL

13-5310—0—4200.00-0000-3700-700-000-000

WARRANT TOTAL

NOoO oM

TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS: 27

TOTAL ACH GENERATED: 0
TOTAL EFT GENERATED: 0
TOTAL PAYMENTS: 27
TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS: 27
TOTAL ACH GENERATED: 0
TOTAL EFT GENERATED: 0
TOTAL PAYMENTS: 27

Printed: 10/12/2017 14:54:12

43 of 154

ABA NUM  ACCOUNT NUM
DESCRIPTION

1061004

1177299

TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL AMOUNT:

TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL AMOUNT:

TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL AMOUNT:

10/12/17 PAGE 48

AMOUNT

52.35
$52.35

60.00
$60.00

$112.35+%
$.00*
$.00%
$112,35%

$282,577.91*
$.00%
$.00%
$282,577.91*

$282,577.91*
$.00*
$.00*
$282,577.91+*



MARIN COUNTY
OFFICE OF EDUCATION

1111 LAS GALLINAS AVENUE/P.O. BOX 4925 MARY JANE BURKE (415) 472-4110
SAN RAFAEL, CA 94913-4925 : MARIN COUNTY FAX (415) 491-6625
marincoe@marin.k12.ca.us SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

VENDOR PAYMENT CERTIFICATION

Date lO/lg /lq‘

District Name SAUSALITO MARIN CITY District No. 47

The Governing Board of the District named hereon hereby authorizes and directs payment

of vendor payments in the total of 43, (04, S

FUND NUMBER BATCH NUMBER . AMOUNT
O] ' S 29 al1h, ¥Y
5 [ < £90. &

’

f
Authorized Signature \’\ % i
, : A\ 74

Marin County Office of Education Business Form Ho. 1 44 of aa

..118
BUILDING THE FUTLIJRE . STUDENT AT A TIME



APY250 L.00.05 ‘ A Marin County Office of Education 10/19/17 PAGE 32

COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER

45 of 154

DISTRICT: 047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED 10/20/2017
BATCH: 0015 GENERAL FUND . :
FUND : 01 GENERAL FUND
WARRANT VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE ABA NUM ACCOUNT NUM
REQ# REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
20177461 000609/ AMERICAN EXPRESS
PV-180143 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-2700-104-000-000 IT Supplies 153.54
01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-2700-104-000-000 2 White noise machines 51.78
01-0000-0-4300.00~-0000-7110-700-000-000 Table Skirt - MPR 67.10
01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-7200-700-000-000 Board Meeting Dinner 87.92
01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-7200-700-000-000 DO Supplies 6.17
01-0000-0-4300.00-1110-1010-104-000-000 Book - McCoy 16.79
01-0000-0-4400.00-0000-2700-104-000-000 0ffice Depot - Panel Divider 70.34
01-0000-0-5840.00~1110-1010-104-000-000 Classroom Management 127.74
01-8150-0-5230.00-0000-8110-104-000-000 " Rothkop Workshop Hotel 109.25
WARRANT TOTAL $690.63
20177462 070329/ AT&T CALNET 3
PO-180001 1. 01-0000-0-5970.00-0000-2700-104-000-000 10/17 160.60
HARRANT TOTAL $160.60
20177463 000649/ BLICK ART MATERIALS
PV-180147 01-0000-0-4300.00-1451~1010-104-000-000 8349399 12.95
WARRANT TOTAL $12.95
20177464 070935/ CINTAS CORPORATION .
P0-180056 1. 01-8150-0-5840.00-0000-8110-104-000-000 626151105 392.25
WARRANT TOTAL : $392.2§
20177465 070192/ COMMUNIQUE INTERPRETING INC.
P0-180095 1. 01-6500-0-5840.00-5770-1132-700-000-000 17-10007 2,303.75
’ HARRANT TOTAL $2,303.75
20177466 071042/ CYPRESS RISK MANAGEMENT
PV-180144 01-0000-0-5840.00-0000-2700-104-000-000 ~ Student Accident Insurance 500.00
HARRANT TOTAL $500.00
20177467 070984/ ESGI
P0-180082 1. 01-0000-0-4307.00-1110-1010-104-000-003 17255 199.00



APY250 L.00.05 Marin County Office of Education
COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER

DISTRICT: 047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED 10/20/2017
BATCH: 0015 GENERAL FUND
FUND : 01 GENERAL FUND
WARRANT VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE ABA NUM  ACCOUNT NuM
REQ#  REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION

WARRANT TOTAL

20177468 071025/ DAVID FINNANE
PV-180149 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-2700-104-000-000 Certificate Frame
. WARRANT TOTAL
20177469 000047/ MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DST -
P0-180010 1. 01-0000-0-5535.00-0000-8200-103-000-000 8-10/17
2. 01-0000-0-5535.00-0000-8200-104-000-000 8-10/17
WARRANT TOTAL
20177470 001019/ MARIN PUPIL TRANS. AGENCY
P0-180048 1. 01-9002-0-7143.00-5001-9200-700-000-000 18-39
WARRANT TOTAL
20177471 070843/ ALAN ROTHKOP
PV-180145 01-8150-0-4300.00-0000-8100-103-000-000 Patch HCA Driveway
WARRANT TOTAL :
20177472 070356/ SCHOOL LIBRARY JOURNAL
PV-180151 01-0000-0-4300.00-1110-2420-104-000-000 - . Subscription 11/17-18
WARRANT TOTAL
20177473 002782/ SCHOOL SPECIALTY EDUCATION
P0-180116 1. 01-6500-0-4300.00-5770-1110-700-000-000 208119399520
WARRANT TOTAL
20177474 001531/ STAPLES
PV-180148 01-0000-0-4300.00~1110-1010-104-000-118 3355039974-5
WARRANT TOTAL :
20177475 070792/ TURNING GREEN
PV-180146 01-0000-0-4319.00-1110-1010~104-000-000 1302
WARRANT TOTAL
*** FUND TOTALS *** ‘ TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS: 15 TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
TOTAL ACH GENERATED: Y TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL EFT GENERATED: 0 TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL PAYMENTS: 15 TOTAL AMOUNT:

46 of 154

10/19/17 PAGE 33

AMOUNT

$199.00

10.27
$10.27

3,339.06

1,579.38
$4,918.44

29,371.00
$29,371.00

239.58
$239.58

88.99
$88.99

79.46
$79.46

210.77

ta1n 9
wheivess

36.05
$36.05

$39,213.74*
' $.00%
$.00*
$39,213.74*



PAGE 34

~ AMOUNT

149.00
$149.00

52.00
$52.00

249.73
$249.73

902.00
$902.00

120.00
$120.00

512.03

906.06
$1,418.09

$2,890.82*
$.00*
$.00*
$2,890.82*

$42,164.56*
$.00*
$.00*%
$42,104.56*

$42,104.56*
$.00*
$.00*

APY250 L.00.05 Maﬁn County Office of Education 10/19/17
COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER
DISTRICT: 047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED 10/20/2017
BATCH: 0015 GENERAL FUND
FUND : 13 CAFETERIA FUND
WARRANT VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE ABA NUM ACCOUNT NUM
REQ# REFERENCE LN FD.RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION
20177476 000609/ AMERICAN EXPRESS
PV-180143 13-5310-0-5240.00-0000-3700-700-000-000 Marco Workshop
WARRANT TOTAL
20177477 070923/ CAPAY INC
PV-180152 13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-700-000-000 89013
WARRANT TOTAL
20177478 070827/ MARI“ SUN FARMS
PV-180153 13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-700-000-000 423249
WARRANT TOTAL
20177479 070218/ COUNTY OF MARIN
PV-180150 13-5310-0-5842.00~0000-3700-700-000-000 17541
WARRANT TOTAL
20177480 070794/ NANA MAE'S ORGANIC
PV-180154 13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-700-000-000 827764
WARRANT TOTAL
20177481 070792/ TURNING GREEN
PY-180146 13-5310-0-4300.00~-0000-3700-700-000-000 1302
13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-700-000-000 1302
WARRANT TOTAL
*** FUND TOTALS *** TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS: 6 TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
TOTAL ACH GENERATED: 0 TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL EFT GENERATED: 0 TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL PAYMENTS: 6 TOTAL AMOUNT:
kit d RATCH TOTALS #%* " TOTAL MUMBED OF CUECKS. 21 TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
’ TOTAL ACH GENERATED: 0 TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL EFT GENERATED: 0 TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL PAYMENTS: 21 TOTAL AMOUNT:
**% DISTRICT TOTALS *** TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS: 21 TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
TOTAL ACH GENERATED: 0 TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL EFT GENERATED: 0 TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL PAYMENTS: 21

Printed: 10/19/2017 09:55:16

47 of 154

" TOTAL AMOUNT:

$42,104.56%



MARIN COUNTY
OFFICE OF EDUCATION

1111 LAS GALLINAS AVENUE/P.O. BOX 4925 MARY JANE BURKE . . (415)472-4110
SAN RAFAEL, CA 94913-4925 MARIN COUNTY FAX (415) 491-6625
marincoe@marin.k12.ca.us SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

VENDOR PAYMENT CERTIFICATION

Date  (p /g.g“//}

District Name SAUSALITO MARIN CITY District No. 47

The Governing Board of the District named hereon hereby authorizes and directs payment

of vendor payments inthe total of $§ /2L, ¥4 . §3

FUND NUMBER BATCH NUMBER .__AMOUNT
0Ol (¢ SS(0 4y
/3 - Lén 18 93
14 lb Ll 3. g

8 A b9 Loe, <7

Authorized Signature

\V/BER

3 F No. 118 480f154
DING THE FUTURE . . . ONE STUDENT AT A TIME

- Marin County Office of Educatio

[we =]
Com
0



APY250

DISTRICT: 047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT

BATCH:
FUND :

WARRANT

20178154

20178155

20178156

20178157

20178158

20178159

20178160

20178161

L.00.05

Marin County 0ffice of Education
COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER

FOR WARRANTS DATED 10/27/2017

10/26/17 PAGE 37

AMOUNT

653.15
$653.15

425.00
262.50

262.50
$950.00

1,857.50
$1,857.50

12,139.50

1,708.50
$13,848.00

107.67
$107.67

150.00
$150.00

18,057.42

13,8901.21.
$31,948.63

0016 GENERAL FUND
01 GENERAL FUND
VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE ABA NUM ACCOUNT NUM
REQ# REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION
070329/ AT&T CALNET 3
P0-180001 1. 01-0000-0-5970.00-0000-2700-104-000-000 10/17
WARRANT TOTAL
000608/ BURKELL PLUMBING
PV-180162 01-8150-0-5840.00-0000-8110-103-000-000 48662 Toilet Repair
PV-180163 01-8150-0-5840.00~0000-8110-103-000-000 48613 Backflow Cert.
01-8150-0-5840.00-0000-8110-104-000-000 48613 Backflow Cert.
WARRANT TOTAL
070192/ COMMUNIQUE INTERPRETING INC.
P0-180095 1. 01-6500-0-5840.00-5770-1132-700-000-000 17-10048
WARRANT TOTAL
070721/ FAGEN FRIEDMAN FULFROST
P0-180074 1. 01-0000-0-5829.00~0000-7100-700-000-000 55036-1 to 7
PV-180155 01-6500-0-5829.00-0000-7100-700-000-000 55036 Qp. ed.
WARRANT TOTAL
002796/ GLOBAL INDUSTRIAL
PV-180158 01-0000-0-4300.00-1110-1010-104-000-127 111513100
WARRANT TOTAL
000701/ HYDREX PEST CONTROL
P0-180014 1. 01-0000-0-5525.00-0000-8200-103-000-000 9-10/17 Service
WARRANT TOTAL
000039/ KAISER FOUNDATION
" pV-180156 01-0000-0-9526 .00-0000~0000-000-000-000 578-0002
01-0000-0-9526.00-0000-0000-000-000-000 16734-0001
WARRANT TOTAL
000073/ PEARSON
P0-180124 1. 01-6513-0-4300.00-5001-3120-700-000-000 11360871

WARRANT TOTAL

49 of 154-

257.86
$257.86



APY250 L.00.05

DISTRICT: 047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT
BATCH: 0016 GENERAL FUND
GENERAL FUND

FUND : 01

Marin County 0ffice of Education
COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER
FOR WARRANTS DATED 10/27/2017

WARRANT VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE

REQ#

REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP

ABA NUM ACCOUNT NuM
DESCRIPTION

10/26/17 PAGE 38

AMOUNT

20178162 070913/

20178163 001531/

**% FUND

SEAGATE BRIDGEWAY ASSOCIATES

PV-180159 01-0000-0-5555.00-0000-7150-725-000-000
WARRANT TOTAL
STAPLES
PV-180157 01-0000-0-4300.00-1110-1010-104-000-118
HARRANT TOTAL
TOTALS *** TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS: 10
TOTAL ACH GENERATED: 0
TOTAL EFT GENERATED: 0
TOTAL PAYMENTS: 10

50 of 154

11/17 DO Rent

Classroom supplies - Holcomb

TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:

" TOTAL AMOUNT:

5,317.00
$5,317.00

12.64
$12.64

$55,102.45*
$.00*
$.00*
$55,102.45*



TOTAL ACH GENERATED:
TOTAL EFT GENERATED:
TOTAL PAYMENTS:

TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL AMOUNT:

OO,

51 of 154

10/26/17 PAGE 39

AMOUNT

110.45
$110.45

250.12
$250.12

120.00
$120.00

218.36
$218.36

159.99
$159.99

120.00
$120.00

APY250 L.00.05 . Marin County Office of Education
COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER
DISTRICT: 047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED 10/27/2017
BATCH: 0016 GENERAL FUND
FUND : 13 CAFETERIA FUND
WARRANT VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE ABA NUM  ACCOUNT NuM
REQ# REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION
20178164 070841/ ECOLAB
P0-180050 1. 13-5310-0-5605.00-0000-3700-700-000-000 7307511
WARRANT TOTAL
20178165 070827/ MARIN SUN FARMS
PV-180165 13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-700-000~000 423634
WARRANT TOTAL
20178166 070794/. NANA MAE'S ORGANIC
PV-180167 13—5510-0—4700.00-0000-3700k700—000—000 827769 |
WARRANT TOTAL
20178167 070973/ ROCK ISLAND REFRIGERATED
PV-180168 13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-700-000-000 1063020
WARRANT TOTAL
20178168 070816/ UNFI
PV-180166 13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-700-000-000 10240660-003 CR -794.45
WARRANT TOTAL
20178169 070799/ VERITABLE VEGETABLE INC.
PV-180164 13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-700-000-000 1178833, 1180271
WARRANT TOTAL
**% FUND TOTALS *** TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS: TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:

$978.92*
$.00%
$.00*
$978.92%



APY250 L.00.05 Marin County Office of Education
COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER

DISTRICT: 047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED 10/27/2017
BATCH: 0016 GENERAL FUND
FUND 14 DEFERRED MAINTENANCE FUND
WARRANT VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE ABA NUM ACCOUNT NUM
REQ# REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION
20178170 000608/ BURKELL PLUMBING
PV-180161 . 14-0000-0-5600.00-0000-8110-104-000-000 48360 Pump for MPR Heater

WARRANT TOTAL

*** FUND TOTALS *** TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS: 1 TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
TOTAL ACH GENERATED: 0 TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL EFT GENERATED: 0 " TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
, TOTAL PAYMENTS: 1 TOTAL AMOUNT:

52 of 154

10/26/17 PAGE 40

AMOUNT

1,122.00
$1,122.00

$1,122.00*
$.00%
$.00*
$1,122.00*



APY250 L.00.05

DISTRICT: 047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT

BATCH: 0016 GENERAL FUND
FUND 1 78

WARRANT VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT)
REQ#  REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP

Marin County Office of Education

COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER

FOR WARRANTS DATED 10/27/2017

PASS-THROUGH ~ REVENUES

DEPOSIT TYPE

ABA NUM  ACCOUNT NuM
DESCRIPTION

10/26/17 PAGE 41

20178171 002172/

PV-180160

TOTALS ***

**% FUND

*%k  BATCH TOTALS ***

*%% DISTRICT TOTALS ***

Printed: 10/26/2017 13:32:21

WILLOW CREEK ACADEMY

78-0000-0-9620.00-0000-0000-000-000-000
' WARRANT TOTAL

TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS:
TOTAL ACH GENERATED:
TOTAL EFT GENERATED:
TOTAL PAYMENTS:

TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS:
TOTAL ACH GENERATED:
TOTAL EFT GENERATED:
TOTAL PAYMENTS:

TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS:

TOTAL ACH GENERATED:

TOTAL EFT GENERATED:
 TOTAL PAYMENTS:

53 of 154

OO

A Bulletins 9/2017

TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL AMOUNT:

TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL AMOUNT:

TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL AMOUNT:

69,626.56
$69,626.56

$69,626.56*
$.00*
$.00*
$69,626.56*%

$126,829.93*
$.00*
$.00*
$126,829.93*

$126,829.93*
$.00*
$.00*
$126,829.93*



MARIN COUNTY
OFFICE OF EDUCATION

1111 LAS GALLINAS AVENUE/R.O. BOX 4925 MARY JANE BURKE (415)472-4110
SAN RAFAEL, CA 94913-4925 MARIN COUNTY - FAX (415} 491-6625
marincoe@marin.k12.ca.us SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

VENDOR PAYMENT CERTIFICATION

Date H/I //}

District Name SAUSALITO MARIN CITY District No. 47

The Governing Board of the District named hereon hereby authorizes and directs payment

of vendor payments inthe total of § Y- Y9 3, 3.
/

FUND NUMBER BATCH NUMBER - AMOUNT
O | [ 23 833,43
[ [} LG 5<

L (W
‘ Authorized Signature /UMCO
v 7/

Marin County OFfice of Education Business Form No. 119 D4 Of 154
e o et o NG P UTORE . . . ONE STUDENT AT A TIME



APY250

DISTRICT:
BATCH:

FUND

L.00.05 Marin County Office of Education

' COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER
047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED 11/03/2017
0017 GENERAL FUND

: 01 GENERAL FUND
VENDOR/ADDR  NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE ABA NUM  ACCOUNT NuM
~ REQ# REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION

11702717 PAGE 44

20178828

20178829

20178830

20178831

20178832

20178833

20176834

20176835

20178836

071044/ ARES SPORTSWEAR

PO-180122 1. 01-0000-0-4300.00-1131-1010-104-000-000 503565
WARRANT TOTAL

000006/ BAY CITIES REFUSE INC

P0-180004 1. 01-0000-0-5550.00-0000-8200-103-000-000 11/17
WARRANT TOTAL

070935/ CINTAS CORPORATION

PO-180056 1. 01-8150-0-5840.00-0000-8110-104-000-000 626153600
' WARRANT TOTAL

070192/ COMMUNTQUE INTERPRETING INC.

PC-180085 1. 01-6500-0-5840.00-5770-1132-700-000-000 17-10077
WARRANT TOTAL

071048/ MICHAEL EVANS

PV-180172 01-0000-0-4300.00-1131-1010-104-000-000 ~Classroom supplies
WARRANT TOTAL

002270/ FISHMAN SUPPLY CO.

P0-180108 1. 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-8210-104-000-000 1103013
WARRANT TOTAL

000023/ GOODMAN BUILDING SUPPLY CO.

P0-180008 1. 01-8150-0-4300.00-0000-8110-103-000-000 11717 WCA
2. 01-8150-0-4300.00-0000-8110-104-000-000 11/17 BHIK
"WARRANT TOTAL

001305/ GOPHER SPORTS

P0-180118 1. 01-0000-0-4300.00-1131-1010-104-000-000 9389985
WARRANT TOTAL

000701/ HYDREX PEST CONTROL

P0-180014 2. 01-0000-0-5525.00-0000-8200-104-000-000 10/17 BMLK
WARRANT TOTAL

55 of 154

435.96
$435.96

697.25
$697.25

304.25
$304.25

1,930.00
$1,930.00

16.00
$16.00

118.43
$118.43

84.00

84.87
$168.87



APY250

DISTRICT:
BATCH:

FUND

20178837

20178838

20178839

20178840

20178841

20178842

20178843

20178844

20178845

L.00.05

Marin County Office of Education
o COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER
047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED 11/03/2017

0017 GENERAL FUND

11/02/17 PAGE 45

2,250.00
$2,250.00

250.00
$250.00

211.14
$211.14

232.19
$232.19

3.071.95
$3.071.95

370.71
$370.71

3.,192.12

3.421.27
$6,613.39

145.20
$145.20

440.30

: 01 GENERAL FUND
VENDOR/ADDR  NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE ABA NUM  ACCOUNT NUM
REG# REFERENCE [N FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION
070945/ INFINITY COMMUNICATIONS
P0-180137 1. 01-0000-0-5840.00-0000-7200-700-000-000 7066
WARRANT TOTAL
071045/ MARINE MAMMAL CENTER
PV-180179 01-9473-0-5819.00-1110-1010-104-000-000 Edney Science Class
WARRANT TOTAL
070836/ SUSAN MARTIN
PV-180173 01-6500-0-4300.00-5770-1110-700-000- 000 Occ. Therapy Supplies
' WARRANT TOTAL
070978/ WILLIAM MCCOY
PV-180171 01-0000-0-5210.00-0000-7150-700-000-000 CCEE conference Mileage
WARRANT TOTAL
000015/ MSIA DENTAL
PV-180174 01-0000-0-9528.00-0000-0000-000-000-000 11717
WARRANT TOTAL
000117/ MSIA VISION
PV-180175 01-0000-0-9529.00-0000-0000-000-000-000 11/17
WARRANT TOTAL
000058/ PG&ECO
PG-180000 1. 01-0000-0-5510.00-0000-8200-103-000-000 10/17 WCA
2. 01-0000-0-5510.00-0000-8200-104-000-000 10/17 BHIK
WARRANT TOTAL
000558/ PRO-ED .
© PO-180123 1. 01-6513-0-4300.00-5001-3120-700-000-000 2674543
WARRANT TOTAL
070222/ PROTECTION ONE
PV-180177. 01-0000-0-5840.00-0000-8300-103-0600-000 11/17
01-0000-0-5840.00-0000-8300-104-000-000 11/17

56 of 154

429.88



APY250

DISTRICT:

BATCH:

FUND

20178846

20178847

20178848

20178849

20178850

20178851

20178852

1.00.05

047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT

Marin County Office of Education

COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER
FOR WARRANTS DATED 11/03/2017

0017 GENERAL FUND

: 01

VENDOR/ADDR  NAME (REMIT)

GENERAL FUND

DEPOSIT TYPE

REG# REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP

070384/

001206/

071047/

071036/

070200/

001531/

070759/

*xk FUND

01-0000-0-5840.00-0000-8300-700-000-000
WARRANT TOTAL

FLORA SANCHEZ

PV-180170
WARRANT TOTAL

SHELL OIL CO.

PV-180180° 01-0000-0-4301.00-0000-8110-735-000-000

WARRANT TOTAL
ELLEN SPEISER

PV-180169
WARRANT TOTAL

STAFFING OPTIONS & SOLUTIONS

PO-180107
WARRANT TOTAL

STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY CB

PV-180178 01-0000-0-9527.00- 0000-0000-000-000-000
HARRANT TOTAL
STAPLES
PV-180176 01-0000-0-4300.00-1110-1010-104-000-118

WARRANT TOTAL
VERIZON WIRELESS

P0-180013 1. 01-0000-0-5840.00-0000-7200-700-000-000

l.MDD\A‘UT TOTAL
LLA AT AT § SR R PO

TOTALS #¥* TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS: 25
: TOTAL ACH GENERATED: 0

TOTAL EFT GENERATED: 0

TOTAL PAYMENTS: 25

57 of 154

ABA NUM

01-4203-0-4300.00-1433-1010-104-000-000

01-6500-0-4300.00-5770-1110-700-000-000

1. 01-6500-0-5835.00-5770-1182-700-000-000

DESCRIPTION

ELD Flashcards

10/17

Rewards

M00203168

11/17

8046951052

11/17

TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:

TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL AMOUNT:

ACCOUNT NUM

11/02/17 PAGE 46

99.28
$969.46

34.18
$34.18

100.00
$100.00

160.80 -
$160.80

1,845.00
$1,845.00

630.48
$630.48

$22,872.47*



APY250

DISTRICT:
BATCH:
FUND

20178853

20178854

20178855

20178856

L.00.05

047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT

Marin County Office of Education

0017 GENERAL FUND

: 13

VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT)

CAFETERIA FUND

DEPOSIT TYPE

REG# REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP

070827/

070973/

070816/

070799/

*x% FUND

kK

%% DISTRICT TOTALS ***

BATCH TOTALS ***

MARIN SUN FARMS

PV-180182 13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-700-000-000

WARRANT TOTAL

ROCK ISLAND REFRIGERATED

PV-180181" 13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-700-000-000
' WARRANT TOTAL
UNFI
PV-180184 13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-700-000-000

WARRANT TOTAL
VERITABLE VEGETABLE INC.

PV-180183 13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-700-000-000
WARRANT TOTAL
TOTALS *** TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS:

TOTAL ACH GENERATED:
TOTAL EFT GENERATED:
TOTAL PAYMENTS:

O oS

TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS: 29

TOTAL ACH GENERATED: 0
TOTAL EFT GENERATED: G
TOTAL PAYMENTS: 29

TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS: 29

TOTAL ACH GENERATED: 0
TOTAL EFT GENERATED: 0
TOTAL PAYMENTS: 29

58 of 154

COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER
FOR WARRANTS DATED 11/03/2017

ABA NUM  ACCOUNT NUM
DESCRIPTION

423990

1066750

10250556-003,10261841-003

1181857

TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL AMOUNT: :

TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
TOTAL. AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL AMOUNT:

TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL AMOUNT:

11/02/17 PAGE 47

599.99
$599.99

155.98
$155.98

1,025.48
$1,025.48

143.50
$143.50

$1,924.95%
$.00%
$.00%
$1.924.95%

$24,797 .42%
$.00*
$.00*

$24,797 .42

$24,797 .42*
$.00*
$.00%

$24,797 .42«



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

BOARD MEETING MINUTES
October 16, 2017
ATTENDANCE
Board Members Present: Ida Greeri, Thomas Newmeyer, Debra Turner, Caroline Van Alst
Absent: Joshua Barrow
Superintendent: Will McCoy

The meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m.

CLOSED SESSION
The Board and Superintendent convened closed session at 5:31 p.m.

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION
Open session reconvened at 6:10 p.m.

REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION
Trustee Green announced that no action was taken in closed session.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Trustee Newmeyer led the pledge of allegiance.

REORGANIZATION OF AGENDA

Trustee Van Alst said that concerns have been raised by the County Superintendent that she has a common law
conflict of interest in decisions that affect the relationship between the district and the charter school, arising from
the fact that she has children attending the charter school. She continued: Although | do not believe that a conflict
exists, given the nature of the allegations and the ongoing investigation of the district by the Attorney General, |
am recusing myself from several items on the agenda: 8.01, 8.02: Correspondence, 10.02: Superintendent’s
Update, 11.01: Willow Creek Academy Oversight, 12.01: Facilities Workshop discussion, 13.06: Document Tracking
Services Contract {Consent) and 14.04: Revised 2016-2017 Unaudited Actuals, Fund 40 be removed from the
agenda.

Trustee Newmeyer made the same comment.

Superintendent McCoy said that after consulting with legal counsel, it has been decided to pass on the
enumerated items and bring them to the Board at the next meeting.

BOARD COMMUNICATIONS
Trustee Van Alst expressed her condolences to those affected by the wildfires and commended County
Superintendent Mary Jane Burke for her continued efforts on behalf of teachers and students.

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS
Jamie Whittington said that implementing the LCAP mandated Freedom School model at Bayside MLK Jr. Academy
would be very beneficial for our students.

CORRESPONDENCE

Superintendent McCoy pointed out that the $7000 given to the Hannah Project was a contribution and not a
donation.

59 of 154



Public Hearing on Sufficiency of Instructional Materials
Superintendent McCoy said that last year we struggled with this issue. This year, with the help of the Marin County
Office of Education, we have been able to supply sufficient instructional to our classrooms.

As there were no comments, the hearing was closed.

Update on the Center for Community Life Project by David Schnee, Group 4 Architecture

Mr. Schnee said the Buck Family Fund has pledged just under $4 million for the Community Life Project, a $24
million plan to improve senior and recreation buildings in Marin City. The first phase will be completed around
2020-21. The next public meeting on the project will be held in November.

School Leadership

Principal Finnane thanked Willow Creek Academy for its assistance in MAP (Measures of Academic Progress)
assessments. He said that parents and community members have emphasized the need for consistency and
reinforcing positive academic results and attendance in their meetings with him. He reported that there has been
significant growth and positive changes in these areas since the beginning of school.

Principal Finnane recognized the outstanding work and character of 6" grader Asia Williamson, who received a
plague and much applause from the audience.

School Partners Report

Jennifer Puckett gave an update on the district’s progress in transforming Bayside MLK Jr. Academy into a
community school. She said that we now have a database of all our outside partners and have identified areas of
importance to the school, such academic and behavior support, as well as health and wellness. In each area, we
have identified a number of partners who will assist the district in our work.

Willow Creek Academy

Head of School Tara Seekins gave a report on the charter school. Nine teachers have applied for yearly the Rotary
Club mini grants. The school has collected donations for the Sonoma Fire evacuees staying at the San Rafael Civic
Center. Enroliment stands at 411. '

Roll Call Newmeyer/Turner to Approve the Following Consent Agenda items:

Approval of the District Information Brochure

Payment of Warrants — Batches 9-13

Minutes of the September 14, 2017 Board Meeting

Donations: $1578.70 from Marin Rocks for the music program

Payment of $3720 to the Marin City Community Development District for Additional Summer School Services
Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints

Mosaic Project Field Trip — Grades 4 &5 — October 23-27, 2017

Donation of Surplus School Furniture to the Global Book Exchange

Approval of the Downing Heating & Air Conditioning, Inc. Proposal for HVAC Repair at Bayside Martin Luther King
Junior Academy in the Amount of $5,225 (Paid for with Deferred Maintenance funds)

Ayes: Green, Newmeyer, Turner, Van Alst
Noes: None
Absent: Barrow

60 of 154



Resolution 751 — Sufficiency of Instructional Materials
Roll Call Newmeyer/Van Alst to Approve Resolution 751 — Sufficiency of Instructional Materials

Ayes: Green, Newmeyer, Turner, Van Alst
Noes: None
Absent: Barrow

Approval of the 2017-2018 Policy Development Workshop Contract with the California School Boards
Association {CSBA) in the amount of $3,815 {(New)

M/s/c Van Alst/Turner to approve the 2017-2018 Policy Development Workshop Contract with the California
School Boards Association (CSBA}

Ayes: Green, Newmeyer, Turner, Van Alst
Noes: None
Absent: Barrow

Approval of the Request by Conscious Kitchen to Serve Alcohol at the Harvest Dinner Fundraiser on November 2,
2017

The Board concluded that allowing alcohol at a school site event would set an undesirable precedent. Trustee
Green asked for a motion. As there was none, the motion failed.

Approval of the Mike Brown Electric Company Proposal to Install a Variable Speed Drive (Soft Start Switch) to
the New HVAC Unit to be Installed at Bayside Martin Luther King Junior Academy in the Amount of $7,110 (paid
for from the deferred maintenance fund)

M/s/c Newmeyer/Van Alst to approve the Proposal for HAVA Repair by the Mike Brown Electric Company

Ayes: Green, Newmeyer, Turner, Van Alst
Noes: None

Absent: Barrow

ADJOURNMENT
M/s/c Van Alst/Turner to Adjourn at 7:58 p.m.
Ayes: Green, Turner, Newmeyer, Van Alst

Noes: None
Absent: Barrow

Signature/Date

Title

61 of 154



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD MEETING MINUTES '
October 24, 2017
ATTENDANCE
Board Members Present: Joshua Barrow, ida Green, Debra Turner
Absent: Thomas Newmeyer, Caroline Van Alst
Superintendent: Will McCoy

The meeting was called to order at 5:06 p.m.

AGENDA

M/s/c /Turner/Green to approve the agenda
Ayes: Barrow, Green, Turner

Noes: None

Absent: Newmeyer, Van Alst

Superintendent McCoy gave a presentation of the district’s facilities, ongoing work and short and long-
term challenges. He addressed issues at 200 Phillips Drive as well as 636 Nevada Street and the Annex
building in Marin City.

Trustees asked to review all documents related to facilities and previously proposed plans before
moving forward.

ADJOURNMENT

M/s/c Green/Turner to Adjourn at 6:33 p.m.
Ayes: Barrow, Green, Turner

Noes: None

Absent: Newmeyer, Van Alst

Signature/Date

Title

62 of 154



Sausalito Marin City School District
Agenda ltem: 11.01 Date: November 9, 2017

Correspondence [l Consent Agenda
Reports

General Functions

Pupil Services

Personnel Services

Financial & Business Procedures

Curriculum and Instruction

Policy Development

Public Hearings

COOXOOCEe

ltem Requires Board Action: [X] ltem is for Information Only: [ ]

ltem: Consider Approval of the Revised 2016-2017 Unaudited Actuals, Fund 40 Only
Background: The District received Audit Finding 2016-001 for fiscal year 2015-2016. During the
year-end closing process, a duplicate payable in the amount of $18,273 was incorrectly recorded
and was not cancelled until 2016-2017. To clear this transaction, it was necessary to reopen the

2016-2017 fiscal year and complete Journal Entry 170053. The result to this transaction increased
the Fund 40 ending fund balance by $18,273.

This is the only revision completed. The complete, revised Unaudited Actuals is available upon
request.

Addresses LCAP Goal(s)/Action(s):
n/a

Fiscal Impact: Increases ending fund balance in Fund 40 on June 30, 2017 by $18,273

Recommendation: Approve

Attachments:
e Fund 40 Original SACS Document Date September 14, 2017

¢ Revised Fund 40 SACS Document Dated October 16, 2017
o Certification Page for Signature

63 of 154



Sausalito Marin City Elementary
Marin County

Unaudited Actuals
FINANCIAL REPORTS

2016-17 Unaudited

Actuals

School District Certification

21 65474 06000000
Form CA

Signed:

UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT:

To the County Superintendent of Schools:

Signed:

Clerk/Secretary of the Governing Board
(Original signature required)

To the Superintendent of Public Instruction:

County Superintendent/Designee
(Original signature required)

2016-17 UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT. This report was prepared in accordance
with Education Code Section 41010 and is hereby approved and filed by the governing board of
the school district pursuant to Education Code Section 42100.

Date of Meeting: Nov 09, 2017

[l bncibuoolt Moo O SO

2016-17 UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT. This report has been verified for accuracy
by the County Superintendent of Schools pursuant to Education Code Section 42100.

Date:

For County Office of Education:

Kate Lane

Name
Senior Director

For additional information on the unaudited actual reports, please contact:

For School District:

Amy Prescott

Title
415-499-5822

Name
Interim Chief Business Official

Telephone
klane@marinschools.org

Title
415-332-3190

E-mail Address

Telephone
cho@smesd.org

E-mail Address

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: ca (Rev 05/30/2017)

64bgfcl 54

Printed: 11/6/2017 1:15 PM



Rovized

) o ) Unaudited Actuals -t T
Sausalito Marin City Elementary Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects lo-1 21 65474 0000000
Marin County Expenditures by Object Form 40
2016-17 2017-18 Percent
Description Resource Codes _Object Codes _Unaudited Actual Budget Difference
A. REVENUES
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099
2) Federal Revenue ‘ . 8100-8298 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.0%}
4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 1,295,629.22 30.00 -100.0%
5) TOTAL, REVENUES 1,295.629.22 | 30.00 -100.0%
B. EXPENDITURES
1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3} Employee Benefits 3000-3998 0.00 0.00 0.0%}
4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 1,500.00 0.00 -100.0%
6) Capital Outiay 6000-6999 147,978.64 148,000.00 0.0%
7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,
Costs) 7400-7499 251,746.48 252,745.00 0.4%]
8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 00: ;
9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 401,225.10 400,745.00 -0.1%]}
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 894,404.12 {400,715.00) -144.8%]
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
1} Interfund Transfers
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 253,494.39 252,745.00 -0.3%|
b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 ' 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2} Other Sources/Uses
"a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%)
b} Uses 7630-7699
3) Contributions 8980-8998
4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 253,494.39 252 745.00 -0.3%

California Dep! of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: fund-d (Rev 02/02/2016})

Paga 1
65 of 154

Printed: 10/11/2017 12:08 PM



Sausalito Marin City Elementary
Marin County

Unaudited Actuals
Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects

21 65474 0000000

Expenditures by Object Form 40
2016-17 2017-18 Percent
Description Resource Codes _ Object Codes| Unaudited Actuals Budget Difference
E. NET INCREASE {(DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) 1,147,898.51 {147,970.00) -112.9%|
F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
1) Beginning Fund Balance
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 271,212.55 1,437,384.02 430.0%}
b) Audit Adjustments 9793 18,272.96 0.00 -100.0%
c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 289,485.51 1,437.384.02 396.5%
d) Other Restatements a795 0.00 0.00 0.0%
e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (Fic + F1d) 288,485.51 1,437,384.02 396.5%
2} Ending Balance, June 30 (E + Fle) 1,437,384.02 1.289.414.02 -10.3%
Components of Ending Fund Balance ~——
a) Nonspendable
Revolving Cash 9711 0.0%:
Stores 9712 ; 0093
Prepaid Expenditures 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Reslricted 9740
¢} Committed
Stabilization Arrangements 9750
Other Commitments 9760
d) Assigned
Other Assignments 9780
e) Unassigned/Unapprapriated
Reserve for Economic Uncerlainties 9788
Unasgsigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790

Califomia Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
Fila: fund-d (Rev 02/02/2016)

Page 2
66 of 154

Printed: 10/11/2017 12:09 PM



Unaudited Actuals

Sausalito Marin City Elementary Special Reserve Fund for Capital Qutlay Projects 21 65474 0000000
Marin County Expenditures by Object Form 40
2016-17 201718 Percent
Description Resource Codes _ Object Codes| Unaudited Actuals Budget Difference
G. ASSETS ‘
1) Cash

a) in County Treasury 9110 1,740,654.48

1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 8111 0.00

b}in Banks 9120 0.00

¢} in Revolving Fund ’ 9130 0.00

d) with Fiscal Agent 9135 0.00

e} collections awaiting deposit 9140 0.00

2) Investments 9150 0.00

3) Accounts Recei\;able 9200 0.00

4) Due from Grantor Government 9290 0.00

5) Due from Other Funds ' 9310 0.00

6) Stores i 9320

7) Prepaid Expenditures 9330 . 0.00

8} Cther Current Assets . 9340 0.00

9) TOTAL, ASSETS 1,740,654.48

H. DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

1) Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490 0.00
2) TOTAL, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 0.00
{. LIABILITIES
1) Accounts Payable 9500 0.00 >
i —
2) Due to Grantor Governments 9590 0.00
3) Due fo Other Funds 9610 303,270.46
4) Current Loans . ; 8640 0.00
5) Unearned Revenue 9650 0.00
6) TOTAL, LIABILITIES ‘ 303,270.46

J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

1) Deferred Inflows of Resources : 9690 0.00
2) TOTAL, DEFERRED INFLOWS 0.00
K. FUND EQUITY

Ending Fund Balance, June 30
{must agree with line F2) (G9 + H2) - (16 + J2) 1,437,384.02

California Dept of Education 2
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0 .
File: fund-d {Rev 02332/2316) Page 3 Printed: 10/11/2017 12:03 PM

67 of 154



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

2016 - 001/ 30000

SECTION Il - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

MATERIAL WEAKNESS

FINANCIAL REPORTING - UNAUDITED ACTUALS

Criteria:

Conditions:

Questiocned Costs:

Context:

Effects:

Causes:

1-2.

O

Each year, school districts are responsible for preparing complete and
accurate financial information, which is reported to the California
Department of Education in the form of the "Unaudited Actuals”
Financial Report. Accordingly, school districts should have an effective
system of internal control over financial reporting that will ensure
that the information contained in the report is free of material
misstatements.

A duplicate accounts payable accrual in the amount of $18,273 was
incorrectly recorded in fiscal year 2015-16 and was not cancelled until
fiscal year 2016-17.

A payment in the amount of $33,250, related to pre-election costs
associated with placing a bond measure on the November 2016 ballot,
was incorrectly recorded in the Deferred Maintenance Fund, instead of
the General Fund.

None. The financial statements have been adjusted to correct the
misstatements as reflected on page 74.

The District’'s internal control system detected the duplicate year-end
accrual however, the District did not record a journal entry to properly
adjust the books prior to closing.

The payment was not consistent with the purpose of the Deferred
Maintenance Fund.

Capital outlay expenditures were overstated in the Capital Projects -
Special Reserve Fund in fiscal year 2015-18.

Contract services expenditures were understated in the General
Fund and overstated in the Deferred Maintenance Fund, in fiscal year
2015-186.

District personnel were unaware that if an accrual cannot be cancelled,

a manual journal entry is required to propetly adjust the year-end
accrual to ensure that expenditures are not misstated.

The account coding of the expenditure was initially miscoded and the
District’s internal control system did not detect and correct the error.

86

68 of 154



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL REPORTING - UNAUDITED ACTUALS (CONCLUDED)

Recommendations: 1.

District Responses:

The District should develop a comprehensive financial reporting
checklist, which can be used by staff during the year-end closing
process, to prevent material misstatements from occurring in the
future. District personnel should receive in-service training to
understand the significance of year-end cut-off procedures.

The District should establish internal control procedures to ensure that
account coding is properly reviewed by appropriate supervisors.

The District is still determining the reason for the findings noted in this
section. The District will be establishing effective internal controls and
separation of duties. Regarding these specific findings:

The District will provide specific training and provide staff a checklist
and written procedures for the year end closing process. This will be
in place for the close of the 2016-2017 fiscal year.

The District will provide specific training in two areas:

a. The District will develop written procedures for properly coding
payments and will ensure that all payments processed are
reviewed and authorized by a secondary person.

b. The District will provide staff with an updated copy of the
California School Accounting Manual and provide opportunities
to staff to attend trainings in the area of school accounting.

87

69 of 154



Transaction Detail Display -- Acct 40-0000-0-9510.00-0000-0000-000-000-000 Page 1 of 1

District: 047 Year: 2017 Account Activity QSS/OASIS
Page 1 of 1

FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP
40-0000~-0-9510.00~-0000-0000~000-000~000
Description:
Account status: Open Roll Flag: Pseudo Code:
FUND: 40  SPECIAL RESERVE~CAP OUTLAY #1
RESOURCE: 0000 NO REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
PROJYR: 0 PROJECT YEAR
OBJECT: 9510 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
SUB-OBJT: 00 DEFAULT VALUE
GOAL: 0000 UNDISTRIBUTED
FUNCTION: 0000 REVENUES OR BALANCE SHEET
SCHOOL: 000 UNDEFINED
DIST 1: 000 DEFAULT
DIST 2: 000 DEFAULT

Start Date: 07/01/2016 Include: Unapproved GL Trx? N
Budget Type: Revised - Budget Transfers? ¥
Unapproved BT's? N )

/var/opt/qss/data/ACTDET last updated WED, OCT 11, 2017, 03:02 AM

Beginning Balance Exp/Rec Eng Baiance

Total: -301,863.39 301,863.39 0.00 0.00
1 account(s) and 6 detail record(s) selected.

Reference Date Descrigtion ’ Satan‘re Exp/Rec Enc Balance
BB-000000 07/01/2016 BEGINNING BALANCE -301,863.39 0.00 0.00-301,863.39
CL-160010 07/11/2016 CODY ANDERSON WASNEY PO- 0616.16001 Ve: 070934 0.00 18,272.96 0.00-283,590.43
(047/17) Wr: 20132570
CL-160053 07/29/2016 CODY ANDERSON WASNEY PO- 0616.16001 Ve: 070934 0.00 18,272.96 0.00-265,317.47
(047/17) Wr: 20134280
CL-160061 08/05/2016 AMERICAN TECHNOLOGIES INC PO- 7273412674-01 0.00 265,317.47 0.00 0.00
© Ve: 070964(047/17) Wr: 20134690
Ci-160053 08/17/2016 CODY ANDERSON WASNEY Ve: 070934(047/17) Wr: 0.00 -18,272.96 0.00 -18,272.96
20134280
f‘é‘ JE-170053 06/30/2017 15-16 Audit adj Post Prior period adj fd 40 0.00 18,272.96 0.00 0.00
Total: -301,863.39 301,863.39 0.00 0.00
Template: acctdet (L.00.03)
Generated: 10/11/2017 at 11:42:53 AM
Page 1 of 1

file:///C:/U sers/apresco’ct/AppData/Roaming/qss%serfF@II%sA/fSVR. 199.88.112.3. PORT.296... 10/11/2017
0] .



5u,bmiH~eoL

Unaudited Actuals
Sausalito Marin City Elementary Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects q-] Y- ?‘ 21 65474 0000000
Marin County Expenditures by Object Form 40
201617 2017-18 Percent
Description Resgurce Codes __ Object Codes, Unaudited Actu_g_}s : Budqgt — . D@encé A
A. REVENUES : :
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8089 v ‘:‘6‘.0“0‘, oo0| ‘6.%
2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 ‘ 0.0%
3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.0%,
4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 1,295,629.22 30.00 -100.0%
5) TOTAL, REVENUES ..1,205,629.22 3000 -100.0%|
B. EXPENDITURES i ‘
1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 00| 0.0%
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2998 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) Books and Supplies 4000-4989 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5989 1,500.00 0.60 -100.0%
6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 147,978.64 148,000.00 0.0%
7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of indirect 7100-7289,
Costs) 7400-7499 251,746.46 | 252.745.00 _04%
8) Other Qutgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 . 000 S : 000 ey . b.o%
9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 401,225.10 400,745.00 ~0.19’]
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER ,
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 894,404.12 {400,715.00) -144.8%}
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
1} Interfund Transfers )
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 253,494.39 252,745.00 -0.3%)
b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Other Sources/Uses
a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 __ 0.0%
3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00] ool oo
4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 253,494.39 252.745.00 -0.3%

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: fund-d {Rev 02/02/2016)

7181 154

Printed: 10/11/2017 11:27 AM



Sausalito Marin City Elementary

Unaudited Actuals
Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects

2165474 0000000

Marin County Expenditures by Object Form 40
2016-17 2017-18 Percent
Description Resource Codes  Object Codes |_Unaudited Actuals Budget Difference
|E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND .
___BALANCE (C + D4) 1,147,898.51 {147.970.00) -112.9%)
F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
1) Beginning Fund Balance
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 271,212.55 1,418,111.06 423.2%
b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%
- ¢) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 271,212.55 1,418,111.06 423.2%]
d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 271,212.55 1,419,111.06 423.2%
2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) V4 1,419,111.06 7 1,271,141.06 -10.4%
Components of Ending Fund Balance — o
a) Nonspendable
Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Stores 9712 0.00 - 000 00%
Prepaid Expenditures 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%}
All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.0%
¢} Committed L e B
Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0:.00 -0.00 0.0%!
Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%
d) Assigned
Other Assignments 9780 1,419,111.06 ; 1.271,141.06 -10.4%
€) UnassignedfUnappropriated o | k ', S L
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 S0.00 20.0%
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%j

Californla Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
Fite: fund-d (Rev 02/02/2016)

72154

Printad: 10/11/2017 11:27 AM



Unaudited Actuals

Sausalito Marin City Elementary Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects 2165474 0000000
Marin County Expenditures by Object Form 40
201617 201718 Percent
Description Resource Codes __Object Codes| Unaudited Actuals Budget Difference
G. ASSETS
1) Cash

a) in County Treasury 9110 1,487,408.02

1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash iﬁ County Treasury 9111 0.00

b) in Banks 9120 0.00

¢} in Revolving Fund 9130 0.00

d) with Fiscal Agent 9135 0.00

e) collections awaiting deposit 9140 0.00

2) investments 9150 0.00

3) Accounts Receivable 9200 0.00

4) Due from Grantor Govemment 9290 0.00

5) Due from Other Funds 9310 0.00

6) Stores 9320 e S 0;00

7) Prepaid Expenditures 9330 0.00

8) Other Current Assets 9340 0.00

9) TOTAL, ASSETS 1,487.408.02

H. DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

1) Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490 0.00
2) TOTAL, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 0.00
1. LIABILITIES .
1) Accounts Payable . 9500 /18;-2; )
2) Due to Grantor Governments . 9580 \FBD/
3) Due to Other Funds 9610 50,024.00
4) Current Loans 9640 0.00
5) Unearned Revenue 9650 0.00
6) TOTAL, LIABILITIES 68,296.96
J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES
1) Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 » 0.00
2) TOTAL, DEFERRED INFLOWS 4 0.00
K. FUND EQUITY

Ending Fund Balance, June 30
{__{must agree with line F2) (G9 + H2) - (I6 + J2) 1,419.111.06

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0 ]
File: fund-d (Rev 02/02/2016} 7 3’%? 1 5 4 Printed: 1011172017 11:27 AM



Sausalito Marin City School District
Agenda ltem: 11.02 Date: November 9, 2017

Correspondence [ ] Consent Agenda
Reports

General Functions

Pupil Services

Personnel Services

Financial & Business Procedures
Curriculum and Instruction

Policy Development

Public Hearings

)< I

ltem Requires Board Action: [X] ltem is for Information Only: []

ltem: Acknowledgement of Receipt of the Sausalito District Teachers (SDTA) Initial Bargaining
Proposal in Order to Begin the Sunshining Process for the 2017-18 School Year.

Background: The Sausalito District Teachers (SDTA) has submitted an initial bargaining proposal
for the 2017-18 school year. .

In accordance with provisions of the Educational Employment Relations Act (EERA), prior to the
commencement of contract negotiations between a Governing Board and any represented employee
group, initial contract proposals must be publicly disclosed (e.g. "sunshined") at a regular meeting of
the Board of Trustees.

SDTA is opening the following articles of the collective bargaining agreement for negotiations fof the
2017-18 school year:

Article X1V - Salaries

Article XV — Ceriificated Employees’ Benefits

Article VIl - Leaves

Article VII — Payment for Non-teaching and Extra Curricular Duties

The District does not have any Articles to open at this time. We look forward to productive
discussions with the SDTA team this year, and are happy to schedule a session at the earliest
mutual convenience.

Addresses LCAP Goal(s)/Action(s): n/a

Fiscal Impact: n/a

Recommendation: Acknowledge receipt of the Sausalito District Teachers Association contract
proposals for the 2017-2018 school year.

Attachments: SDTA Bargaining Proposal for 2017-2018

74 of 154



10/11/2017

Will McCoy, Superintendent
Sausalito Marin City School District
200 Phillips Drive

Sausalito, CA 94965

Dear Mr. McCoy,

Pursuant to the provisions of the Educational Employment Relations Act, the Sausalito
District Teachers Association is hereby providing notice that it intends to open the
collective-bargaining negotiations process in order to address the following priorities:

1. Article XIV Salaries, with the intention of improving total compensation for
bargaining unit members.

2. Article XV Certificated Employees’ Benefits, with the intention of increasing the
District contribution for benefits

3. Article VIl Leaves, with the intention of improving the leave benefits of
bargaining unit members

4. Article VIl Payment for Non-teaching and Extra Curricular Duties, with the
intention of improving compensation for these duties

As you know, the Act requires that these bargaining priorities be presented at a public
session of the District Board of Trustees prior to the beginning of active negotiations.
Accordingly, please place this notice on the agenda for the next meeting of the
Sausalito Marin City School District Board of Trustees. In the interest of expediting the
negotiations process, the Association requests that the District also identify its
bargaining priorities at that meeting.

Sincerely,

Jennie Fung & Scott Haddad, Bargaining Chairs
Sausalito District Teachers Association

cc:  Daniel Reynolds, CTA Regional UniServ Staff

75 of 154



Sausalito Marin City School District
Agenda Iltem: 13.01 - 08 Date: November 9, 2017

Correspondence X Consent Agenda
Reports ‘

General Functions

Pupil Services

Personnel Services

Financial & Business Procedures

Curriculum and Instruction

Policy Development

Public Hearings

OO

Item Requires Board Action: [_] ltem is for Information Only: [X]
Iltem: Board Policies for Review
Background:

As discussed previously, | will be bringing policy updates to the Board over the next several
months. We have a workshop scheduled with CSBA to update all policies in January. However,
there are some policies that are more timely and that need attention from the Board prior o a

February adoption meeting. | have selected a few of those policies for a FIRST READING and
discussion, if needed.

We have provided the Board with copies of the old policies, as well as the proposed revised
policies. For administrative regulation 3230 and policy 3470, no old versions are available.
Additionally, some of the proposed revised policies have options from which to choose. | have made
recommendations to the Board about the options that | believe best suit the direction, need and ‘
specifics of the district.

For the FIRST READING (November), there is no action to be taken. Board Members read the old
and new policies, and may ask questions or discuss any of the information. At the subsequent

meeting, the Board may continue to discuss the new policies, or may move to adopt the revised
policy. '

Moving forward, it may be the case that we have some policies that are on the FIRST READING,
while others are on the agenda for SECOND READING/ADOPTION.

The goal of this work is to have all of the Board Policies up to date by February or March.
Recommendation: First Read

Attachments: Policies

76 of 154



Sausalito Marin City SD
Board Policy

Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

BP 0410 2008

Philesophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans

The Board of Trustees is committed to equal opportunity for all individuals in education. District programs and
activities shall be free from discrimination based on gender, sex, race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin,
ethnic group identification, marital or parental status, physical or mental disability, sexual orientation or the
perception of one or more of such characteristics. The Board shall promote programs which ensure that
discriminatory practices are eliminated in all district activities.

Discrimination in education programs and activities is prohibited by state and federal law. Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC 2000d-2000d-7) prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color and national
origin. Title IX (20 USC 1681-1688) prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex. The Americans with
Disabilities Act (ADA) (42 USC 12101-12213) and Section 504 of the Vocational Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29
USC 794) prohibit discrimination on the basis of disability. State law, Government Code 12940, prohibits
employers from discriminating on the basis of all categories listed below, including discrimination on the basis of
sexual orientation. Government Code 11138 mandates districts to adopt rules and regulations to carry out the
intent of this nondiscrimination provision. Education Code 220 also prohibits discrimination on the basis of
sexual orientation in all programs and activities in public schools. The Office for Civil Rights (OCR) of the U.S.
Department of Education has authority to enforce federal laws in all programs and activities that receive federal
funds. The California Department of Education may also investigate complaints regarding discrimination
through the Uniform Complaint Procedure, see BP/AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures.

Education Code 260 and the implementing regulations at 5 CCR 4900-4965 specify that the Board has primary
responsibility for ensuring that district programs and activities are free from discrimination on the basis of both
sex and gender, among other categories. 5 CCR 4910 defines "sex" as the biological condition or quality of
being a female or male human being. "Gender," pursuant to 5 CCR 4910, is defined as a person's actual sex or
perceived sex and includes a person's perceived identity, appearance or behavior, whether or not that identity,
appearance, or behavior is different from that traditionally associated with a person's sex at birth. In accordance
with those definitions, the following paragraph lists both "sex" and "gender" as prohibited categories of
discrimination. :

(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment)

(cf. 4032 - Reasonable Accommodation)

(cf. 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment)

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)

(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)

(cf. 5146 - Married/Prégnant/Parenting Students)

(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition)

(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education)

(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504) '

(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) :

(cf. 6200 - Adult Education)

District programs and facilities, viewed in their entirety, shall be in compliance with the Americans with
Disabilities Act.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district provides auxiliary aids and services when necessary
77 of 154



to afford individuals with disabilities equal opportunity to participate in or enjoy the benefits of a service, program
oractivity. These aids and services may include, but are not limited to, qualified interpreters or readers, assistive
listening devices, notetakers, written materials, taped text, and Braille or large print materials.

(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)

Individuals with disabilities shall notify the Superintendent or principal if they have a disability that requires
special assistance or services. Reasonable notification should be given prior to the school-sponsored function,
program or meeting.

(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)
(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials)

The Superintendent or designee shall notify students, parents/guardians, employees, employee organizations and
applicants for admission and employment, and sources of referral for applicants about the district's policy on
nondiscrimination. Such notification shall be included in each announcement, bulletin, catalog, application form
or other recruitment materials distributed to these groups. (34 CFR 104.8, 106.9)

The Superintendent or designee shall also provide information about related complaint procedures.

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)
(cf. 4031 - Complaints Concerning Discrimination in Employment)

Pursuant to Education Code 48985, when 15 percent or more of students enrolled in a school speak a single
primary language other than English, all notices and reports sent to the parents/guardians of these students must
also be written in the primary language and may be answered by the parent/guardian in English or the primary
language. In addition, the No Child Left Behind Act (20 USC 6311 and 6312) requires that districts receiving
Title I funds provide parent/guardian notices in an understandable and uniform format and, to the extent
practicable, in a language that parents/guardians understand.

In compliance with law, the district's nondiscrimination policy shall be published in the individual's primary
language to the extent practicable.
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

200-262 4 Prohibition of discrimiration

48985 Notices to parents in language other than English
GOVERNMENT CODE

11000 Definitions

11138 Rules and regulations

12900-12996 Fair Employment and Housing Act

54953.2 Brown Act compliance with Americans with Disabilities Act
PENAL CODE

422.55 Definition of hate crime

422.6 Interference with constitutional right or privilege

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

4900-4965 Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs receiving state financial
assistance

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

1400-1482 Individuals with Disabilities in Education Act

1681-1688 Discrimination based on sex or blindness, Title IX

78 of 154



2301-2415 Carl D. Perkins Vocational and Applied Technology Act

6311 State plans

6312 Local education agency plans

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29

794 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42

2000d-2000d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964

2000e-2000e-17 Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended
2000h-2000h-6 Title IX

12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28

35.101-35.190 Americans with Disabilities Act

36.303 Auxiliary aids and services

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34

100.1-100.13 Nondiscrimination in federal programs, effectuating Title VI
104.1-104.39 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973

106.1-106.61 Discrimination on the basis of sex, effectuating Title IX, especially:
106.9 Dissemination of policy

Management Resources:

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE OF CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS
Protecting Students from Harassment and Hate Crime, January, 1999

Notice of Non-Discrimination, January, 1999

Nondiscrimination in Employment Practices in Education, August 1991

WEB SITES ' A

U.S. Department of Education, Office of Civil Rights: http://www.ed.gov/offices/fOCR
CDE: http://www.cde.ca.gov

Safe Schools Coalition: http://www.casafeschoolscoalition.org

Pacific Disability and Business Technical Assistance Center: http://www.pacdbtac.org

Policy SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: November 13, 2008 Sausalito, California

79 of 154



Sausalito Marin City School District

Board Policy

BP 0410 PROPOSED
Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans

The Governing Board is committed to providing equal opportunity for all individuals in education.
District programs, activities, and practices shall be free from unlawful discrimination, including
discrimination against an individual or group based on race, color, ancestry, nationality, national
origin, ethnic group identification, age, religion, marital, pregnancy, or parental status, physical or
mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity or expression, or genetic
information; a perception of one or more of such characteristics; or association with a person or
group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics.

(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance)

(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment)

(cf. 4032 - Reasonable Accommodation)

(cf. 4033 - Lactation Accommodation)

(cf. 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment)

(cf. 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave)
(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying)

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)

(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)

(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students)

(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities)

(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition)

(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education)
(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504)
(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education)

(cf. 6200 - Adult Education)

District programs and activities shall also be free of any racially derogatory or discriminatory
school or athletic team names, mascots, or nicknames.

Annually, the Superintendent or designee shall review district programs and activities to ensure
the removal of any derogatory or discriminatory name, image, practice, or other barrier that may
unlawfully prevent an individual or group in any of the protected categories stated above from
accessing district programs and activities. He/she shall take prompt, reasonable actions to remove
any identified barrier. The Superintendent or designee shall report his/her findings and
recommendations to the Board after each review.

(cf. 1330 - Use of Facilities)

All allegations of unlawful discrimination in district programs and activities shall be investigated

80 of 154



and resolved in accordance with the procedures specified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint
Procedures.

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)

Pursuant to 34 CFR 104.8 and 34 CFR 106.9, the Superintendent or designee shall notify students,
parents/guardians, employees, employee organizations, applicants for admission and employment,
and sources of referral for applicants about the district's policy on nondiscrimination and related
complaint procedures. Such notification shall be included in each announcement, bulletin, catalog,
handbook, application form, or other materials distributed to these groups and, as applicable, to the
public. As appropriate, such notification shall be posted in district schools and offices, including
staff lounges, student government meeting rooms, and other prominent locations and shall be
posted on the district's web site and, when available, district-supported social media.

(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites)

(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media)

(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications)
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

The district's nondiscrimination policy and related informational materials shall be published in a
format that parents/guardians can understand. In addition, when 15 percent or more of a school's
students speak a single primary language other than English, those materials shall be translated
into that other language.

Access for Individuals with Disabilities

District programs and facilities, viewed in their entirety, shall be in compliance with the
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and any implementing standards and/or regulations.
When structural changes to existing district facilities are needed to provide individuals with
disabilities access to programs, services, activities, or facilities, the Superintendent or designee
shall develop a transition plan that sets forth the steps for completing the changes.

(cf. 6163.2 - Animals at School)
(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan)
(cf. 7111 - Evaluating Existing Buildings)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district provides appropriate auxiliary aids
and services when necessary to afford individuals with disabilities equal opportunity to participate
in or enjoy the benefits of a service, program, or activity. These aids and services may include, but
are not limited to, qualified interpreters or readers, assistive listening devices, assistive
technologies or other modifications to increase accessibility to district and school web sites,
notetakers, written materials, taped text, and Braille or large print materials. Individuals with
disabilities shall notify the Superintendent or principal if they have a disability that requires special
assistance or services. Reasonable notification should be given prior to a school-sponsored
function, program, or meeting.

81 of 154



(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)
(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials)

The individual identified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures as the employee
responsible for coordinating the district's response to complaints and for complying with state and
federal civil rights laws is hereby designated as the district's ADA coordinator. He/she shall
receive and address requests for accommodation submitted by individuals with disabilities, and
shall investigate and resolve complaints regarding their access to district programs, services,
activities, or facilities.

Superintendent

200 Phillips Drive, Sausalito, CA 94965
415-332-3190

wmecov(@smesd.org

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

200-262.4 Prohibition of discrimination

48985 Notices to parents in language other than English

51007 Legislative intent: state policy

GOVERNMENT CODE

11000 Definitions

11135 Nondiscrimination in programs or activities funded by state
11138 Rules and regulations

12900-12996 Fair Employment and Housing Act

54953.2 Brown Act compliance with Americans with Disabilities Act
PENAL CODE

422.55 Definition of hate crime

422.6 Interference with constitutional right or privilege

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

4600-4687 Uniform complaint procedures :
4900-4965 Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20° ,
1400-1482 Individuals with Disabilities in Education Act

1681-1688 Discrimination based on sex or blindness, Title IX
2301-2415 Carl D. Perkins Vocational and Applied Technology Act
6311 State plans ,

6312 Local education agency plans

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29

794 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42

2000d-2000d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964

2000e-2000e-17 Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended
2000h-2000h-6 Title IX

12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

82 of 154



CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28

35.101-35.190 Americans with Disabilities Act

36.303 Auxiliary aids and services

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34

100.1-100.13 Nondiscrimination in federal programs, effectuating Title VI
104.1-104.39 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973

106.1-106.61 Discrimination on the basis of sex, effectuating Title IX, especially:
106.9 Dissemination of policy

Management Resources:

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Updated Legal Guidance: Protecting Transgender and Gender Nonconforming Students Against
Sex Discrimination, July 2016

Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and
Gender-Nonconforming Students, Policy Brief, February 2014

Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FAIR EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING PUBLICATIONS
California Law Prohibits Workplace Discrimination and Harassment

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS
Examples of Policies and Emerging Practices for Supporting Transgender Students, May 2016
Dear Colleague Letter: Title IX Coordinators, April 2015

Dear Colleague Letter: Harassment and Bullying, October 2010

Dear Colleague Letter: Electronic Book Readers, June 29, 2010

Notice of Non-Discrimination, January 1999

Protecting Students from Harassment and Hate Crime, January 1999

Nondiscrimination in Employment Practices in Education, August 1991

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE PUBLICATIONS

2010 ADA Standards for Accessible Design, September 2010

Accessibility of State and Local Government Websites to People with Disabilities, June 2003
WORLD WIDE WEB CONSORTIUM PUBLICATIONS

Web Content Acce551b111ty Guidelines, December 2008

WEB SITES ... . ..

CSBA: http://www. csba org

California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov R

California Department of Fair Employment and Housing: http://www.dfeh.ca.gov

Safe Schools Coalition: http://www.casafeschools.org

Pacific ADA Center: http://www.adapacific.org

U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr
U.S. Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division, Americans with Disabilities Act:
http://www.ada.gov

U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission: http://www.eeoc.gov

World Wide Web Consortium, Web Accessibility Initiative: http://www.w3.org/wai

83 of 154



Sausalito Marin City SD
Board Policy

Comprehensive Local Plan For Specnal Education

BP 0430 2008

Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans

The Board of Trustees desires to provide a free appropriate public education to all individuals with disabilities,
aged 3 to 21 years, who reside in the district, including children who have been suspended or expelled or placed
by the district in a nonpublic, nonsectarian school.

Students shall be referred for special education instruction and services only after the resources of the regular
education program have been considered, and where appropriate, utilized. (Education Code 56303)

(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))

(cf. 6146.4 - Differential Graduation and Competency Standards for Students with Disabilities)
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program)

(cf. 6159.1 - Procedural Safeguards and Complaints for Special Education)

(cf. 6159.2 - Nonpublic Nonsectarian School and Agency Services for Special Education)

(cf. 6159.3 - Appointment of Surrogate Parent for Special Education Students)

(cf. 6159.4 - Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students)

(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education)

(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504)

Education Code 56195.1 requires a local plan for the education of all individuals with disabilities residing in the
district. This plan may be developed in conjunction with other districts.

The special education local plan area (SELPA) shall administer a local plan and administer the allocation of
funds. (Education Code 56195)

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)

(cf. 3541.2 - Transportation for Students with Disabilities)
(cf. 4112.23 - Special Education Staff)

In order to meet the needs of individuals with disabilities and employ staff with adequate expertise for this
purpose, the district participates as a member of the SELPA.

The Superintendent or designee shall extend the district's full cooperation to the SELPA. The policies and
procedures of the SELPA shall be applied as policies and regulations of this district, with the exception of those
that apply to complaints, unless the SELPA plan specifically authorizes the district to operate under its own
policies and regulations.

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

56000-56001 Education for individuals with exceptional needs
56020-56035 Definitions ,

56040-56046 General provisions

56048-56050 Surrogate parents

56055 Foster parents

84 of 154



56060-56063 Substitute teachers

56170-56177 Children enrolled in private schools

56190-56194 Community advisory committees

56195-56195.10 Local plans

56205-56208 Local plan requirements

56213 Special education local plan areas with small or sparse populations
56240-56245 Staff development

56300-56385 Identification and referral, assessment, instructional planning
56440-56447.1 Programs for individuals between the ages of three and five years
56500-56508 Procedural safeguards, including due process rights

56520-56524 Behavioral interventions

56600-56606 Evaluation, audits and information

56836-56836.05 Administration of local plan

GOVERNMENT CODE

7579.5 Surrogate parent, appointment, qualifications, liability

95000-95029 California Early Intervention Services Act

WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE

361 Limitations on parental control

726 Limitations on parental control

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

3000-3089 Regulations governing special education

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

1400-1482 Individuals with Disabilities Education Act

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29

794 Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 504

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42

12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34

99.10-99.22 Inspection, review and procedures for amending education records
104.1-104.39 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973

- 300.1-300.818 Assistance to states for the education of children with disabilities, including:
300.500-300.520 Due process procedures for parents and children

303.1-303.654 Early intervention program for infants and toddlers with disabilities
Management Resources: . =

WEB SITES
Caiifornia Department of Education, Special Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/se
U.S. Department of Education, Office of Special Education Programs:
http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/osers/osep

Policy SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: October 9, 2008  Sausalito, California

85 of 154



CSBA Sample
Board Policy

Comprehensive Local Plan For Special Education

BP 0430 PROPOSED
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans

The Governing Board desires to provide a free appropriate public education to all individuals with
disabilities, aged 3 to 21 years, who reside in the district, including children who have been
suspended or expelled or placed by the district in a nonpublic, nonsectarian school.

Students shall be referred for special education instruction and services only after the resources of
the regular education program have been considered, and where appropriate, utilized. (Education
Code 56303)

(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))

(cf. 6146.4 - Differential Graduation and Competency Standards for Students with Disabilities)
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program)

(cf. 6159.1 - Procedural Safeguards and Complaints for Special Education)

(cf. 6159.2 - Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School and Agency Services for Special Education)

(cf. 6159.3 - Appointment of Surrogate Parent for Special Education Students)

(cf. 6159.4 - Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students)

(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education)

(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504)

The special education local plan area (SELPA) shall administer a local plan and administer the
allocation of funds. (Education Code 56195)

- {cf, 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)-.

14 X T L g o R et 2 L i e e e 5L b S G g g Mt g i, G Bt g

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)
(cf. 3541.2 - Transportation for Students with Disabilities)
(cf. 4112.23 - Special Education Staff)

OPTION 1: (Districts that participate in a multidistrict SELPA) PROPOSED

In order to meet the needs of individuals with disabilities and employ staff with adequate expertise
for this purpose, the district participates as a member of the SELPA.

The Superintendent or designee shall extend the district's full cooperation to the SELPA. The
policies and procedures of the SELPA shall be applied as policies and regulations of this district,
with the exception of those that apply to complaints, unless the SELPA plan specifically authorizes
the district to operate under its own policies and regulations. -

86 of 154



OPTION 2: (Single-district SELPA)

In order to meet the needs of individuals with disabilities and employ staff with adequate expertise
for this purpose, the district shall serve as a SELPA.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop a local plan for the education of individuals with
disabilities residing in the district. The plan shall be approved by the Board.

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

56000-56001 Education for individuals with exceptional needs
56020-56035 Definitions

56040-56046 General provisions

56048-56050 Surrogate parents

56055 Foster parents

56060-56063 Substitute teachers

56170-56177 Children enrolled in private schools

56190-56194 Community advisory committees

56195-56195.10 Local plans

56205-56208 Local plan requirements

56213 Special education local plan areas with small or sparse populations
56240-56245 Staff development

56300-56385 Identification and referral, assessment, instructional planning
56440-56447.1 Programs for individuals between the ages of three and five years
56500-56508 Procedural safeguards, including due process rights
56520-56524 Behavioral interventions

56600-56606 Evaluation, audits and information

56836-56836.05 Administration of local plan

GOVERNMENT CODE

7579.5 Surrogate parent, appointment, qualifications, liability
95000-95029 California Early Intervention Services Act

~ WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE™ ™ =~ 7™
361 Limitations on parental control

726 Limitations on parental control

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
3000-3089 Regulations governing special education

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

1400-1482 Individuals with Disabilities Education Act

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29

794 Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 504

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42

12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34

99.10-99.22 Inspection, review and procedures for amending education records
104.1-104.39 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973

87 of 154

s g S e S b L g R S g S g e a1 R e s



Sausalito Marin City SD

Administrative Regulation
Uniform Complaint Procedures

AR 13123 2010

Community Relations
Compliance Officers

The Board of Trustees designates the following compliance officer to receive and investigate
complaints and to ensure district compliance with law:

Business Manager

Sausalito Marin City School District
630 Nevada Street

Sausalito, CA 94965
415-332-3190

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees designated to investigate complaints
are knowledgeable about the laws and programs for which they are responsible. Designated
employees may have access to legal counsel as determined by the Superintendent or designee.
(cf. 9124 - Attorney)

Notifications

The Superintendent or designee shall annually provide written notification of the district's uniform
complaint procedures to students, employees, parents/guardians, the district advisory committee,
school advisory committees, appropriate private school officials or representatives, and other

interested parties. (5 CCR 4622)

The Superintendent or designe¢ shall make available copies of the district's uniform complaint
procedures free of charge. (5 CCR 4622)

The notice shall:
1. Identify the person(s), position(s), or unit(s) responsible for receiving complaints

2. Advise the complainant of any civil law remedies that may be available to him/her under
state or federal discrimination laws, if applicable

3. Advise the complainant of the appeal process pursuant to Education Code 262.3, including

the complainant's right to take a complaint directly to the California Department of Education
(CDE) or to pursue remedies before civil courts or other public agencies

88 of 154



4. Include statements that:

a. The district is primarily responsible for compliance with state and federal laws and
regulations
b. The complaint review shall be completed within 60 calendar days from the date of receipt

of the complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to an extension of the timeline

c. An unlawful discrimination complaint must be filed not later than six months from the date
the alleged discrimination occurs, or six months from the date the complainant first obtains
knowledge of the facts of the alleged discrimination

d. The complainant has a right to appeal the district's decision to the CDE by filing a written
appeal within 15 days of receiving the district's decision

e. The appeal to the CDE must include a copy of the complaint filed with the district and a
copy of the district's decision

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)
Procedures

The following procedures shall be used to address all complaints which allege that the district has
violated federal or state laws or regulations governing educational programs. Compliance
officers shall maintain a record of each complaint and subsequent related actions, including all
information required for compliance with 5 CCR 4631 and 4633.

All parties involved in allegations shall be notified when a complaint is filed, when a complaint
meeting or hearing is scheduled, and when a decision or ruling is made.

Step 1: Filing of Complaint

Any individual, public agency, or organization may file a Wwritten complaint of alleged ™"
noncompliance by the district. (S CCR 4630)

A complaint alleging unlawful discrimination shall be initiated no later than six months from the
date when the alleged discrimination occurred, or six months from the date when the complainant
first obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged discrimination. A complaint may be filed by a
person who alleges that he/she personally suffered unlawful discrimination or by a person who
believes that an individual or any specific class of individuals has been subjected to unlawful
discrimination. (5 CCR 4630)

The complaint shall be presented to the compliance officer who shall maintain a log of complaints
received, providing each with a code number and a date stamp.

If a complainant is unable to put a complaint in writing due to conditions such as a disability or

89 of 154



illiteracy, district staff shall assist him/her in the filing of the complaint. (5 CCR 4600)
Step 2: Mediation

Within three days of receiving the complaint, the compliance officer may informally discuss with
the complainant the possibility of using mediation. If the complainant agrees to mediation, the
compliance officer shall make all arrangements for this process.

Before initiating the mediation of a discrimination complaint, the compliance officer shall ensure
that all parties agree to make the mediator a party to related confidential information.

If the mediation process does not resolve the problem within the parameters of law, the compliance
officer shall proceed with his/her investigation of the complaint.

The use of mediation shall not extend the district's timelines for investigating and resolving the
complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to such an extension of time. (5 CCR 4631)

Step 3: Investigation of Complaint

The compliance officer is encouraged to hold an investigative meeting within five days of
receiving the complaint or an unsuccessful attempt to mediate the complaint. This meeting shall
provide an opportunity for the complainant and/or his/her representative to repeat the complaint
orally.

The complainant and/or his/her representative shall have an opportunity to present the complaint
and evidence or information leading to evidence to support the allegations in the complaint. (5
CCR 4631)

A complainant's refusal to provide the district's investigator with documents or other evidence
related to the allegations in the complaint, or his/her failure or refusal to cooperate in the
investigation or his/her engagement in any other obstruction of the investigation, may result in the
dismissal cf the complaint because of a lack of evidence to support the allegation. (5 CCR 4631)

The district's refusal to provide the investigator with access to records and/or other information
related to the allegation in the complaint, or its failure or refusal to cooperate in the investigation or
its engagement in any other obstruction of the investigation, may result in a finding, based on
evidence collected, that a violation has occurred and may result in the imposition of a remedy in
favor of the complainant. (5 CCR 4631)

Step 4: Response
Within 30 days of receiving the complaint, the compliance officer shall prepare and send to the
complainant a written report of the district's investigation and decision, as described in Step #5

below. If the complainant is dissatisfied with the compliance officer's decision, he/she may,
within five days, file his/her complaint in writing with the Board.

90 of 154



The Board may consider the matter at its next regular Board meeting or at a special Board meeting
convened in order to meet the 60-day time limit within which the complaint must be answered.
The Board may decide not to hear the complaint, in which case the compliance officer's decision
shall be final.

If the Board hears the complaint, the compliance officer shall send the Board's decision to the
complainant within 60 days of the district's initial receipt the complaint or within the time period
that has been specified in a written agreement with the complainant. (5 CCR 4631)

Step 5:  Final Written Decision

The district's decision shall be in writing and sent to the complainant. (5 CCR 4631)

The district's decision shall be written in English and in the language of the complainant whenever
feasible or as required by law.

The decision shall include:

1. The findings of fact based on the evidence gathered (5 CCR 4631)
2. The conclusion(s) of law (5 CCR 4631) |

3. Disposition of the complaint (5 CCR 4631)

4. Rationale for such disposition (5 CCR 4631)

5. Corrective actions, if any are warranted (5 CCR 4631)

6. Notice of the complainant's right to appeal the district's decision within 15 days to the CDE
and procedures to be followed for initiating such an appeal (5 CCR 4631)

7. For discrimination complaints, notice that the complainant must wait until 6C days have
elapsed from the filing of an appeal with the CDE before pursuing civil law remedies (Education
Code 262.3)

If an employee is disciplined as a result of the complaint, the decision shall simply state that
effective action was taken and that the employee was informed of district expectations. The
report shall not give any further information as to the nature of the disciplinary action.

Appéals to the California Department of Education

If dissatisfied with the district's decision, the complainant may appeal in writing to the CDE within
15 days of receiving the district's decision. When appealing to the CDE, the complainant must
specify the basis for the appeal of the decision and whether the facts are incorrect and/or the law
has been misapplied. The appeal shall be accompanied by a copy of the locally filed complaint and
a copy of the district's decision. (5 CCR 4632)

91 of 154



Upon notification by the CDE that the complainant has appealed the district's decision, the
Superintendent or designee shall forward the following documents to the CDE: (5 CCR 4633)

1. A copy of the original complaint
2. A copy of the decision

3. A summary of the nature and extent of the investigation conducted by the district, if not
covered by the decision

4. A copy of the investigation file, including but not limited to all notes, interviews, and
documents submitted by the parties and gathered by the investigator

5. A report of any action taken to resolve the complaint
6. A copy of the district's complaint procedures
7. Other relevant information requested by the CDE

The CDE may directly intervene in the complaint without waiting for action by the district when
one of the conditions listed in 5 CCR 4650 exists, including cases in which the district has not
taken action within 60 days of the date the complaint was filed with the district.

Civil Law Remedies

A complainant may pursue available civil law remedies outside of the district's complaint
procedures. Complainants may seek assistance from mediation centers or public/private interest
attorneys. Civil law remedies that may be imposed by a court include, but are not limited to,
injunctions and restraining orders. For discrimination complaints, however, a complainant must
wait until 60 days have elapsed from the filing of an appeal with the CDE before pursuing civil law

remedies. The moratorium does not apply to injunctive relief and is applicable only if the district - -

" has appropriately, and in a timely manner, apprised the complainant of his/her right to file a
complaint in accordance with 5 CCR 4622.

Regulation = SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
approved: February 11, 2010 Sausalito, California

92 of 154



Sausalito Marin City School District

Administrative Regulation
Uniform Complaint Procedures

AR 1312.3 PROPOSED
Community Relations

Except as the Governing Board may otherwise specifically provide in other district policies, these
uniform complaint procedures (UCP) shall be used to investigate and resolve only the complaints
specified in BP 1312.3.

(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees)
(cf. 1312.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials)
(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures)

(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment)

Compliance Officers

The district designates the individual(s) identified below as the employee(s) responsible for
coordinating the district's response to complaints and for complying with state and federal civil
rights laws. The individual(s) also serve as the compliance officer(s) specified in AR 5145.3 -
Nondiscrimination/Harassment as the responsible employee(s) to handle complaints regarding
unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying). The
individual(s) shall receive and coordinate the investigation of complaints and shall ensure district
compliance with law.

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)

Superintendent
200 Phillips Drive, Sausalito, CA 94965

415-332-3150 s

wmcpoy@smcsd.org

Y

The compliance officer who receives a complaint may assign another compliance officer to
investigate and resolve the complaint. The compliance officer shall promptly notify the
complainant and respondent, if applicable, if another compliance officer is assigned to the
complaint.

In no instance shall a compliance officer be assigned to a complaint in which he/she has a bias or
conflict of interest that would prohibit him/her from fairly investigating or resolving the
complaint. Any complaint against a compliance officer or that raises a concern about the
compliance officer's ability to investigate the complaint fairly and without bias shall be filed with
the Superintendent or designee who shall determine how the complaint will be investigated.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees assigned to investigate and resolve

93 of 154



complaints receive training and are knowledgeable about the laws and programs at issue in the
complaints to which they are assigned. Training provided to such employees shall cover current
state and federal laws and regulations governing the program, applicable processes for
investigating and resolving complaints, including those alleging unlawful discrimination (such as
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), applicable standards for reaching decisions
on complaints, and appropriate corrective measures. Assigned employees may have access to
legal counsel as determined by the Superintendent or designee.

(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)
(cf. 9124 - Attorney)

The compliance officer or, if necessary, any appropriate administrator shall determine whether
interim measures are necessary during and pending the result of an investigation. If interim
measures are determined to be necessary, the compliance officer or the administrator shall consult
with the Superintendent, the Superintendent's designee, or, if appropriate, the site principal to
implement one or more interim measures. The interim measures shall remain in place until the
compliance officer determines that they are no longer necessary or until the district issues its final
written decision, whichever occurs first.

Notifications

The district's UCP policy and administrative regulation shall be posted in all district schools and
offices, including staff lounges and student government meeting rooms. (Education Code 234.1)

The Superintendent or designee shall annually provide written notification of the district's UCP,
including information regarding unlawful student fees, local control and accountability plan
(LCAP) requirements, and requirements related to the educational rights of foster youth, homeless
students, and former juvenile court school students to students, employees, parents/guardians, the
district advisory committee, school advisory committees, appropriate private school officials or
representatives, and other interested parties. (Education Code 262.3, 48853, 48853.5, 49013,
49069.5, 51225.1, 51225.2, 52075; 5 CCR 4622)

* (cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils)

{(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)

(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges)

(ct. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications)

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children)

(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)

(cf. 6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students)

The annual notification, complete contact information of the compliance officer(s), and

information related to Title IX as required pursuant to Education Code 221.61 shall be posted on
the district web site and may be provided through district-supported social media, if available.

94 of 154



(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites)
(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all students and parents/guardians, including
students and parents/guardians with limited English proficiency, have access to the relevant
information provided in the district's policy, regulation, forms, and notices concerning the UCP.

If 15 percent or more of students enrolled in a particular district school speak a single primary
language other than English, the district's policy, regulation, forms, and notices concerning the
UCP shall be translated into that language, in accordance with Education Code 234.1 and 48985.
In all other instances, the district shall ensure meaningful access to all relevant UCP information
for parents/guardians with limited English proficiency.

The notice shall:
1. Identify the person(s), position(s), or unit(s) responsible for receiving complaints

2. Advise the complainant of any civil law remedies that may be available to him/her under
state or federal antidiscrimination laws, if applicable

3. Advise the complainant of the appeal process, including, if applicable, the complainant's
right to take a complaint directly to the California Department of Education (CDE) or to pursue
remedies before civil courts or other public agencies, such as the U.S. Department of Education's
Office for Civil Rights (OCR) in cases involving unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, or bullying).

4, Include statements that:

a. The district has the primary responsibility to ensure compliance with applicable state and
federal laws and regulations governing educational programs.

b The coinpiaint review shall be completed within 60 calendar days from the date of receipt =~

of the complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to an extension of the timeline.

c. A complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, or bullying) must be filed not later than six months from the date it
occurred, or six months from the date the complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts of the
alleged unlawful discrimination. The time for filing may be extended for up to 90 days by the
Superintendent or designee for good cause upon written request by the complainant setting forth
the reasons for the extension.

d. Complaints should be filed in writing and signed by the complainant. If a complainant is
unable to put his/her complaint in writing, for example, due to conditions such as a disability or

illiteracy, district staff shall assist him/her in the filing of the complaint.

e. If a complaint is not filed in writing but the district receives notice of any allegation that is

95 of 154



subject to the UCP, the district shall take affirmative steps to investigate and address the
allegations, in a manner appropriate to the particular circumstances.

If the allegation involves retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, or bullying) and the investigation confirms that discrimination has
occurred, the distriet will take steps to prevent recurrence of discrimination and correct its
discriminatory effects on the complainant, and on others, if appropriate.

f. A student enrolled in a public school shall not be required to pay a fee for his/her
participation in an educational activity that constitutes an integral fundamental part of the district's
educational program, including curricular and extracurricular activities.

g. The Board is required to adopt and annually update the LCAP in a manner that includes
meaningful engagement of parents/guardians, students, and other stakeholders in the development
and/or review of the LCAP.

h. A foster youth shall receive information about educational rights related to his/her
educational placement, enrollment in and checkout from school, as well as the responsibilities of
the district liaison for foster youth to ensure and facilitate these requirements and to assist the
student in ensuring proper transfer of his/her credits, records, and grades when he/she transfers
between schools or between the district and another district.

i. A foster youth, homeless student, or former juvenile court school student who transfers
into a district high school or between district high schools as applicable shall be notified of the
district's responsibility to:

(1)  Accept any coursework or part of the coursework that the student has satisfactorily
completed in another public school, juvenile court school, or a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or
agency, and to issue full or partial credit for the coursework completed

(2)  Not require the student to retake any course or a portion of a course which he/she has
o, |

satisfactorily completed in another public schiool, juvenile court school, or a nonpubtic,
nonsectarian school or agency

3) If the student has completed his/her second year of high school before the transfer, provide
the student information about district-adopted coursework and Board-imposed graduation

requirements from which he/she may be exempted pursuant to Education Code 51225.1

j- The complainant has a right to appeal the district's decision to the CDE by filing a written
appeal within 15 calendar days of receiving the district's decision.

In any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, or bullying), the respondent also shall have the right to file an appeal with the CDE in

the same manner as the complainant, if he/she is dissatisfied with the district's decision.

k. - The appeal to the CDE must include a copy of the complaint filed with the district and a

96 of 154



copy of the district's decision.
L Copies of the district's UCP are available free of charge.
District Responsibilities

All UCP-related complaints shall be investigated and resolved within 60 calendar days of the
district's receipt of the complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to an extension of the
timeline. (5 CCR 4631)

For complaints alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation,
or bullying), the district shall inform the respondent when the complainant agrees to an extension
of the timeline for investigating and resolving the complaint.

The compliance officer shall maintain a record of each complaint and subsequent related actions,
including steps taken during the investigation and all information required for compliance with 5
CCR 4631 and 4633.

All parties involved in the allegations shall be notified when a complaint is filed and when a
decision or ruling is made. However, the compliance officer shall keep all complaints or
allegations of retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, or bullying) confidential except when disclosure is necessary to carry out the
investigation, take subsequent corrective action, conduct ongoing monitoring, or maintain the
integrity of the process. (5 CCR 4630, 4964)

Filing of Complaints

The complaint shall be presented to the compliance officer who shall maintain a log of complaints
received, providing each with a code number and a date stamp.

All complaints shall be filed in writing and signed by the complainant. If a complainant is unable

114

= to put a coinplaint in writing due to conditions such as a disability or illiteracy, district staff shall

assist him/her in the filing of the complaint. (5 CCR 4600)
Complainté shall also be filed in accordance with the following rules, as applicable: ‘-

1. A complaint alleging district violation of applicable state or federal law or regulations
governing adult education programs, consolidated categorical aid programs, migrant education,
career technical and technical education and training programs, child care and development
programs, child nutrition programs, and special education programs may be filed by any
individual, public agency, or organization. (5 CCR 4630)

2. Any complaint alleging noncompliance with law regarding the prohibition against
requiring students to pay student fees, deposits, and charges or any requirement related to the
LCAP may be filed anonymously if the complaint provides evidence, or information leading to
evidence, to support an allegation of noncompliance. A complaint about a violation of the

97 of 154



prohibition against the charging of unlawful student fees may be filed with the principal of the
school or with the Superintendent or designee. However, any such complaint shall be filed no later
than one year from the date the alleged violation occurred. (Education Code 49013, 52075; 5
CCR 4630)

3. A complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, or bullying) may be filed only by a person who alleges that he/she personally
suffered the unlawful discrimination or by a person who believes that an individual or any specific
class of individuals has been subjected to it. The complaint shall be initiated no later than six
months from the date when the alleged unlawful discrimination occurred, or six months from the
date when the complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged unlawful

- discrimination. The time for filing may be extended for up to 90 days by the Superintendent or

designee for good cause upon written request by the complainant setting forth the reasons for the
extension. (5 CCR 4630)

4. When a complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, or bullying) is filed anonymously, the compliance officer shall pursue an
investigation or other response as appropriate, depending on the specificity and reliability of the
information provided and the seriousness of the allegation.

5. When the complainant of unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, or bullying) or the alleged victim, when he/she is not the complainant, requests
confidentiality, the compliance officer shall inform him/her that the request may limit the district's
ability to investigate the conduct or take other necessary action. When honoring a request for
confidentiality, the district shall nevertheless take all reasonable steps to investigate and
resolve/respond to the complaint consistent with the request.

Mediation

Within three business days after the compliance officer receives the complaint, he/she may
informally discuss with all the parties the possibility of using mediation. Mediation shall be
offered-toresolve complaints that iitvolve more than one student and 10 adult. However, mediation
shall not be offered or used to resolve any complaint involving an allegation of sexual assault or
where there is a reasonable risk that a party to the mediation would feel compelled to participate. If
the parties agree to mediation, the compliance officer shall make all arrangements for this process.

Before initiating the mediation of a complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such
as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the compliance officer shall ensure that
all parties agree to make the mediator a party to relevant confidential information. The
compliance officer shall also notify all parties of the right to end the informal process at any time.

If the mediation process does not resolve the problem within the parameters of law, the compliance
officer shall proceed with his/her investigation of the complaint.

The use of mediation shall not extend the district's timelines for investigating and resolving the
complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to such an extension of time. If mediation is

98 of 154



successful and the complaint is withdrawn, then the district shall take only the actions agreed to
through the mediation. If mediation is unsuccessful, the district shall then continue with
subsequent steps specified in this administrative regulation.

Investigation of Complaint

Within 10 business days after the compliance officer receives the complaint, the compliance
officer shall begin an investigation into the complaint.

Within one business day of initiating the investigation, the compliance officer shall provide the
complainant and/or his/her representative with the opportunity to present the information
contained in the complaint to the compliance officer and shall notify the complainant and/or
his/her representative of the opportunity to present the compliance officer with any evidence, or
information leading to evidence, to support the allegations in the complaint. Such evidence or
information may be presented at any time during the investigation.

In conducting the investigation, the compliance officer shall collect all available documents and
review all available records, notes, or statements related to the complaint, including any additional
evidence or information received from the parties during the course of the investigation. He/she
shall individually interview all available witnesses with information pertinent to the complaint,
and may visit any reasonably accessible location where the relevant actions are alleged to have
taken place. At appropriate intervals, the compliance officer shall inform both parties of the status
of the investigation.

~ To investigate a complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the compliance officer shall interview the alleged victim(s),
any alleged offenders, and other relevant witnesses privately, separately, and in a confidential
manner. As necessary, additional staff or legal counsel may conduct or support the investigation.

A complainant's refusal to provide the district's investigator with documents or other evidence

related to the allegations in the complaint, failure or refusal to cooperate in the investigation, or

engagement in any oiher obstruction of the investigation may iesult in the dismissal of the - R
complaint because of a lack of evidence to support the allegation. Similarly, a respondent's refusal

to provide the district's investigator with documents or other evidence related to the allegations in

the complaint, failure or refusal to cooperate in the investigation, or engagement in any other

obstruction of the investigation may result in a finding, based on evidence collected, that a

violation has occurred and in the imposition of a remedy in favor of the complainant. (5 CCR

4631)

In accordance with law, the district shall provide the investigator with access to records and other
information related to the allegation in the complaint and shall not in any way obstruct the
investigation. Failure or refusal of the district to cooperate in the investigation may result in a
finding based on evidence collected that a violation has occurred and in the imposition of a remedy
in favor of the complainant. (5 CCR 4631)

The compliance officer shall apply a "preponderance of the evidence" standard in determining the

99 of 154



veracity of the factual allegations in a complaint. This standard is met if the allegation is more
likely to be true than not.

Report of Findings
OPTION 1:

Unless extended by written agreement with the complainant, the compliance officer shall prepare
and send to the complainant, and respondent if there is one, a written report, as described in the
section "Final Written Decision" below, within 60 calendar days of the district's receipt of the
complaint. (5 CCR 4631)

OPTION 2: PROPOSED

Unless extended by written agreement with the complainant, a final decision shall be sent to the
complainant within 60 calendar days of the district's receipt of the complaint. Within 30 calendar
days of receiving the complaint, the compliance officer shall prepare and send to the complainant a
written report, as described in the section "Final Written Decision" below. If the complainant is
dissatisfied with the compliance officer's decision, he/she may, within five business days, file
his/her complaint in writing with the Board.

The Board may consider the matter at its next regular Board meeting or at a special Board meeting
convened in order to meet the 60-day time limit within which the complaint must be answered.
When required by law, the matter shall be considered in closed session. The Board may decide
not to hear the complaint, in which case the compliance officer's decision shall be final.

If the Board hears the complaint, the compliance officer shall send the Board's decision to the
complainant within 60 calendar days of the district's initial receipt of the complaint or within the
time period that has been specified in a written agreement with the complainant. (5 CCR 4631)

In resolving anycomplaint alleging unlawful disciimination (suchas discriminatory harassment, -

intimidation, and bullying), the respondent also shall be sent the district's decision and, in the same
manner as the complainant, may file a complaint with the Boaré.if dissatisfied with the decision.

Final Written Decision

The district's decision on how it will resolve the complaint shall be in writing and shall be sent to
the complainant and respondent. (5 CCR 4631)

In consultation with district legal counsel, information about the relevant part of a decision may be
communicated to a victim who is not the complainant and to other parties who may be involved in
implementing the decision or are affected by the complaint, as long as the privacy of the parties is
protected. In a complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, and bullying), notice of the district's decision to the alleged victim shall include
information about any sanction to be imposed upon the respondent that relates directly to the

100 of 154



alleged victim.

If the complaint involves a limited-English-proficient student or parent/guardian and the student
involved attends a school at which 15 percent or more of the students speak a single primary
language other than English, then the decision shall also be translated into that language. In all
other instances, the district shall ensure meaningful access to all relevant information for
parents/guardians with limited English proficiency.

For all complaints, the decision shall include: (5 CCR 4631)

1. The findings of fact based on the evidence gathered. In reaching a factual determination,
the following factors may be taken into account:

a. Statements made by any witnesses

b. The relative credibility of the individuals involved

c. How the complaining individual reacted to the incident

d. Any docufnentary or other evidence relating to tﬁe alleged conduct
€. Past instances of similar conduct by any alleged offenders

f. Past false allegations made by the complainant

2. The conclusion(s) of law

3. Disposition of the complaint

4. Rationale for such disposition

- - — - Forcomplaints-of retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, -
intimidation, or bullying), the disposition of the complaint shall include a determination for each
allegation as to whether retaliation or unlawful discrimination has occurred. e

The determination of whether a hostile environment exists may involve consideration of the

following:

a. How the misconduct affected one or more students' education

b. The type, frequency, and duration of the misconduct

c. The relationship between the alleged victim(s) and offender(s)

d. The number of persons engaged in the conduct and at whom the conduct was directed

101 of 154



e. The size of the school, location of the incidents, and context in which they occurred |

f. Other incidents at the school involving different individuals

5. Corrective action(s), including any actions that have been taken or will be taken to address
the allegations in the complaint and including, with respect to a student fees complaint, a remedy

that comports with Education Code 49013 and 5 CCR 4600

For complaints of unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, or bullying), the decision may, as required by law, include:

a. The corrective actions imposed on the respondent

b. Individual remedies offered or provided to the complainant or another person who was the
subject of the complaint, but this information should not be shared with the respondent.

c. Systemic measures the school has taken to eliminate a hostile environment and prevent
recurrence
6. Notice of the complainant's and respondent's right to appeal the district's decision to the

CDE within 15 calendar days, and procedures to be followed for initiating such an appeal

‘The decision may also include follow-up procedures to prevent recurrence or retaliation and for
reporting any subsequent problems.

For complaints alleging unlawful discrimination based on state law (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, and bullying), the decision shall also include a notice to the complainant
that:

1. He/she may pursue available civil law remedies outside of the district's complaint
procedures, including seeking assistance from mediation centers or public/private interest
~=——-attorneys, 66 calendar days afier the filing of an appeal with the CDE. {Education Code 262.3)

2. The-40 days moratorium does not apply to complaints seeking injunctive reliefin state .
courts or to discrimination complaints based on federal law. (Education Code 262.3)

3. Complaints alleging discrimination based on race, color, national origin, sex, gender,
disability, or age may also be filed with the U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights
at www.ed.gov/ocr within 180 days of the alleged discrimination.

Corrective Actions
When a complaint is found to have merit, the compliance officer shall adopt any appropriate
corrective action permitted by law. Appropriate corrective actions that focus on the larger school

or district environment may include, but are not limited to, actions to reinforce district policies;
training for faculty, staff, and students; updates to school policies; or school climate surveys.

102 of 154



For complaints involving retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, or bullying), appropriate remedies that may be offered to the victim but
not communicated to the respondent may include, but are not limited to, the following:

1. Counseling

2. Academic support

3. Health services

4. Assignment of an escort to allow the victim to move safely about campus

5. Information regarding available resources and how to report similar incidents or retaliation
6. Separation of the victim from any other individuals mvolved provided the separation does

not penalize the victim

7. Restorative justice
8. Follow-up inquiries to ensure that the conduct has stopped and there has been no retaliation
9. Determination of whether any past actions of the victim that resulted in discipline were

related to the treatment the victim received and described in the complaint

For complaints involving retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, or bullying), appropriate corrective actions that focus on a student
offender may include, but are not limited to, the following:

1. Transfer from a class or school as permitted by law

2.~ Parent/guardian coiiference - - - A

3. - Education regarding the impact-of the conduct on others

4. Positive behavior support

5. Referral to a student success team

6. Denial of participation in extracurricular or co-curricular activities or other privileges as
permitted by law

7. Disciplinary action, such as suspension or expulsion, as permitted by law

When an employee is found to have committed retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the district shall take appropriate

103 of 154



disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal, in accordance with applicable law and collective
bargaining agreement.

The district may also consider training and other interventions for the larger school community to
ensure that students, staff, and parents/guardians understand the types of behavior that constitute
unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), that the
district does not tolerate it, and how to report and respond to it. '

If a complaint alleging noncompliance with the laws regarding student fees, deposits, and other
charges, physical education instructional minutes for students in elementary schools, or any
requirement related to the LCAP is found to have merit, the district shall provide a remedy to all
affected students and parents/guardians subject to procedures established by regulation of the State
Board of Education. (Education Code 49013, 51223, 52075)

For complaints alleging noncompliance with the laws regarding student fees, the district shall
attempt in good faith, by engaging in reasonable efforts, to identify and fully reimburse all affected
students and parents/guardians who paid the unlawful student fees within one year prior to the
filing of the complaint. (Education Code 49013; 5 CCR 4600)

Appeals to the California Department of Education

Any complainant who is dissatisfied with the district's final written decision may file an appeal in
writing with the CDE within 15 calendar days of receiving the district's decision. (Education
Code 222, 48853, 48853.5, 49013, 49069.5, 51223, 51225.1, 51225.2, 51228.3, 52075; 5 CCR
4632)

When a respondent in any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, and bullying) is dissatisfied with the district's final written decision,
he/she, in the same manner as the complainant, may file an appeal with the CDE.

The complainant or respondent shall specify the basis for the appeal of the decision and whether
the facts are incorrect and/or the law has been misappiied. The appeal shall be accompanied by a
copy of the locally filed complaint and a copy of the district's decision. (5 CCR 4632)

Upon notification by the CDE that the complainant or respondent has appealed the district's
decision, the Superintendent or designee shall forward the following documents to the CDE: (5
CCR 4633) ‘

1. A copy of the original complaint
2. A copy of the written decision
3. A summary of the nature and extent of the investigation conducted by the district, if not

covered by the decision

4. A copy of the investigation file including, but not limited to, all notes, interviews, and

104 of 154



documents submitted by the parties and gathered by the investigator

5. A report of any action taken to resolve the complaint
6. A copy of the district's uniform complaint procedures
7. Other relevant information requested by the CDE

(3/16  9/16) 5/17

105 of 154



Sausalito Marin City SD

Administrative Regulation
Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

AR 131242010

Community Relations

Cautionary Notice: As added and amended by SBX3 4 (Ch. 12, Third Extraordinary Session, Statutes of 2009)
and ABX4 2 (Ch. 2, Fourth Extraordinary Session, Statutes of 2009), Education Code 42605 grants district
flexibility in "Tier 3" categorical programs. The Sausalito Marin City School District has accepted this flexibility
and thus is deemed in compliance with the statutory or regulatory program and funding requirements for these
programs for the 2008-2009 through 2012-2013 fiscal years. As a result, the district may temporarily suspend
certain provisions of the following policy or regulation that reflect these requirements. For further information,
please contact the Superintendent or designee.

Types of Complaints

The district shall use the following procedures to investigate and resolve complaints when the complainant alleges
that any of the following has occurred: (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4681, 4682, 4683)

1. Textbooks and instructional materials

a. A pupil, including an English learner, does not have standards-aligned textbooks or instructional materials
or state- or district-adopted textbooks or other required instructional materials to use in class.

b. A pupil does not have access to textbooks or instructional materials to use at home or after school.

c. Textbooks or instructional materials are in poor or unusable condition, have missing pages, or are
unreadable due to damage.

(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials)

2. " “Teacher vacancy or misassignment T
" a.” A seniédter begins and a teacher vacancy exists. R
b. A teacher who lacks credentials or training to teach English learners is assigned to teach a class with more

than 20 percent English learner pupils in the class.
(cf. 4112.22 - Staff Teaching Pupils of Limited English Proficiency)
c. A teacher is assigned to teach a class for which the teacher lacks subject matter competency.

Teacher vacancy means a position to which a single designated certificated employee has not been assigned at the
beginning of the year for an entire year or, if the position is for a one-semester course, a position to which a single
designated certificated employee has not been assigned at the beginning of the semester for an entire semester.
(Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4600)

Beginning of the year or semester means the first day classes necessary to serve all the pupils enrolled are

established with a single designated certificated em%)é%ye? %sgzlgned for the duration of the class, but not later than
: o



20 working days after the first day pupils attend classes for that semester. (5 CCR 4600)

Misassignment means the placement of a certificated employee in a teaching or services position for which the
employee does not hold a legally recognized certificate or credential or the placement of a certificated employee
in a teaching or services position that the employee is not otherwise authorized by statute to hold. (Education
Code 35186; 5 CCR 4600) :

(cf. 4112.2 - Certification)
(cf. 4113 - Assignment)

3. - Facilities
a. A condition poses an emergency or urgent threat to the health or safety of pupils or staff.

Emergency or urgent threat means structures or systems that are in a condition that poses a threat to the health and
safety of pupils or staff while at school, including, but not limited to, gas leaks; nonfunctioning heating,
ventilation, fire sprinklers, or air-conditioning systems; electrical power failure; major sewer line stoppage; major
pest or vermin infestation; broken windows or exterior doors or gates that will not lock and that pose a security
risk; abatement of hazardous materials previously undiscovered that pose an immediate threat to pupils or staff; or
structural damage creating a hazardous or uninhabitable condition. (Education Code 17592.72)

b. A school restroom has not been cleaned, maintained, or kept open in accordance with Education
Code 35292.5.

Clean or maintained school restroom means a school restroom has been cleaned or maintained
regularly, is fully operational, or has been stocked at all times with toilet paper, soap, and paper towels or
functional hand dryers. (Education Code 35292.5)

Open restroom means, except as necessary for pupil safety or to make repairs, the school has kept
all restrooms open during school hours when pupils are not in classes and has kept a sufficient number of
restrooms open during school hours when pupils are in classes. (Education Code 35292.5)

Filing of Complaint

A complaint alleging any condition(s) specified in items #1-3 above shall be filed with the principal or designee at
the school in which the complaint arises. The principal or designee shall forward a complaint about problems

~ beyond his/her authority to the Superintendent ordésignee in a timely manner, but not to-exceed 10 working days.
(Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4680)

A complaint alleging any deficiency specified in item #4 above shall be filed with a district official designated by
the Superintendent. Such complaints may be filed at the district office or at a school site and shall be
immediately forwarded to the Superintendent or designee. (Education Code 35186)

Investigation and Response

The principal or designee shall make all reasonable efforts to investigate any problem within his/her authority.
He/she shall remedy a valid complaint within a reasonable time period not to exceed 30 working days from the
date the complaint was received. (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4685)

Complaints may be filed anonymously. If the complainant has indicated on the complaint form that he/she
would like a response to the complaint, the principal or designee shall report the resolution of the complaint to

him/her within 45 working days of the initial ﬁhng1%f 7the c05 4plamt If a response is requested, the response shall
of



be made to the mailing address of the complainant as indicated on the complaint form. At the same time, the
principal or designee shall report the same information to the Superintendent or designee. (Education Code
35186; 5 CCR 4680, 4685)

When Education Code 48985 is applicable and the complainant has requested a response, the response shall be
written in English and in the primary language in which the complaint was filed. (Education Code 35186)

If a complainant is not satisfied with the resolution of a complaint, he/she has the right to describe the complaint to
the Board of Trustees at a regularly scheduled meeting. (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4686)

For any complaint concerning a facilities condition that poses an emergency or urgent threat to the health or safety
of pupils or staff as described in item #3a above, a complainant who is not satisfied with the resolution proffered
by the principal or Superintendent or designee may file an appeal to the Superintendent of Public Instruction
within 15 days of receiving the district's response. The complainant shall comply with the appeal requirements
specified in 5 CCR 4632. (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4687)

All complaints and written responses shall be public records. (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4686)
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)
Reports

The Superintendent or designee shall report summarized data on the nature and resolution of all complaints to the
Board and the County Superintendent of Schools on a quarterly basis. The report shall include the number of
complaints by general subject area with the number of resolved and unresolved complaints. These summaries
shall be publicly reported on a quarterly basis at a regularly scheduled Board meeting. (Education Code 35186;
5 CCR 4686)

Forms and Notices

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district's complaint form contains a space to indicate whether
* the complainant desires a response to his/her complaint and specifies the location for filing a complaint. A
complainant may add as much text to explain the complaint as he/she wishes. However, complainants need not
use the district's Williams complaint form in order to file a complaint. (Educatlon Code 35186)

The Supenntendent or de51gnee shall ensure that a notice is posted in each classroom in each school contamlng
the components specified in Education Code 35186. (Education Code 351867+ '

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

1240 County superintendent of schools, duties

17592.72 Urgent or emergency repairs, School Facility Emergency Repair Account
33126 School accountability report card

35186 Wailliams uniform complaint procedure

35292.5 Restrooms, maintenance and cleanliness

37254 Supplemental instruction based on failure to pass exit exam by end of grade 12
48985 Notice to parents in language other than English

60119 Hearing on sufficiency of instructional materials

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

4600-4687 Uniform complaint procedures, especially:

4680-4687 Williams complaints

108 of 154



Management Resources:

WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California County Superintendents Educational Services Association: http://www.ccesa.org
California Department of Education, Williams case: http://www.cde.ca.gov/eo/ce/wc/index.asp
State Allocation Board, Office of Public School Construction: http://www.opsc.dgs.ca.gov

Regulation =~ SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
approved: February 11, 2010 Sausalito, California

109 of 154



Sausalito Marin City School District

Administrative Regulation
Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

AR 1312.4 PROPOSED
Community Relations
Types of Complaints

The district shall use the procedures described in this administrative regulation only to investigate
and resolve the following: (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4680-4683)

1. Complaints regarding the insufficiency of textbooks and instructional materials, including
any complaint alleging that:

a. A student, including an English learner, does not have standards-aligned textbooks or
instructional materials or state- or district-adopted textbooks or other required instructional
materials to use in class.

b. A student does not have access to textbooks or instructional materials to use at home or
after school. This does not require two sets of textbooks or instructional materials for each student.

c. Textbooks or instructional materials are in poor or unusable condition, have missing pages,
or are unreadable due to damage.

d. A student was provided photocopied sheets from only a portion of a textbook or
instructional materials to address a shortage of textbooks or instructional materials.

(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials)

Complaints regarding teacher vacancy or misassignment, including any complaint alleging

4. A semestér begins and 4 teacher vacancy exists. -
b. A teacher who lacks credentials or training to teach English learners is assigned to teach a

class with more than 20 percent English learners in the class.
(cf. 4112.22 - Staff Teaching English Learners)

c. A teacher is assigned to teach a class for which the teacher lacks subject matter |
competency.

Teacher vacancy means a position to which a single designated certificated employee has not been

assigned at the beginning of the year for an entire year or, if the position is for a one-semester
course, a position to which a single designated certificated employee has not been assigned at the

110 of 154



beginning of the semester for an entire semester. (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4600)

Beginning of the year or semester means the first day classes necessary to serve all the students
enrolled are established with a single designated certificated employee assigned for the duration of
the class, but not later than 20 working days after the first day students attend classes for that
semester. (5 CCR 4600)

Misassignment means the placement of a certificated employee in a teaching or services position
for which the employee does not hold a legally recognized certificate or credential or the
placement of a certificated employee in a teaching or services position that the employee is not
otherwise authorized by statute to hold. (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4600)

(cf. 4112.2 - Certification)
(cf. 4113 - Assignment)

3. Complaints regarding the condition of school facilities, including any complaint alleging
that:

a. A condition poses an emergency or urgent threat to the health or safety of students
or staff.

Emergency or urgent threat means structures or systems that are in a condition that poses a threat
to the health and safety of students or staff while at school, including, but not limited to, gas leaks;
nonfunctioning heating, ventilation, fire sprinklers, or air-conditioning systems; electrical power
failure; major sewer line stoppage; major pest or vermin infestation; broken windows or exterior
doors or gates that will not lock and that pose a security risk; abatement of hazardous materials
previously undiscovered that pose an immediate threat to students or staff; structural damage

- creating a hazardous or uninhabitable condition; or any other condition deemed appropriate.
(Education Code 17592.72)

b. A school restroom has not been cleaned, maintained, or kept open in accordance
with Education Code 35292.5. : - . e

« ... Clean or maintained school restroom means a.school restroom has been cleaned or
maintained regularly, is fully operational, or has been stocked at all times with toilet paper, soap,
or paper towels or functional hand dryers. (Education Code 35292.5)

Open restroom means the school has kept all restrooms open during school hours
when students are not in classes and has kept a sufficient number of restrooms open during school
hours when students are in classes. This does not apply when the temporary closing of the
restroom is necessary for student safety or to make repairs. (Education Code 35292.5)

(cf. 3514 - Environmental Safety)

(cf. 3517 - Facilities Inspection)
Filing of Complaint

111 of 154



A complaint alleging any condition(s) specified in the section "Types of Complaints" above shall
be filed with the principal or designee at the school in which the complaint arises. The principal
or designee shall forward a complaint about problems beyond his/her authority to the
Superintendent or designee in a timely manner, but not to exceed 10 working days. (Education
Code 35186; 5 CCR 4680)

Investigation and Response

The principal or designee shall make all reasonable efforts to investigate any problem within
his/her authority. He/she shall remedy a valid complaint within a reasonable time period not to
exceed 30 working days from the date the complaint was received. (Education Code 35186; 5
CCR 4685)

Complaints may be filed anonymously. If the complainant has indicated on the complaint form
that he/she would like a response to the complaint, the principal or designee shall report the
resolution of the complaint to him/her at the mailing address indicated on the complaint form
within 45 working days of the initial filing of the complaint. At the same time, the principal or
designee shall report the same information to the Superintendent or designee. (Education Code
35186; 5 CCR 4680, 4685)

When Education Code 48985 is applicable and the complainant has requested a response, the
response shall be written in English and in the primary language in which the complaint was filed.
(Education Code 35186)

If a complainant is not satisfied with the resolution of a complaint, he/she has the right to describe
the complaint to the Governing Board at a regularly scheduled meeting. (Education Code 35186;
5 CCR 4686)

For any complaint concerning a facilities condition that poses an emergency or urgent threat to the
health or safety of students or staff as described in item #3a in the section "Types of Complaints"
above, a complainant who is not satisfied with the resolution proffered by the principal or

- Superintendent or designee may file an-appeal to the Superintendent of Public Instruction within
15 days of receiving the district's response. The complainant shall comply with the appeal
requirements specified in 5 CCR 4632. (Education Cede 35186; 5 CCR 4687)

All complaints and written responses shall be public records. (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR
4686)

(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)

Reports

On a quarterly basis, the Superintendent or designee shall report, to the Board at a regularly
scheduled public Board meeting and to the County Superintendent of Schools, summarized data

112 of 154



on the nature and resolution of all cémplaints. The report shall include the number of complaints
by general subject area with the number of resolved and unresolved complaints. (Education Code
35186; 5 CCR 4686)

Forms and Notices

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure a Williams complaint form is available at each school.
However, complainants need not use the district's complaint form in order to file a complaint.
(Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4680)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district's complaint form contains a space to
indicate whether the complainant desires a response to his’her complaint and specifies the location
for filing a complaint. A complainant may add as much text to explain the complaint as he/she
wishes. (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4680)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that a notice is posted in each classroom in each
school containing the components specified in Education Code 35186. (Education Code 35186)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

234.1 Prohibition of discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and bullying
1240 County superintendent of schools, duties

17592.72 Urgent or emergency repairs, School Facility Emergency Repair Account
33126 School accountability report card

35186 Williams uniform complaint procedures

35292.5 Restrooms, maintenance and cleanliness

48985 Notice to parents in language other than English

60119 Hearing on sufficiency of instructional materials

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

4600-4670 Uniform complaint procedures

4680-4687 Williams uniform complaint procedures

Management Resources:

- WEB SITES ,

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California County Superintendents Educational Services Association: http://www.ccsesa.org
California Department of Education, Williams case: http://www.cde.ca.gov/eo/ce/wc

State Allocation Board, Office of Public School Construction: http://www.opsc.dgs.ca.gov

(11/07 11/10) 8/14

113 of 154



Sausalito Marin City SD

Board Policy
Use Of School Facilities

“BP 1330 2010

Community Relations

The Board of Trustees recognizes that district facilities and grounds are a community resource and authorizes
their use by community groups for purposes provided for in the Civic Center Act when such use does not interfere
with school activities.

(cf. 6145.5 - Student Organizations and Equal Access)

All school-related activities shall be given priority in the use of facilities and grounds under the Civic Center Act.
Thereafter, the use shall be on a first-come, first-served basis.

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain procedures and regulations for the use of school facilities and
grounds that: (Education Code 38133) :

1. Aid, encourage, and assist groups desiring to use school facilities for approved activities

2. Preserve order in school buildings and on school grounds and protect school facilities, designating a
person to supervise this task, if necessary

(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive School Safety Plan)

(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan)

3. Ensure that the use of school facilities or grounds is not inconsistent with their use for school purposes and
does not interfere with the regular conduct of school work

Fees

The Board authorizes the use of school facilities or grounds without charge by nonprofit organizations, clubs, or
. associations.organized to promote youth and school activities. . In accordance with Education Code 38134(a),
these groups include, but are not limited to, Girl Scouts, Boy Scouts, Camp Fire, Inc., parent-teacher associations,
- and-szhool-community advisory councils. Gther groups, including nonprofit greups not organized to promote
youth and school activities or for-profit groups that request the use of school facilities under the Civic Center Act,
shall be charged at least direct costs. ‘

Groups shall be charged fair rental value when using school facilities or grounds for entertainment or meetings
where admission is charged or contributions solicited and net receipts are not to be expended for charitable
purposes or for the welfare of the district's students. (Education Code 38134)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

10900-10914.5 Community recreation programs

32282 School safety plan

37220 School holidays

38130-38138 Civic Center Act, use of school property for public purposes
BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE

25608 Alcoholic beverage on school premises
114 of 154



MILITARY AND VETERANS CODE

1800 Definitions

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

7905 Equal access to public school facilities

COURT DECISIONS

Good News Club v. Milford Central School, (2001) 533 U.S. 98
Lamb's Chapel v. Center Moriches Union Free School District, (1993) 508 U.S. 384
Cole v. Richardson, (1972) 405 U.S. 676 ;

Connell v. Higgenbotham, (1971) 403 U.S. 207

ACLU v. Board of Education of Los Angeles, (1961) 55 Cal .2d 167
Ellis v. Board of Education, (1945) 27 Cal.2d 322

ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS

82 Ops.Cal. Atty.Gen. 90 (1999)

79 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 248 (1996)

Management Resources:

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION LEGAL ADVISORIES
1101.89 School District Liability and "Hold Harmless" Agreements, LO: 4-89
WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov

Policy SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: February 11, 2010 Sausalito, California

115 of 154



Sausalito Marin City School District

Board Policy
Use Of School Facilities

BP 1330 PROPOSED
Community Relations

The Governing Board believes that school facilities and grounds are a vital community resource which should be
used to foster community involvement and development. Therefore, the Board authorizes the use of school
facilities by district residents and community groups for purposes specified in the Civic Center Act, to the extent
that such use does not interfere with school activities or other school-related uses.

(cf. 6145.5 - Student Organizations and Equal Access)

The Superintendent or designee shall give priority to school-related activities in the use of school facilities and
grounds. Other uses authorized under the Civic Center Act shall be on a first-come, first-served basis.

For the effective management and control of school facilities and grounds, the Superintendent or designee shall
maintain procedures and regulations that: (Education Code 38133)

1. Aid, encourage, and assist groups desiring to use school facilities for approved activities

2. Preserve order in school facilities and on school grounds and protect school facilities, designating a person
to supervise this task, if necessary

(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive School Safety Plan)
(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan)

3. Ensure that the use of school facilities or grounds is not inconsistent with their use for school purposes and
does not interfere with the regular conduct of school work

Subject to prior approval by the Board, the Superintendent or designee may grant the use of school facilities or
grounds on those days on which district schools are closed. (Education Code 37220)

(ct. 6115 - Ceremonies and Observances)

There shall be no advertising on school facilities and grounds except as allowed by district policy specified in BP
1325 - Advertising and Promotion.

(cf. 1325 - Advertising and Promotion)

As necessary to ensure efficient use of school facilities, the Superintendent or designee may, with the Board's
approval, enter into an agreement for the joint use of any school facilities or grounds. The Board shall approve
any such agreement only if it determines that it is in the best interest of the district and the community.

(cf. 1330.1 - Joint Use Agreements)

Fees

The Board shall adopt a comprehensive schedule of fees to be charged for community use of school facilities and
grounds, including, but not limited to, the multipurpose room(s), playing or athletic field(s), track and field

116 of 154



venue(s), tennis court(s), and outdoor basketball court(s). The schedule of fees shall be prepared in accordance
with 5 CCR 14037-14041. (5 CCR 14041)

(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)
OPTION 1: (Amount not exceeding direct costs to all community groups)

The Board believes that the use of school facilities or grounds should not result in costs to the district. The
Superintendent or designee shall charge all groups granted the use of school facilities or grounds under the Civic
Center Act an amount not exceeding direct costs determined in accordance with 5 CCR 14037-14041.
(Education Code 38134)

OPTION 2: (No charge to nonprofit youth and school-oriented organizations)

The Board authorizes the use of school facilities or grounds without charge by nonprofit organizations, clubs, or
associations organized to promote youth and school activities. As specified in Education Code 38134(a), these
groups include, but are not limited to, Girl Scouts, Boy Scouts, Camp Fire USA, YMCA, parent-teacher
associations, and school-community advisory councils. Other groups that request the use of school facilities
under the Civic Center Act, including nonprofit groups not organized to promote youth and school activities and
for-profit groups, shall be charged an amount not exceeding direct costs determined in accordance with 5 CCR
14037-14041. (Education Code 38134)

OPTION 3: (No charge to school-related organizations) PROPOSED

The Board shall grant the use of school facilities or grounds without charge to school-related organizations whose
activities are directly related to or for the benefit of district schools. All other groups requesting the use of school
facilities under the Civic Center Act shall be charged an amount not exceeding direct costs determined in
accordance with 5 CCR 14037-14041.

Additionally, when any use of school facilities or grounds is for religious services, the district shall charge an
amount at least equal to the district's direct costs. (Education Code 38134)

In determining direct costs to be charged for community use of each, or each type of, school facility or grounds,
the Superintendent or designee shall calculate, in accordance with 5 CCR 14038, the community's proportionate
share of the following costs: (Education Code 38134; 5 CCR 14038-14041)

1. Capital direct costs calculated in accordance with 5 CCR- 14039, including the estimated costs of
maintenance, repair, restoration, and refurbishment of non-classroom space school facilities or grounds

However, capital direct costs shall not be charged to organizations retained by the district or school to
provide instruction or instructional activities to students during school hours or for classroom-based programs
that operate after school hours, including, but not limited to, after-school, tutoring, and child care programs. (5
CCR 14037)

(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development)
(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs)

2. Operational direct costs calculated in accordance with 5 CCR 14040, including estimated costs of
supplies, utilities, janitorial services, other services of district employees and/or contracted workers, and salaries
and benefits paid to district employees directly associated with the administration of the Civic Center Act to
operate and maintain school facilities and grounds

117 of 154



Direct cost fees shall not be discounted to any group or organization except when the discount is specifically
authorized in the adopted fee schedule. (5 CCR 14041)

Groups shall be charged fair rental value when using school facilities or grounds for entertainment or meetings
where admission is charged or contributions solicited and net receipts are not to be expended for charitable
purposes or for the welfare of the district's students. (Education Code 38134)

Expending Funds Collected as Capital Direct Costs

Any funds collected as capital direct costs shall be deposited into a special fund to be used only for capital
maintenance, repair, restoration, and refurbishment of school facilities and grounds. (5 CCR 14042)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

10900-10914.5 Community recreation programs

32282 School safety plan

37220 School holidays

38130-38138 Civic Center Act, use of school property for public purposes
BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE

25608 Alcoholic beverage on school premises

GOVERNMENT CODE

54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act

MILITARY AND VETERANS CODE

1800 Definitions

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

14037-14042 Proportionate direct costs for use of school facilities and grounds
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

7905 Equal access to public school facilities

COURT DECISIONS

Good News Club v. Milford Central School, (2001) 533 U.S. 98

Lamb's Chapel v. Center Moriches Union Free School District, (1993) 508 U.S. 384
Cole v. Richardson, (1972) 405 U.S. 676

Connell v. Higgenbotham, (1971) 403 U.S. 207

ACLU v. Board of Education of Los Angeles, (1961) 55 Cal .2d 167

Elis v. Roard ot Education, (1945)27 Cal 24 327 .
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS

82 Ops.Cal.Atiy:Gen. 90 (1999)

79 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 248 (1996)

Management Resources:

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Maximizing Opportunities for Physical Activity Through Joint Use of Facilities, Policy Brief, February 2010
Building Healthy Communities: A School Leader's Guide to Collaboration and Community Engagement, 2009
WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov

(11/06 4/13) 8/14

118 of 154



Sausalito Marin City School District

Administrative Regulation
Federal Grant Funds

AR 3230 PROPOSED
Business and Noninstructional Operations

Allowable Costs

Prior to obligating or spending any federal grant funds, the Superintendent or designee shall determine whether a
proposed purchase is an allowable expenditure of federal funds in accordance with 2 CFR 200.400-200.475 and
the terms and conditions of the federal grant award. He/she shall also determine whether the expense is a direct
or indirect cost as defined in 2 CFR 200.413 and 200.414 and, if the purchase will benefit other programs not
included in the grant award, the appropriate share to be allocated to the federal grant.

(cf. 3350 - Travel Expenses)

The Superintendent or designee shall review and approve all transactions involving federal grant funds and shall
ensure the proper coding of expenditures consistent with the California School Accounting Manual.

(cf. 3300 - Expenditures and Purchases)
(cf. 3314 - Payment for Goods and Services)

Period of Performance

All obligations of federal funds shall occur on or between the beginning and ending dates of the grant project and
shall be paid no later than 90 days after the end of the funding period, unless specifically authorized by the grant
award to be carried over beyond the initial term of the grant. (2 CFR 200.77, 200.308, 200.309, 200.343)

Procurement

On or before July 1, 2017, or such later date as may be approved in the Uniform Guidance, the Superintendent or
designee shall comply with the standards specified in 2 CFR 200.317-200.326 and Appendix II of Part 200 when

procuring goods and services needed to carry out a federal grant as well as any more restrictive state laws and

“"district policies concerning the procurement of goods and services.

"As appropriate to encourage greater économy and efficiency, the Superinfgndent or designee shall avoid
acquisition of unnecessary or duplicative items, give consideration to consolidating or breaking out procurements,
analyze lease versus purchase alternatives, consider entering into an interagency agreement for procurement of
common or shared goods and services, and/or use federal excess or surplus property. (2 CFR 200.318)

The procurement of goods or services with federal funds shall be conducted in a manner that provides full and
open competition in accordance with state laws and district regulations and the following requirements:

1. Any purchase of supplies or services that does not exceed the "micro-purchase"” threshold specified in 48
CFR 2.101 may be awarded without soliciting competitive quotes, provided that the district considers the price to
be reasonable and maintains written evidence of this reasonableness in the record of all micro-purchases. (2 CFR
200.67, 200.320)

2. For any purchase that exceeds the micro-purchase threshold but is less than the bid limit required by
Public Contract Code 20111, the Superintendent or designee shall utilize "small-purchase” procedures that
include obtaining price or rate quotes from an adequate number of qualified sources. (2 CFR 200.320)

' 119 of 154



3. Contracts for goods or services over the bid limits required by Public Contract Code 20111 shall be
awarded pursuant to California law and AR 3311 - Bids, unless exempt from bidding under the law.

(cf. 3311 - Bids)

4, If a purchase is exempt from bidding and the district's solicitation is by a request for proposals, the award
may be made by either a fixed-price or cost-reimbursement type contract awarded to the entity whose proposal is
most advantageous to the program, with price and other factors considered. (2 CFR 200.320)

“(cf. 3312 - Contracts)

5. Procurement by noncompetitive proposals (sole sourcing) may be used only when the item is available
from a single source, the need or emergency will not permit a delay resulting from competitive solicitation, the
awarding agency expressly authorizes sole sourcing in response to the district's request, and/or competition is
determined inadequate after solicitation of a number of sources. (2 CFR 200.320)

6. Time and materials type contracts may be used only after a determination that no other contract is suitable
and if the contract includes a ceiling price that the contractor exceeds at its own risk. Time and materials type
contract means a contract whose cost is the sum of the actual cost of materials and direct labor hours charged at
fixed hourly rates that reflect wages, general administrative expenses, and profit. (200.328)

For any purchase of $25,000 or more, the Superintendent or designee shall verify that any vendor which is used to
procure goods or services is not excluded or disqualified by the federal government. (2 CFR 180.220, 200.213)

All solicitations shall incorporate a clear and accurate description of the technical requirements for the material,
product, or service to be procured. Such description shall not, in competitive procurements, contain features
which unduly restrict competition. The description shall avoid detailed product specifications to the extent
possible, but may include a statement of the qualitative nature of the material, product, or service to be procured
and, when necessary, shall set forth those minimum essential characteristics and standards to which it must
conform if it is to satisfy its intended use. When it is impractical or not economical to make a clear and accurate
description of the technical requirements, a brand name or equivalent description may be used to define the
performance or other salient requirements of procurement,.clearly stating the specific features of the named brand

which must be met by offers. In addition, every solicitation shall identify all requirements which the offer must

-fulfill and any other factors to be used in evaluating bids or nroposals. (2 CFR.200319) .. .. ... ... . .
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain sufficient records to document the procurement; includzag, but not
limited to, the rationale for the method of procurement, selection of the contract type, contractor selection or
rejection, and the basis for the contract price. (2 CFR 200.318)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all contracts for purchases using federal grant funds contain the
applicable contract provisions described in Appendix II to Part 200 - Contract Provisions for Non-Federal Entity
Contracts Under Federal Awards. (2 CFR 200.326)

Capital Expenditures

The Superintendent or designee shall obtain prior written approval from the awarding agency before using federal
funds to make capital expenditures, including the acquisition of land, facilities, equipment, and intellectual
property and expenditures to make additions, improvements, modifications, replacements, rearrangements,
reinstallations, renovations, or alterations to capital assets that materially increase their value or useful life. (2
CFR 200.12, 200.13, 200.20, 200.33, 200.48, 200.58, 200.89, 200.313, 200.439)

120 of 154



Conflict of Interest

No Governing Board member, district employee, or district representative shall participate in'the selection,
award, or administration of a contract supported by federal funds if he/she has a real or apparent conflict of
interest, such as when he/she or a member of his/her immediate family, his/her partner, or an organization which
employs or is about to employ any of them has a financial interest in or a tangible personal benefit from a firm
considered for a contract. Such persons are prohibited from soliciting or accepting gratuities, favors, or anything
of monetary value from contractors or subcontractors unless the gift is an unsolicited item of nominal value. (2
CFR 200.318)

Employees engaged in the selection, award, and administration of contracts shall also comply with BB 9270 -
Conflict of Interest.

(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest)
Cash Management

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure the district's compliance with 2 CFR 200.305 pertaining to payments
and cash management, including compliance with applicable methods and procedures that minimize the time
elapsing between the transfer of funds to the district and the district's disbursement of funds. (2 CFR 200.305)

When authorized by law, the district may receive advance payments of federal grant funds, limited to the
minimum amounts needed and timed in accordance with the actual immediate cash requirements of the district for
carrying out the purpose of the program or project. Except under specified conditions, the district shall maintain
the advance payments in an interest-bearing account. The district shall remit interest earned on the advanced
payment to the awarding agency on an annual basis, but may retain interest amounts specified in 2 CFR 200.305
for administrative expenses. (2 CFR 200.305)

When required by the awarding agency, the district shall instead submit a request for reimbursement of actual
expenses incurred. The district may also request reimbursement as an alternative to receiving advance
payments. . (2 CFR 200.305)

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain source documentation supporting the expenditure of federal funds,
such as invoices, time sheets, payroll stubs, or other appropriate documentation.

Personnel

All district employees who are paid in full or in part with federal funds, including employees whose salary is paid
with state or local funds but is used to meet a required match or in-kind contribution to a federal program, shall
document the amount of time they spend on grant activities. (2 CFR 200.430)

Records

Except as otherwise provided in 2 CFR 200.333, or where state law or district policy requires a longer retention
period, financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and all other district records related to a
federal award shall be retained for a period of three years from the date of submission of the final expenditure
report or, for a federal award that is renewed quarterly or annually, from the date of the submission of the
quarterly or annual financial report. (2 CFR 200.333)

(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)
(cf. 3580 - District Records)

121 of 154



Audits

Whenever the district expends $750,000 or more in federal grant funds during a fiscal year, it shall arrange for
either a single audit or a program-specific audit in accordance with 2 CFR 200.507 or 200.514. (2 CFR 200.501)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the audit meets the requirements specified in 2 CFR
200.500-200.521.

Specified records pertaining to the audit of federal funds expended by the district shall be transmitted to the
clearinghouse designated by the federal Office of Management and Budget and shall be made available for public
inspection. Such records shall be transmitted within 30 days after receipt of the auditor's report or within nine
months after the end of the audit period, whichever is sooner, unless a longer period is agreed to in advance by the
federal agency or a different period is specified in a program-specific audit guide. (2 CFR 200.512)

In the event that the audit identifies any deficiency, the Superintendent or designee shall promptly act to either
correct the identified deficiency, produce recommended improvements, or demonstrate that the audit finding is
invalid or does not warrant action. (2 CFR 200.26, 200.508, 200.511)

9/16

122 of 154



Sausalito Marin City SD
Board Policy

Bids

BP 33112010

Business and Noninstructional Operations

In order to ensure transparency and the prudent expenditure of public funds, the Board of Trustees shall award
contracts in an objective manner and in accordance with law. District equipment, supplies, and services shall be
purchased using competitive bidding when required by law or if the Board determines that it is in the best interest
of the district to do so.

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)
(cf. 3000 - Concepts and Roles)
(cf. 3300 - Expenditures and Purchases)

When the Board has determined that it is in the best interest of the district, the district may piggyback onto the
contract of another public agency or corporation to lease or purchase equipment or supplies to the extent
authorized by law. (Public Contract Code 20118)

Bid specifications shall be carefully designed and shall describe in detail the quality, delivery, and service
required.

To assist the district in determining whether bidders are responsible, the Board may require prequalification
procedures as allowed by law and specified in administrative regulation.

(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

17595 Purchases through Department of General Services
.......38083  Purchase of perishable foodstuffs and seasonable commadities . _ .

38110-38120 Apparatus and supplies

39802 Transportation services ~

GOVERNMENT CODE

4330-4334 Preference for California-made materials

6252 Definition of public record

53060 Special services and advice

54201-54205 Purchase of supplies and equipment by local agencies

PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE

1102 Emergencies

2001-2001 Responsive bidders

3002 Roofing projects

3400 Bids, specifications by brand or trade name not permitted

3410 United States produce and processed foods

6610 Bid visits

12200 Definitions, recycled goods, materials and supplies

20103.8 Award of contracts

20107 Bidder's security
123 of 154



20111-20118.4 Contracting by school districts

20189 Bidder's security, earthquake relief

22002 Definition of public project

22030-22045 Alternative procedures for public projects (UPCCAA)

22050 Alternative emergency procedures

22152 Recycled product procurement

COURT DECISIONS

Marshall v. Pasadena USD, (2004) 119 Cal.App.4th 1241

Konica Business Machines v. Regents of the University of California, (1988) 206
Cal.App.3d 449

City of Inglewood-Los Angeles County Civic Center Authority v. Superior Court,
(1972) 7 Cal.3d 861

ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS

89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 1 (2006)

Management Resources:

WEB SITES
CSBA: http:// www.csba.org
California Association of School Business Officials: http://www.casbo.org

Policy SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: February 11, 2010 Sausalito, California

124 of 154



Sausalito Marin City SD

Administrative Regulation
Bids

AR 33112010

Business and Noninstructional Operations
Advertised/Competitive Bids

The district shall seek competitive bids through advertisement for contracts involving an expenditure of $15,000
or more for a public project. Public project means construction, reconstruction, erection, alteration, renovation,
improvement, painting, repainting, demolition, and repair work involving a district owned, leased, or operated
facility. (Public Contract Code 20111, 22002)

The district shall also seek competitive bids through advertisement for contracts exceeding the amount specified
in law, and as annually adjusted by the Superintendent of Public Instruction, for any of the following: (Public
Contract Code 20111; Government Code 53060)

1. The purchase of equipment, materials, or supplies to be furnished, sold, or leased to the district

2. Services, not including construction services or special services and advice in accounting, financial, legal,
or administrative matters

2

3. Repairs, including maintenance that is not a public project

Maintenance means routine, recurring, and usual work for preserving, protecting, and keeping a district facility
operating in a safe, efficient, and continually usable condition for the intended purpose for which it was designed,
improved, constructed, altered, or repaired. Maintenance includes, but is not limited to, carpentry, electrical,
plumbing, glazing, and other craft work designed to preserve the facility, as well as repairs, cleaning, and other
operations on machinery and other permanently attached equipment. This definition does not include, among
other types of work, janitorial or custodial services and protection provided by security forces, nor does it include
painting, repainting, or decorating other than touchup. (Public Contract Code 20115)

WU Tl SUVYVOU XD A

. Trnlqpq r\fb(en'xjina ouf‘dr\r Zed b}r } w oenntrante chall ha ]ef tn tha, 1, \vxrqaf voopgpp A_b}f‘/‘]er 517]40 sha}} 5ive Shuh . e e

LEI L, AAPRL AV TSRS e T3 § R0 L iy

securlty as the Board of Trustees requires, or else all blds shall be rejected. (Pubhc Contract Code 20111)

The Board shall secure bids pursuant to Public Contract Code 20111 and 20112 for any transportatlon service
expenditure of more than $10,000 when contemplating that such a contract may be made with a person or
corporation other than a common carrier, municipally owned transit system, or a parent/guardian of students who
are to be transported. The Board may let this contract to other than the lowest bidder. (Education Code 39802)

No work, project, service, or purchase shall be split or separated into smaller work orders or projects for the
purpose of evading the legal requirements of Public Contract Code 20111-20118.4 for contracting after
competitive bidding. (Public Contract Code 20116)

When letting a contract for the procurement and/or maintenance of electronic data processing systems and
supporting software, the Board may contract with any one of the three lowest responsible bidders. (Public
Contract Code 20118.1)

Instructions and Procedures for Advertised Bids

125 of 154



The Superintendent or designee shall call for bids by placing a notice at least once a week for two weeks in a local
newspaper of general circulation published in the district, or if no such newspaper exists, then in some newspaper
of general circulation, circulated in the county, and may post the notice on the district's web site or through an
electronic portal. The notice shall state the work to be done or materials or supplies to be furnished and the time
and place and web site where bids will be opened. The district may accept a bid that has been submitted
electronically or on paper. (Public Contract Code 20112)

The notice shall contain the time, date, and location of any mandatory prebid conference, site visit, or meeting.
The notice shall also detail when and where project documents, including final plan and specifications, are
available. Any such mandatory visit or meeting shall not occur within a minimum of five calendar days of the
publication of the initial notice. (Public Contract Code 6610)

Bid instructions and specifications shall include the following requirements and information:

1. All bidders shall certify the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post-consumer materials in products,
materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold. (Public Contract Code 22152)

2. All bids for construction work shall be presented under sealed cover and shall be accompanied by one of
the following forms of bidder's security: (Public Contract Code 20107, 20111)

a. Cash

b. A cashier's check made payable to the district

c. A certified check made payable to the district

d. A bidder's bond executed by an admitted surety insurer and made payable to the district

The security of unsuccessful bidders shall be returned in a reasonable period of time, but in no event later than 60
days after the bid is awarded. (Public Contract Code 20111)

3. Bids shall not be accepted after the advertised bid opening time, regardless of whether the bids are actually
opened at that time. (Public Contract Code 20112)

oSy When twe or-more-identical lowest or

shall be accepted (Public Contract Code 2

£
4
4]
=
[$%
w
o
8
£
w
£
[¢]
ot
[4]
€©
o
N4
o
[¢]
g
>y

O
st
ps P
e B
~

S. If the district requires that the bid include prices for items that may be added to or deducted from the scope
of work in the contract, the bid solicitation shall specify which one of the following methods will be used to
determine the lowest bid. In the absence of such a specification, only the method provided in item #a below shall
be used. (Public Contract Code 20103.8)

a. The lowest bid shall be the lowest total of the bid prices on the base contract without consideration of the
prices on the additive or deductive items.

b. The lowest bid shall be the lowest total of the bid prices on the base contract and those additive or
deductive items that were specifically identified in the bid solicitation as being used for the purpose of
determining the lowest bid price.

c. The lowest bid shall be the lowest total of the bid prices on the base contract and those additive or
deductive items that, when taken in order from a specifically identified list of those items in the solicitation, and

added to or subtracted from the base contract, are leﬁs2 t6har} c1)r5 unal to a funding amount publicly disclosed by the
o]

red; the Board may determine by lot-which bid .



TETTRRYT 1\4\1\/1 vvu

district before the first bid is opened.

The lowest bid shall be determined in a manner that prevents any information that would identify any of the
bidders or proposed subcontractors or suppliers from being revealed to the district before the ranking of all
bidders from lowest to highest has been determined.

6. Any subsequent change or alteration of a contract shall be governed by the provisions of Public Contract
Code 20118.4.
7. After being opened, all submitted bids become public records pursuant to Government Code 6252 and

shall be made available for review pursuant to law, Board policy, and administrative regulation.
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)
Alternative Bid Procedures for Technological Supplies and Equipment

Upon a finding by the Board that a particular procurement qualifies for the alternative procedure, the district may
acquire computers, software, telecommunications equipment, microwave equipment, and other related electronic
equipment and apparatus through competitive negotiation. This procedure shall not apply to contracts for
construction or for the procurement of any product that is available in substantial quantities to the general public.
(Public Contract Code 20118.2)

The competitive negotiation shall include, but not be limited to, the following requlrements (Public Contract
Code 20118.1)

1. The Superintendent or designee shall prepare a request for proposals (RFP) that shall be submitted to an
adequate number of qualified sources, as determined by the district, to permit reasonable competition consistent
with the nature and requirement of the procurement.

2. Notice of the RFP shall be published at least twice in a newspaper of general circulation, at least 10 days
before the date for receipt of the proposals.

3. The district shall make every effort to generate the maximum feasible number of proposals from qualified
sources and shall make a finding to that effect before proceedmg to nego’uate ifonly a smgle response to the RFP

iq.ran

TR i s . s g s | P £ L a8 2 v o e 1ok D et e s - e i

4. The RFP shall identify all significant evaluation factors, including price, and their relative importance.

5. The district shall provide reasonable procedures for the technical evaluation of the RFPs received, the
identification of qualified sources, and the selection for the award of the contract.

6. An award shall be made to the qualified bidder whose proposal meets the evaluation standards and will be
most advantageous to the district with price and all other factors considered.

7. If an award is not made to the bidder whose proposal contains the lowest price, then the district shall make
a finding setting forth the basis for the award.

8. The district, at its discretion, may reject all proposals and request new RFPs.

9. Provisions in any contract concerning utilization of small business enterprises, that are in accordance with
the RFP, shall not be subject to negotiation with the successful proposer.

127 of 154



Bids Not Required

Without advertising for bids and upon a determination that it is in the best interest of the district, the Board may
authorize, by contract, lease, requisition, or purchase order, another public corporation or agency to lease
data-processing equipment or to purchase materials, supplies, equipment, automotive vehicles, tractors, and other
personal property for the district in the manner that the other public corporation or agency is authorized to make
the leases or purchases from a vendor ("piggyback"). (Public Contract Code 20118)

(cf. 3300 - Expenditures and Purchases)

Alternatively, if there is an existing contract between a public corporation or agency and a vendor for the lease or
purchase of personal property, the district may authorize the lease or purchase of personal property directly from
the vendor by contract, lease, requisition, or purchase order and make payment to the vendor under the same terms
that are available to the public corporation or agency under the contract. (Public Contract Code 20118)

Supplementary textbooks, library books, educational films, audiovisual materials, test materials, workbooks,
instructional computer software packages, or periodicals may be purchased in any amount without taking
estimates or advertising for bids. (Public Contract Code 20118.3)

Perishable commodities, such as foodstuffs, needed in the operations of cafeterias may be purchased through bid
or on the open market. (Education Code 38083)

(cf. 3551 - Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund)

In an emergency when any repairs, alterations, work, or improvement to any school facility is necessary to permit
the continuance of existing school classes or to avoid danger to life or property, the Board may, by unanimous
vote and with the approval of the County Superintendent of Schools, contract for labor and materials or supplies
without advertising for or inviting bids or may authorize the use of day labor or force account for the emergency
purpose. (Public Contract Code 20113)

(cf. 3517 - Facilities Inspection)
(cf. 9323.2 - Actions by the Board)

Bids shall also not be required for day labor under circumstances specified in Public Contract Code 20114. Day
(Dxl]\‘ in
\J. MuaAw

1 l A2 nf rninta al
Jabor shall-includethe use of maintenance personnel-employed-en-a-permanent or temporary-basis.

Contract Code 20114)
Sole Sourcing

Specifications for contracts for construction, alteration, or repair of school facilities may not limit bidding, either
directly or indirectly, to any one specific concern. Specifications designating a specific material, product, thing, or
particular brand name shall follow the description with the words "or equal" so that bidders may furnish any equal
material, product, thing, or service. (Public Contract Code 3400)

However, specifications for such contracts may designate a product by brand or trade name (sole sourcing) if the
Board has made a finding, described in the invitation for bids or RFP, that a particular material, product, thing, or
service is designated for any of the following purposes: (Public Contract Code 3400)

1. To conduct a field test or experiment to determine its suitability for future use
2. To match others in use on a particular public improvement that has been completed or is in the course of
completion

128 of 154



3. To obtain a necessary item that is only available from one source

4. To respond to the Board's declaration of an emergency, as long as the declaration has been approved by
four-fifths of the Board when issuing the invitation for bid or RFP

Prequalification Procedure

For any contract for which bids are legally required, the Board may require that each prospective bidder complete
and submit a standardized questionnaire and financial statement. For this purpose, the Superintendent or
designee shall supply a form which requires a complete statement of the bidder's financial ability and experience
in performing public works. (Public Contract Code 20111.5)

Prospective bidders shall submit the questionnaire and financial statement at least five days before the date fixed
for public opening of sealed bids. The information shall be verified under oath in the manner in which civil law
pleadings are verified. The questionnaires and financial statements shall not be public records and shall not be
open to public inspection. (Public Contract Code 20111.5)

The Superintendent or designee shall establish a uniform system for rating bidders on the basis of completed
questionnaires and financial statements in order to determine the size of contracts on which each bidder is
qualified to bid. Bidders must be deemed prequalified by the district at least one day before the fixed
bid-opening date. (Public Contract Code 20111.5)

The Superintendent or designee shall furnish each qualified bidder with a standardized proposal form. Bids not
presented on the standard form shall be disregarded. (Public Contract Code 20111.5)

The district may establish a procedure for prequalifying bidders on a quarterly basis and may authorize that
prequalification be considered valid for up to one calendar year following the date of the initial prequalification.
(Public Contract Code 20111.5)

Protests by Bidders

A bidder may protest a bid award if he/she believes that the award was inconsistent with Board policy, the bid's

specifications, or was not in compliance with law. A protest must be filed in writing with the Superintendent or
. ;Aacngf\oa IR 1f]f\1ﬂ ‘ﬁxro ‘xxr\v-]ruﬂnc da]r aftor rono nf l\‘Fﬂl‘\t 1Finntinn nftha nantrant a’nrnvr‘ T“\o k«lAAAV o“\nn oﬂbm1f all

T ) S-Qiier AL DRIV L AAVRATU L UL RS VULV

documents supporting or Justlfymg the protest. A bidder's failure to file the protest documents ina timely
manner shall constituie a waiver of his/her right to protest the award of the contract. t

The Superintendent or designee shall review the documents submitted with the bidder's claims and render a
decision in writing within 30 working days. The Superintendent or designee may also convene a meeting with
the bidder in order to attempt to resolve the problem.

The bidder may appeal the Superintendent or designee's decision to the Board. The Superintendent or designee

shall provide reasonable notice to the bidder of the time for Board consideration of the protest. The Board's
decision shall be final.

Regulation = SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
approved: February 11, 2010 Sausalito, California

129 of 154

F LT 33 LR —



Sausalito Marin City School District

Board Policy
Bids

BP 3311 PROPOSED
Business and Noninstructional Operations

The Governing Board is committed to promoting public accountability and ensuring prudent use of public funds.
When leasing, purchasing, or contracting for equipment, materials, supplies, or services for the district, including
when contracting for public projects involving district facilities, the Board shall explore lawful opportunities to
obtain the greatest possible value for its expenditure of public funds. When required by law, or if the Board
determines that it is in the best interest of the district, such contracts shall be made using competitive bidding.

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)

(cf. 3000 - Concepts and Roles)

(cf. 3230 - Federal Grant Funds)

(cf. 3300 - Expenditures and Purchases)

(cf. 3311.1 - Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures)
(cf. 3311.2 - Lease-Leaseback Contracts)

(cf. 3311.3 - Design-Build Contracts)

(cf. 3311.4 - Procurement of Technological Equipment)

No work, project, service, or purchase shall be split or separated into smaller work orders or projects for the
purpose of evading legal requirements for competitive bidding. (Public Contract Code 20116)

The Superintendent or designee shall establish comprehensive bidding procedures for the district in accordance
with law. The procedures shall include a process for advertising bids, instructions and timelines for submitting

and opening bids, and other relevant requirements.

For award of contracts which, by law or Board policy, require prequalification, the procedures shall identify a
uniform system for rating bidders on the basis of a completed questionnaire and financial statements.

(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest)

- When calling for bids, the Superintendent or designee shall énsure that the bid specifications clearly describe in™

. appropriate detail the quality, delivery, and service required and include all information which the district knows,
or has in its possession, that is relevant to the work to be performed or that may impact the cost of performmg the
work.

Except as authorized by law, contracts shall be let to the lowest responsible bidder who shall give such security as
the Board requires, or else all bids shall be rejected. (Public Contract Code 20111)

When the Board has determined that it is in the best interest of the district, the district may piggyback onto the
contract of another public agency or corporation to lease or purchase any personal property to the extent
authorized by law. (Public Contract Code 20118)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

17070.10-17079.30 Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act
17250.10-17250.55 Design-build contracts

17406 Lease-leaseback contracts

130 of 154



17595 Purchase of supplies through Department of General Services
17602 Purchase of surplus property from federal agencies

38083 Purchase of perishable foodstuffs and seasonable commodities
38110-38120 Apparatus and supplies

39802 Transportation services

BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE

7056 General engineering contractor

7057 General building contractor

CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE

446 Verification of pleadings

GOVERNMENT CODE

4217.10-4217.18 Energy conservation contracts

4330-4334 Preference for California-made materials

6252 Definition of public record

53060 Special services and advice

54201-54205 Purchase of supplies and equipment by local agencies
PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE

1102 Emergencies

1103 Definition, responsible bidder

2000-2002 Responsive bidders

3000-3010 Roofing projects

3400 Bids, specifications by brand or trade name not permitted
3410 United States produce and processed foods

4113 Prime contractor; subcontractor

6610 Bid visits

12200 Definitions, recycled goods, materials and supplies
20101-20103.7 Public construction projects, requirements for bidding
20103.8 Award of contracts

20110-20118.4 Local Agency Public Construction Act; school districts
20189 Bidder's security, earthquake relief .
22000-22045 Alternative procedures for public projects (UPCCAA)
22152 Recycled product procurement

COURT DECISIONS

Los Angeles Unified School District v. Great American Insurance Co., (2010) 49 Cal.4th 739

- Great West Contractors Inc. v Irvine Unified School-District; (2010) 187 Cal App.4th 1425 ... .
Marshall v. Pasadena Unified School District, (2004) 119 Cal.App.4th 1241
Konica Business Machines v. flegents of the University of California, (1988) 206 Cal.App.3d 449
City of Inglewood-Los Angeles County Civic Center Authority v. Superior Court, (1972) 7 Cal.3d 861
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS

89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 1 (2006)

Management Resources:

WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California Association of School Business Officials: http://www.casbo.org
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov

California Department of General Services: https://www.dgs.ca.gov

(8/13 5/16) 12/16
131 of 154



Sausalito Marin City School District

Administrative Regulation
Bids

AR 3311 PROPOSED
Business and Noninstructional Operations

Advertised/Competitive Bids
The district shall advertise for any of the following: (Public Contract Code 20111)

1. A public project contract that involves an expenditure of $15,000 or more, including a contract for
construction, reconstruction, erection, alteration, renovation, improvement, painting, repainting, demolition, or
repair work involving a district owned, leased, or operated facility

(cf. 3311.1 - Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures)
(cf. 3311.2 - Lease-Leaseback Contracts)
(cf. 3311.3 - Design-Build Contracts)

2. A contract that exceeds the amount specified in law, as annually adjusted by the Superintendent of Public
Instruction, for any of the following:

a. The purchase of equipment, materials, or supplies to be furnished, sold, or leased to the district

(cf. 3230 - Federal Grant Funds)
(cf. 3311.4 - Procurement of Technological Equipment)

b. Services, not including construction services or spec1al services and adv1ce in accounting, financial, legal,
or administrative matters

c. Repairs that are not a public project, including maintenance

Maintenance means routine, recurring, and usual work for preserving, protecting, and keeping a district facility
operating in a safe, efficient, and continually usable condition for the intended nurpose for which it was designed,
improved, constructed, altered, or repaired. Maintenance includes, buf is not Timited to, ‘éa”rp’éh'fr'y;"el'eétr’iéal'

~ plumbing, glazmg and other craft work designed to preserve the facility, as well as repairs, cleamng, and other
operations on machmery and other permanently attached equipment. Maintenance does not include: pamtlng,
repainting, or decorating other than touchup, or among other types of work, janitorial or custodial services and
protection provided by security forces. (Public Contract Code 20115)

Instructions and Procedures for Advertised Bids

The Superintendent or designee shall call for bids by placing a notice at least once a week for two weeks in a local
newspaper of general circulation published in the district, or if no such newspaper exists, then in some newspaper
of general circulation that is circulated in the county. The Superintendent or designee also may post the notice on
the district's web site or through an electronic portal. The notice shall state the work to be done or materials or
supplies to be furnished and the time and place and web site where bids will be opened. (Public Contract Code
20112)

(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites)

132 of 154



The notice shall contain the time, date, and location of any mandatory prebid conference, site visit, or meeting and
details regarding when and where project documents, including the final plan and specifications, are available.
Any such mandatory visit or meeting shall occur not less than five calendar days after the publication of the initial
notice. (Public Contract Code 6610)

Bid instructions and specifications shall include the following requirements and information:

1. All bidders shall certify in writing the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post-consumer materials in
products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold. (Public Contract Code 22152)

(cf. 3510 - Green School Operations)

2. All bids for construction work shall be presented under sealed cover. The district may accept a bid that has
been submitted electronically or on paper. (Public Contract Code 20111, 20112)

The bid shall be accompanied by a form of bidder's security, including either cash, a cashier's check
payable to the district, a certified check made payable to the district, or a bidder's bond executed by an admitted
surety insurer and made payable to the district. The security of unsuccessful bidders shall be returned in a
reasonable period of time, but in no event later than 60 days after the bid is awarded. (Public Contract Code
20111, 20112)

3. When a standardized proposal form is provided by the district, bids not presented on the standard form
shall be disregarded. (Public Contract Code 20111.5)

4. Bids shall not be accepted after the advertised bid opening time, regardless of whether the bids are actually
opened at that time. (Public Contract Code 20112)

5. When two or more identical lowest or highest bids are received, the Governing Board may determine by
lot which bid shall be accepted. (Public Contract Code 20117) :

6. If the district requires that the bid include prices for items that may be added to or deducted from the scope

of work in the contract, the bid solicitation shall specify which one of the following methods will be used to

determine the lowest bid. In the absence of such a specification, only the method provided in item #6a below
shall be used (Public Contract Code 20103 8)

a. The lowest b1d shall be the lowest total of the b1d prices on the base contract WIthout consuieratlon of the
prices on the additive or deductive items.

b. The lowest bid shall be the lowest total of the bid prices on the base contract and those additive or
deductive items that were spe01ﬁcally identified in the bid solicitation as being used for the purpose of
determining the lowest bid price.

c. The lowest bid shall be the lowest total of the bid prices on the base contract and those additive or
deductive items that, when taken in order from a specifically identified list of those items in the solicitation, and
added to or subtracted from the base contract, are less than or equal to a funding amount publicly disclosed by the
district before the first bid is opened.

The lowest bid shall be determined in a manner that prevents any information that would identify any of the
bidders or proposed subcontractors or suppliers from being revealed to the district before the ranking of all
bidders from lowest to highest has been determined. (Public Contract Code 20103.8)

7. In determining the lowest bid, the district shall consider only responsive bids that conform to bid
133 of 154



specifications and are submitted by responsible bidders who have demonstrated trustworthiness, quality, fitness,
capacity, and experience to satisfactorily perform the public works contract.

a. When a bid is determined to be nonresponsive, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the bidder and
give him/her an opportunity to respond to the determination.

b. When the lowest bidder is determined to be nonresponsible, the Superintendent or designee shall notify
the bidder of his/her right to present evidence of his/her responsibility at a hearing before the Board.

8. After being opened, all submitted bids become public records pursuant to Government Code 6252 and
shall be made available for public review pursuant to law, Board policy, and administrative regulation.

(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)
(cf. 3580 - District Records)

Prequalification Procedure

When required by law or the Board, the Superintendent or designee shall establish a uniform system for rating
bidders on the basis of completed questionnaires and financial statements in order to determine the size of
contracts on which each bidder is qualified to bid. For this purpose, the Superintendent or designee shall furnish
prospective bidders a standardized prequalification questionnaire and financial record which, when completed,
shall indicate a bidder's statement of financial ability and experience in performing public works. The bidder's
information shall be verified under oath in the manner in which civil law pleadings are verified. The
questionnaires and financial statements shall not be public records and shall not be open to public inspection.
(Code of Civil Procedure 446; Public Contract Code 20111.5, 20111.6)

When any public project involves an expenditure of $1,000,000 or more and is funded or reimbursed wholly or
partly by the School Facilities Program funds or other future state school bond, the district shall prequalify
prospective bidders either quarterly or annually. The prequalification shall be valid for one year and the following
requirements shall apply: (Public Contract Code 20111.6)

1. Prospective bidders, including, but not limited to, prime, general engineering, and general building
contractors and electrical, mechanical, and plumbing subcontractors, as defined in Public Contract Code 4113 or

Business and Professions Code 7056 or 7057, as applicable, shall submit a standardized questionnaire and
financial statement 10 or more buginess days, as determined by the district, before the date fixed for the puhlic

e 3388353 SILIRE S Pl 54

opening of sealed bids.

2. Prospective bidders shall be prequalified by the district five or more business days, as determined by the
district, before the date fixed for the public opening of sealed bids.

If the project includes electrical, mechanical, or plumbing components that will be performed by
electrical, mechanical, or plumbing contractors, the Superintendent or designee shall make available to all bidders
a list of prequalified general contractors and electrical, mechanical, and plumbing subcontractors five or more
business days, as determined by the district, before the date fixed for the public opening of sealed bids.

For all other contracts requiring competitive bidding, the district may establish a procedure for prequalifying
bidders on a quarterly basis and may authorize that prequalification be considered valid for up to one calendar
year following the date of the initial prequalification. Prospective bidders for such contracts shall submit the
questionnaire and financial statement at least five days before the date fixed for public opening of sealed bids and
shall be prequalified by the district at least one day before the fixed bid-opening date. (Public Contract Code
20111.5)

134 of 154



Award of Contract
The district shall award each contract to the lowest responsible bidder, except in the following circumstances:

1. When the contract is for the procurement and/or maintenance of electronic data processing systems and
supporting software, in which case the Board may contract with any one of the three lowest responsible bidders
(Public Contract Code 20118.1)

2. When the contract is for any transportation service which involves an expenditure of more than $10,000
and which will be made with any person or corporation other than a common carrier, municipally owned transit
system, or a parent/guardian of a student who is to be transported, in which case the Board may contract with other
than the lowest bidder (Education Code 39802)

3. When the contract is one for which the Board has established goals and requirements relating to
participation of disabled veteran or small business enterprises in accordance with Public Contract Code
2000-2002, in which case the Board may contract with the lowest responsible bidder who submits a responsive
bid and complies or makes a good faith effort to comply with the goals and requirements (Public Contract Code
2000-2002)

4. When procuring a lease-leaseback contract, in which case the Board shall award the contract based on
objective criteria for determining the best combination of price and qualifications in accordance with Education
Code 17400 and 17406

(cf. 3311.2 - Lease-Leaseback Contracts)

5. When procuring a design-build contract for a public works project in excess of $1,000,000 in accordance
with Education Code 17250.20, in which case the Board may award the contract to either the low bid or the best
value to the district, taking into consideration, at a minimum, price, technical design and construction expertise,
and life-cycle costs (Education Code 17250.20, 17250.25)

(cf. 3311.3 - Design-Build Contracts)

Protests by Bidders

- A bidder may. hrohaqf a hid award if he/she believes that the award is not in compliance with law, Roard nnhr'v or. ... .

LSS LS A ¥ 1 siplis

the bid specification. A protest must be filed in writing with the Superintendent or designee w1th1n ﬁve workmg
days after receipt of notification of the contract award and shail include zil documents supporting or justifying the
protest. A bidder's failure to file the protest documents in a timely manner shall constitute a waiver of his/her right
to protest the award of the contract.

The Superintendent or designee shall review the documents submitted with the bidder's claims and render a
decision in writing within 30 working days. The Superintendent or designee may also convene a meeting with
the bidder in order to attempt to resolve the problem.

The bidder may appeal the Superintendent or designee's decision to the Board. The Superintendent or designee
shall provide notice to the bidder of the date and time for Board consideration of the protest at least three busmess
days before the Board meeting. The Board's decision shall be final.

Limitation on Use of Sole Sourcing

In any contract for the construction, alteration, or repair of school facilities, the Superintendent or designee shall

ensure that the bid specification: (Public Contract Code 3002, 3400)
A 135 of 154



1. Does not directly or indirectly limit bidding to any one specific concern

2. Does not call for a designated material, product, thing, or service by a specific brand or trade name, unless
the specification is followed by the words "or equal," so that bidders may furnish any equal material, product,
thing, or service

In any such case, the bid specification shall provide a time period, before and/or after the award of the
contract, for the contractor to submit data substantiating the request for substituting the designated material,
product, thing, or service. If no such time period is specified, the contractor may submit the data within 35 days
after the award of the contract.

When the bid is for a roof project, a material, product, thing, or service is considered "equal" to that
designated if it is equal in quality, durability, design, and appearance; will perform the intended function equally
well; and conforms substantially to the detailed requirements in the bid specification. '

However, the Superintendent or designee may designate a specific material, product, thing, or service by brand or
trade name (sole sourcing) if the Board has made a finding, described in the invitation for bids or request for
proposals (RFP), that a particular material, product, thing, or service is designated for any of the following
purposes: (Public Contract Code 3400)

1. To conduct a field test or experiment to determine its suitability for future use

2. To match others in use on a particular public improvement that has been completed or is in the course of
completion

3. To obtain a necessary item that is only available from one source

4. To respond to the Boérd's declaration of an emergency, as long as the declaration has been approved by

four-fifths of the Board when issuing the invitation for bid or RFP

(cf. 9323.2 - Actions by the Board)

Bids Not Required

Without advertising for bids and upon a determination that it is in the best interest of the district, the Board may
authorize another public corporation or agency, by contract, lease, requisition, or purchase order, io lease
data-processing equipment or to purchase materials, supplies, equipment, automotive vehicles, tractors, and other
personal property for the district in the manner that the other public corporation or agency is authorized to make
the leases or purchases from a vendor ("piggyback™"). Alternatively, if the public corporation or agency has an
existing contract with a vendor for the lease or purchase of personal property, the district may authorize the lease

or purchase of personal property directly from the vendor and make payments under the same terms that are
available to the public corporation or agency under the contract. (Public Contract Code 20118)

(cf. 3300 - Expenditures and Purchases)
(cf. 3512 - Equipment)

Without advertising for bids, the Board may enter into an energy service contract and any related facility ground
lease, when it determines that the terms of the contract and lease are in the best interest of the district and meet the
cost effectiveness requirements specified in Government Code 4217.12. The Board's determination shall be made
at a regularly scheduled public hearing of which notice is given to the public at least two weeks in advance and

shall be based on cost and savings comparison findings specified in Government Code 4217.12. (Government
136 of 154



Code 4217.12)

(cf. 3511 - Energy and Water Management)
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)

Supplementary textbooks, library books, educational films, audioviéual materials, test materials, workbooks,
instructional computer software packages, or periodicals may be purchased in any amount without taking
estimates or advertising for bids. (Public Contract Code 20118.3)

(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials)
(cf. 6161.11 - Supplementary Instructional Materials)
(cf. 6163.1 - Library Media Centers)

Perishable foodstuffs and seasonal commodities needed in the operations of cafeterias may be purchased through
bid or on the open market. (Education Code 38083)

(cf. 3551 - Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund)

Bids shall not be required for day labor under circumstances specified in Public Contract Code 20114. Day labor
shall include the use of maintenance personnel employed on a permanent or temporary basis. (Public Contract

Code 20114) :

In an emergency when any repairs, alterations, work, or improvement to any school facility is necessary to permit
the continuance of existing school classes or to avoid danger to life or property, the Board may, by unanimous
vote and with the approval of the County Superintendent of Schools, contract for labor and materials or supplies
without advertising for or inviting bids or may authorize the use of day labor or force account for the emergency
purpose. (Public Contract Code 1102, 20113)

(cf. 3517 - Facilities Inspection)

The district may purchase any surplus property from the federal government or any of its agencies in any quantity
needed for the operation of its schools without taking estimates or advertising for bids. (Education Code 17602)

015 5/16) 12/16 |

137 of 154



Sausalito Marin City SD
Board Policy

Contracts

BP 33122010

Business and Noninstructional Operations

Whenever state law invests the Board of Trustees with the power to enter into contracts on behalf of the district,
the Board may, by a majority vote, delegate this power to the Superintendent or designee. To be valid or to
constitute an enforceable obligation against the district, all contracts must be approved and/or ratified by the
Board. (Education Code 17604)

(cf. 3300 - Expenditures and Purchases)
(cf. 3314 - Payment for Goods and Services)
(cf. 3400 - Management of District Assets/Accounts)

All contracts between the district and outside agencies shall conform to standards required by law and shall be
prepared under the direction of the Superintendent or designee.

(cf. 2121- Superintendent's Contract)
(cf. 4312.1 - Contracts)
(cf. 9124 - Attorney)

When required by law, contracts and subcontracts made by the district for public works or for goods or services
shall contain a nondiscrimination clause prohibiting discrimination by contractors or subcontractors. The
nondiscrimination clause shall contain a provision requiring contractors and subcontractors to give written notice
of their obligations to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other agreement.
(Government Code 12990)

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)

The district shall not enter into a contract that prohibits a school employee from disparaging the goods or services
of the contracting party. (Education Code 35182.5)

LA S 5 ——y § P e i e i i Y T R R P B o i e g 2 » s R s e e e

Contracts for Non-Nutritious Fooaé or Béverages

Effective July 1, 2007, the district or a district school shall not enter into or renew a contract for the sale of foods
that do not meet the nutritional standards specified in Education Code 49431 or 49431.2 unless the contract
specifies that such sales will occur later than one-half hour after the end of the school day and/or off school
premises. (Education Code 49431, 49431.2)

(cf. 3554 - Other Food Sales)

In accordance with the dates specified in law, the district or a district school shall not enter into or renew a contract
for the sale of beverages that do not meet the nutritional standards in Education Code 49431.5 unless the contract
specifies that such sales will occur later than one-half hour after the end of the school day and/or off school
premises.

Before the district or a district school enters into or renews a contract that grants exclusive or nonexclusive
advertising or sale of carbonated beverages, non-nutritious beverages, or non-nutritious food as defined in law,

the Board shall ensure that the district has sufficient inéterrfxagll é:‘(l)ntrols in place to protect the integrity of public
o



Y, IR — ) | § AL ORE W

funds and to ensure that funds raised as a result of the contract benefit public education. (Education Code
35182.5)

The Superintendent or designee shall develop the district's internal control procedures to protect the integrity of
public funds. Such internal controls may include but not be limited to the following:

1. Control procedures that produce accurate and reliable financial statements and, at the same time, safeguard the
assets, financial resources, and integrity of every employee responsible for handling money or property. Control
systems shall be systematically evaluated and revised to keep pace with the changing responsibilities of
management.

(cf. 3100 - Budget)
(cf. 3400 - Management of District Assets/Accounts)
(cf. 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability)

2. Procedures to ensure that district personnel do not handle cash or product at the school site. The contract shall
specify that the vendor stock the machines and shall provide cash accounting, along with a check, for district
proceeds directly to the control office.

In addition, the contract may specify whether contractor logos are permitted on district facilities, including but not
limited to scoreboards and other equipment. If such logos are permitted, the contractor shall present the
equipment to the Board as a gift. The gift may be accepted by the Board in accordance with Board policy and
administrative regulation.

(cf. 3290 - Gifts, Grants and Bequest)
To ensure that funds raised by the contract benefit district schools and students:

1. The Superintendent or designee may involve parents/guardians, students, staff, and interested community
members to make recommendations regarding the contract, including recommendations as to how the funds will
be spent in a manner that benefits public education.

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)

) Prior to_ratifyino the contract, the Roard shall designat

Roper B2 A0

e.the snecific programs. and actiyities that will be ...

SA8.% 241232, gRALL

funded by the proceeds of the contract and consider how the contract reflects the district's vision and goals.

(cf. 0000 - Vision)
(cf. 0100 - Philosophy)
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District)

3. The contract shall specify that the contractor report, on a quarterly basis, to the Superintendent or designee
the number of food items or beverages sold within the district and the amount of money raised by the sales. The

Superintendent or designee shall report these amounts to the Board on a regular basis.

4. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the contract does not limit the ability of student and
parent organizations to plan and operate fund-raising activities.

(cf. 1230 - School-Connected Organizations)
(cf. 1321 - Solicitation of Funds from and by Students)

The contract shall be entered into on a competitive %cbb&si,f &tlrsuant to Public Contract Code 20111 or through



the issuance of a Request for Proposal. (Education Code 35182.5)
(cf. 3311 - Bids)

The Board shall not enter into or renew a contract that grants exclusive or nonexclusive advertising or sale of
carbonated beverages, non-nutritious beverages, or non-nutritious food until parents/guardians, students, and
members of the public have had an opportunity to comment on the contract at a public hearing held during a
regularly scheduled board meeting or as otherwise authorized by Education Code 35182.5. The Board shall
clearly, and in a manner recognizable to the general public, identify in the agenda the contract to be discussed at
the meeting. (Education Code 35182.5)

(cf. 9322 - Agendas/Meeting Materials)
(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct)

The public hearing shall include but not be limited to a discussion of the nutritional value of food and beverages
sold within the district; the availability of fresh fruit, vegetables, and grains in school meals and snacks, including
locally grown and organic produce; the amount of fat, sugar, and additives in the food and beverages discussed;

and barriers to student participation in school breakfast and lunch programs. (Education Code 35182.5)

(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness)

The contract shall be accessible to the public and may not include a confidentiality clause that would prevent the
district or a district school from making any part of the contract public. (Education Code 35182.5)

(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)
Contracts for Electronic Products or Services

The Board shall not enter into a contract for electronic products or services that requires the dissemination of
advertising to students, unless the Board: (Education Code 35182.5)

1. Enters into the contract at a noticed, public hearing of the Board.

(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)

2. Makes a finding that the electronic product or service is or would be an integral component of the
education of students.

(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan)

3. Makes a finding that the district cannot afford to provide the electronic product or service unless it
contracts to permit dissemination of advertising to students.

(cf. 1325 - Advertising and Promotion)

4. As part of the district's normal, ongoing communication to parents/guardians, provides written notice that
the advertising will be used in the classroom or other learning center.

5. Offers parents/guardians the opportunity to request in writing that their child not be exposed to the
program that contains the advertising. Any request shall be honored for the school year in which it is submitted,
or longer if specified, but may be withdrawn by the parents/guardians at any time.

140 of 154



Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

200-262.4 Prohibition of discrimination on the basis of sex
14505 Provisions required in contracts for audits

17595-17606 Contracts

35182.5 Contract prohibitions

45103.5 Contracts for management consulting service related to food service
49431-49431.5 Nutritional standards

CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE

685.010 Rate of interest

GOVERNMENT CODE

12990 Nondiscrimination and compliance employment programs
53260 Contract provision re maximum cash settlement

53262 Ratification of contracts with administrative officers
LABOR CODE

1775 Penalties for violations

1810-1813 Working hours

PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE

4100-4114 Subletting and subcontracting fair practices

7104 Contracts for excavations; discovery of hazardous waste
7106 Noncollusion affidavit

20111 Contracts over $50,000; contracts for construction; award to lowest responsible bidder
20104.50 Construction Progress Payments

22300 Performance retentions

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

1681-1688 Title IX, discrimination

Management Resources:

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Student Wellness: A Healthy Food and Physical Activity Policy Resource Guide, rev. 2005
WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

- .California Association of School Business Officials:  httn://www.cashoorg. .

P2 AP Bo iy LOLS) ax - 2t & Spa oS S rad e o e g e S5 o

Policy SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: February 11, 2010 Sausalito, California

141 of 154



Sausalito Marin City School District

Board Policy

Contracts

BP 3312 PROPOSED
Business and Neoninstructional Operations

The Governing Board recognizes its responsibility to enter into contracts on behalf of the district for the
acquisition of equipment, supplies, services, and other resources necessary for the achievement of district goals.
In exercising this authority to enter into a contract, the Board shall ensure that the district's interest is protected
and that the terms of the contract conform to applicable legal standards, including the bidding requirements in
Public Contract Code 20111.

(cf. 2121- Superintendent's Contract)

(cf. 3311 - Bids)

(cf. 3311.1 - Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures)
(cf. 3311.2 - Lease-Leaseback Contracts)

(cf. 3311.3 - Design-Build Contracts)

(cf. 3311.4 - Procurement of Technological Equipment)

(cf. 4312.1 - Contracts)

(cf. 9124 - Attorney)

The Board may, by a majority vote, delegate to the Superintendent or designee the authority to enter into contracts
on behalf of the district. To be valid or to constitute an enforceable obligation against the district, all such
contracts must be approved and/or ratified by the Board.

(cf. 3300 - Expenditures and Purchases)
(cf. 3314 - Payment for Goods and Services)

Every contract entered into on behalf of the district shall be made available for public inspection, except when the
law prohibits disclosure. No contract shall prohibit a district employee from disparaging the goods or services of
any contracting party.

(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)

o SN, S T ) A s S8 K RS 0 e s e ey, B XY K WMt S ey T e 8 e e o0 S Y W R T B S5 4 ¢ s DA 2 S K

Contracts for Non-nutritious Foods or Beverages

The district shall not enter into or renew a contract for the sale of foods or beverages that do not meet applicable
nutritional standards specified in Education Code 49431-49431.7, 5 CCR 15500-15501 or 15575-15578, or 7
CFR 210.11 or 220.12, unless the contract specifies that such sale will occur off campus or outside the time
restriction specified in the applicable law.

(cf. 3554 - Other Food Sales)
(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance)

Before the district enters into or renews a contract that grants exclusive or nonexclusive advertising or sale of
carbonated beverages, non-nutritious beverages, or non-nutritious foods as defined in law, the Board shall ensure
that the district has sufficient internal controls in place to protect the integrity of public funds and to ensure that
funds raised as a result of the contract benefit public education. (Education Code 35182.5)

The Superintendent or designee shall develop the district's internal control procedures to protect the integrity of
142 of 154



public funds. Such internal controls may include, but not be limited to, the following:

1. Procedures that produce accurate and reliable financial statements and, at the same time, safeguard the assets,
financial resources, and integrity of every employee responsible for handling money or property. Control systems
shall be systematically evaluated and revised to keep pace with the changing responsibilities of management.

(cf. 3100 - Budget)
(cf. 3400 - Management of District Assets/Accounts)
(cf. 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability)

2. Procedures to ensure that district personnel do not handle cash or product at the school site. The contract shall
specify that the vendor stock the machines and shall provide cash accounting, along with a check, for district
proceeds directly to the control office.

To ensure that funds raised by the contract benefit district schools and students:

1. The Superintendent or designee may invite parents/guardians, students, staff, and interested community
members to make recommendations regarding the contract, including recommendations as to how the funds will
be spent in a manner that benefits public education.

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)

2. Prior to ratifying the contract, the Board shall designate the specific programs and activities that will be
funded by the proceeds of the contract and consider how the contract reflects the district's vision and goals.

(cf. 0000 - Vision)
(cf. 0100 - Philosophy)
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District)

3. The contract shall specify that the contractor report, on a quarterly basis, to the Superintendent or designee
the number of food items or beverages sold within the district and the amount of money raised by the sales. The
Superintendent or designee shall report these amounts to the Board on a regular basis.

4. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the contract does not limit the ability of student and
parent organizatiens to-plan-and operate fundraising eetivities.rmwre oo o :

(cf. 1230 - School-Connected Organizations)
(cf. 1321 - Solicitation of Funds from and by Students)

Any contract for the sale or advertisement of non-nutritious foods or carbonated or non-nutritious beverages shall
be entered into on a competitive bid basis pursuant to Public Contract Code 20111 or through the issuance of a
Request for Proposal. (Education Code 35182.5)

OPTION 1: The Board shall hold an annual public hearing to review and discuss all existing and potential
contracts for the sale of foods and beverages on campus, including those sold as full meals or through competitive
sales, fundraisers, or vending machines. The Board shall hold a public hearing for any contract not discussed at
the annual public hearing. (Education Code 35182.5)

OPTION 2: PROPOSED
The Board shall not enter into or renew any contract that grants exclusive or nonexclusive advertising or sale of
carbonated beverages, non-nutritious beverages, or non-nutritious foods until parents/guardians, students, and

members of the public have had an opportunity to c$%m%n% gﬁ the contract at a public hearing held during a
o



regularly scheduled Board meeting. The Board shall clearly, and in a manner recognizable to the general public,
identify in the agenda the contract to be discussed at the meeting. (Education Code 35182.5.)

(cf. 9322 - Agendas/Meeting Materials)
(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct)

The public hearing shall include, but not be limited to, a discussion of the nutritional value of foods and beverages
sold within the district; the availability of fresh fruit, vegetables, and grains in school meals and snacks, including
locally grown and organic produce; the amount of fat, sugar, and additives in the foods and beverages discussed;
and barriers to student participation in school breakfast and lunch programs. (Education Code 35182.5)

(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness)

The contract shall be accessible to the public and may not include a confidentiality clause that would prevent the
district or a district school from making any part of the contract public. (Education Code 35182.5)

Contracts for Electronic Products or Services

The Board shall not enter into a contract for electronic products or services that requires the dissemination of
advertising to students, unless the Board: (Education Code 35182.5)

1. Enters into the contract at a noticed, public hearing of the Board.
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)

2. Makes a finding that the electronic product or service is or would be an integral component of the
education of students.

(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan)

3. Makes a finding that the district cannot afford to provide the electronic product or service unless it
contracts to permit dissemination of advertising to students.

(cf 1325 - Advertlsmg and Promotlon)
4. As part of the dlstrlct's normal ongoing communication to parents/ guardlans prov1des wrltten notice that
the advertising will be used in the classroom or other learning center.

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

5. Offers parents/guardians the opportunity to request in writing that their child not be exposed to the
program that contains the advertising. A request shall be honored for the school year in which it is submitted, or
longer if specified, but may be withdrawn by the parents/guardians at any time.

Contracts for Digital Storage and Maintenance of Student Records

The district may enter into or renew a contract with a third party for the purpose of providing services, including
cloud-based services, for the digital storage, management, and retrieval of student records and/or to provide
digital educational software that authorizes a third-party provider of digital educational software to access, store,
and use student records. For these purposes, student records include any information maintained by the district
that is directly related to a student and any information acquired directly from the student through the use of
instructional software or applications assigned to thae ﬁ”g‘?’%tg}ﬁ‘/ a teacher or other district employee, and do not



include de-identified information. (Education Code 49073.1)

(cf. 5125 - Student Records)

Any such contract shall contain all of the following: (Education Code 49073.1)

1. A statement that student records continue to be the property of and under the control of the district

2. If applicable, a description of the means by which students may retain possession and control of their own
student-generated content, as defined in Education Code 49073.1, including options by which a student may
transfer student-generated content to a personal account

3. A prohibition against the third party using any information in the student record for any purpose other than
those required or specifically permitted by the contract

4. A description of the procedures by which a parent/guardian or a student age 18 years or older may review
personally identifiable information in the student's records and correct erroneous information

5. A description of the actions the third party will take, including the designation and training of responsible
individuals, to ensure the security and confidentiality of student records

6. A description of the procedures for notifying the affected parent/guardian, or the affected student if age 18
years or older, in the event of an unauthorized disclosure of the student's records

7. A certification that a student's records shall not be retained or available to the third party upon completion of the
terms of the contract and a description of how that certification will be enforced, except that these requirements
shall not apply to student-generated content if the student chooses to establish or maintain an account with the
third party for the purpose of storing that content

8. A description of how the district and the third party will jointly ensure compliance with the federal Family
Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 USC 1232¢g

9. A prohibition against the third party using personally identifiable information in student records to engage in
targeted advertising

Contracts for Personal Services

In order to achieve cost savings, the district may enter into or renew a contract for any personal service that is
currently or customarily performed by classified employees, if the contract does not displace school district
employees and meets other conditions specified in Education Code 45103.1. To enter into or renew such a

contract, the Board shall ensure that the district meets the numerous conditions specified in Education Code
45103.1.

(cf. 4200 - Classified Personnel)

In addition, the district may enter into or renew any contract for personal service without meeting the conditions
described above, if any of the following conditions exists: (Education Code 45103.1)

1. The contract is for new district functions and the Legislature has specifically mandated or authorized the
performance of the work by independent contractors.

2. The services contracted are not available within thesdisftr%(étzfcannot be performed satisfactorily by district
o



employees, or are of such a highly specialized or technical nature that the necessary expert knowledge,
experience, and ability are not available through the district.

3. The services are incidental to a contract for the purchase or lease of real or personal property, including, but not
be limited to, agreements to service or maintain office equipment or computers that are leased or rented.

4. The district's policy, administrative, or legal goals and purposes cannot be accomplished through the utilization
of persons selected pursuant to the regular or ordinary district hiring process.

5. The nature of the work is such that the criteria for emergency appointments, as defined in Education Code
45103.1, apply.

6. The contractor will provide equipment, materials, facilities, or support services that could not feasibly be
provided by the district in the location where the services are to be performed.

7. The services are of such an urgent, temporary, or occasional nature that the delay that would result from using
the district's regular or ordinary hiring process would frustrate their very purpose.

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

200-262.4 Prohibition of discrimination on the basis of sex

14505 Provisions required in contracts for audits

17250.10-17250.55 Design-build contracts

17595-17606 Contracts

35182.5 Contract prohibitions

45103.1 Personal services contracts

45103.5 Contracts for management consulting service related to food service
49073.1 Contract requirements for digital storage, maintenance and retrieval of student records
49431-49431.7 Nutritional standards

CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE

685.010 Rate of interest

GOVERNMENT CODE

12990 Nondiscrimination and compliance employment programs

e :Q”An M antrant

53260-Centract-provisionre-meximum cach settlement
53262 Ratification of contracts with admlmstratlve officers
LABOR CODE :
1775 Penalties for violations
1810-1813 Working hours
PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE
4100-4114 Subletting and subcontracting fair practices
7104 Contracts for excavations; discovery of hazardous waste
7106 Noncollusion affidavit
20111 Contracts over $50,000; contracts for construction; award to lowest responsible bidder
20104.50 Construction Progress Payments
22300 Performance retentions
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
15500 Food sales by student organizations
15501 Sales in high schools and junior high schools
15575-15578 Food and beverage requirements outside of the federal school meal programs
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act
146 of 154



1681-1688 Title IX, discrimination

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7
210.1-210.31 National School Lunch Program
220.1-220.21 National School Breakfast Program

Management Resources:

CSBA PUBLICATIONS :
Student Wellness: A Healthy Food and Physical Activity Policy Resource Guide, rev. 2005
WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California Association of School Business Officials: http://www.casbo.org

(11/03 11/05) 4/15

147 of 154



Sausalito Marin City School District

Board Policy

Debt Issuance And Management

BP 3470 PROPOSED
Business and Noninstructional Operations

The Governing Board is committed to long-term capital and financial planning and recognizes that the issuance of
debt is a key source for funding the improvement and maintenance of school facilities and managing cash flow.
Any debt issued by the district shall be consistent with law and this policy.

(cf. 3000 - Concepts and Roles)

(cf. 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability)
(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan)

(cf. 7210 - Facilities Financing)

The district shall not enter into indebtedness or liability that in any year exceeds the income and revenue provided
for such year, unless two-thirds of the voters approve the obligation or one of the exceptions specified in law
applies. (California Constitution, Article 16, Section 18)

When the Board determines that it is in the best interest of the district, the Board may issue debt or order an
election to issue debt. The Superintendent or designee shall make recommendations to the Board regarding
appropriate financing methods for capital projects or other projects that are authorized purposes for debt issuance.
When approved by the Board and/or the voters as applicable, the Superintendent or designee shall administer and
coordinate the district's debt issuance program and activities, including the timing of issuance, sizing of issuance,
method of sale, structuring of the issue, and marketing strategies.

The Superintendent or designee shall retain a financial advisor, municipal advisor, investment advisor, and other
financial services professionals as needed to assist with the structuring of the debt issuance and to provide general
advice on the district's debt management program, financing options, investments, and compliance with legal
requirements. Contracts for services provided by such advisors may be for a single transaction or for multiple
transactions, consistent with the contracting requirements in Education Code 17596. In the event that the district
issues debt through a negotiated sale, underwriters may be selected for multiple transactions if multiple issuances

-are planned for the same project. In addition, the district shall select a legal team on an as- needed basis to assmt o
“with debt issuances or special projects. -

TEIN %R pwa

(cf. 3312 - Contracts)
(cf. 3600 - Consultants)
(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest)

Goals

The district's debt issuance activities and procedures shall be aligned with the district's vision and goals for
providing adequate facilities and programs that support student learning and well-being. When issuing debt, the
district shall ensure that it:

1. Maintains accountability for the fiscal health of the district, including prudent management and
transparency of the district's financing programs

2. Attains the best possible credit rating for each debt issue in order to reduce interest costs, within the
context of preserving financial flexibility and meeting capital funding requirements

148 of 154



3. Takes all practical precautions and proactive measures to avoid any financial decision that will negatively
impact current credit ratings on existing or future debt issues

4. Maintains effective communication with rating agencies and, as appropriate, credit enhancers such as
bond insurers or other providers of credit or liquidity instruments in order to enhance the creditworthiness,
liquidity, or marketability of the debt

5. Monitors the district's statutory debt limit in relation to assessed valuation within the district and the tax
burden needed to meet long-term debt service requirements

6. When determining the timing of debt issuance, considers market conditions, cash flows associated with
repayment, and the district's ability to expend the obtained funds in a timely, efficient, and economical manner
consistent with federal tax laws

7. Determines the amortization (maturity) schedule which will fit best within the overall debt structure of the
district at the time the new debt is issued

8. Considers the useful lives of assets funded by the debt issue, as well as repair and replacement costs of
those assets to be incurred in the future

9. Preserves the availability of the district's general fund for operating purposes and other purposes that
cannot be funded by the issuance of voter-approved debt

10.  Meets the ongoing obligations and accountability requirements associated with the issuance and
management of debt under state and federal tax and securities laws

(cf. 0000 - Vision)
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District)
(cf. 7000 - Concepts and Roles)

Authorized Purposes for the Issuance of Debt

The district may issue debt for any of the following purposes:

£ 13 d
Sl Te pay-for the cost of capita! imprevements; including acqulr‘ng, ccnstruct.rg, reconstructing;

rehablhtatlng, replacing, improving, extending, enlargmg, and/or equipping district facilities
2. To refund existing debt
3. To provide for cash flow needs

(cf. 3100 - Budget)
(cf. 3110 - Transfer of Funds)

Pursuant to Government Code 53854, general operating costs, including, but not limited to, items normally
funded in the district's annual operating budget, shall not be financed from debt payable later than 15 months from
the date of issuance. The district may deem it desirable to finance cash flow requirements under certain conditions
so that available resources better match expenditures within a given fiscal year. To satisfy both state constitutional
and statutory constraints, such cash flow borrowing shall be payable from taxes, income, revenue, cash receipts,
and other moneys attributable to the fiscal year in which the debt is issued.

Authorized Types of Debt
149 of 154



The Superintendent or designee shall recommend to the Board potential ﬁnancing‘ method(s) that result in the
highest benefit to the district, with the cost of staff and consultants considered. Potential financing sources may
include:

1. Short-Term Debt

a. Short-term debt, such as tax and revenue anticipation notes (TRANSs), when necessary to allow the district
to meet its cash flow requirements (Government Code 53850-53858)

b. Bond anticipation notes (BANS) to provide interim financing for capital bond projects that will ultimately
be paid from general obligation bonds (Education Code 15150)

c. Grant anticipation notes (GANs) to provide interim financing pending the receipt of grants and/or loans
from the state or federal government that have been appropriated and committed to the district (Government Code
53859-53859.08)

2. Long-Term Debt

a. General obligation bonds for projects approved by voters (California Constitution, Article 13A, Section 1;
Education Code 15100-15262, 15264-15276; Government Code 53506-53509.5)

(cf. 7214 - General Obligation Bonds)

b. Special tax bonds issued pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 (Government
Code 53311-53368.3)

(cf. 7212 - Mello-Roos Districts)
3. Lease financing, including certificates of participation (COPs)

a. Lease financing to fund the highest priority capital equipment purchases when pay-as-you-go financing is
not feasible (Education Code 17450-17453.1)

R SO 1ease: Financina ta fiind fans ]1+1on el octs ‘vv’hexl Jﬂnvo 10, yhan{:ﬁr“onf h ata.ahtain. xrnfar nﬂnrnnrxl ¥t 1n T,

vt LITECUIEN Lk b 20U AU LD AV SEAWI SVABIGRESSPCIPE W F LOPEw] SRR S5 S AWAR AV ARG D15 s Sl A @ F A Wi I’f’ Y2 N e

instances where obtammg voter approval is either not feasible or unavailable (Education Code 17400-17429)

4. Special financing programs or structures offered by the federal or state government, such as Qualified
Zone Academy Bonds or other tax credit obligations or obligations that provide subsidized interest payments,
when the use of such programs or structures is determined to result in sufficiently lower financing costs compared
to traditional tax-exempt bonds and/or COPs

5. Temporary borrowing from other sources such as the County Treasurer

COPs, TRANS, revenue bonds, or any other non-voter approved debt instrument shall not be issued by the district
in any fiscal year in which the district has a qualified or negative certification, unless the County Superintendent
of Schools determines, pursuant to criteria established by the Superintendent of Public Instruction, that the
district's repayment of that indebtedness is probable. (Education Code 42133)

Relationship of Debt to District Facilities Program and Budget

Decisions regarding the issuance of debt for the pu%oose of %rdlfancmg capital improvement shall be aligned with
of



current needs for acquisition, development, and/or improvement of district property and facilities as identified in
the district's facilities master plan or other applicable needs assessment, the projected costs of those needs,
schedules for the projects, and the expected resources.

The cost of debt issued for major capital repairs or replacements shall be evaluated against the potential cost of
delaying such repairs and/or replacing such facilities.

When considering a debt issuance, the Board and the Superintendent or designee shall evaluate both the
short-term and long-term implications of the debt issuance and additional operating costs associated with the new
projects involved. Such evaluation may include, but is not limited to, the projected ratio of annual debt service to
the tax burden on the district's taxpayers and the ratio of annual debt service secured by the general fund to general
fund expenditures.

The district may enter into credit enhancement agreements such as municipal bond insurance, surety bonds, letters
of credit, and lines of credit with commercial banks, municipal bond insurance companies, or other financial
entities when their use is judged to lower borrowing costs, eliminate restrictive covenants, or have a net economic
benefit to the financing. ‘

Structure of Debt Issues
The district shall consider the overall impact of the current and future debt burden of the financing when
determining the duration of the debt issue.

The district shall design the financing schedule and repayment of debt so as to take best advantage of market
conditions, ensure cost effectiveness, provide flexibility, and, as practical, recapture or maximize its debt capacity
for future use. Principal amortization will be structured to meet debt repayment, tax rate, and flexibility goals.

For new money debt issuances for capital improvements, the district shall size the debt issuance with the aim of
funding capital projects as deemed appropriate by the Board, as long as the issuance is consistent with the overall
financing plan, does not exceed the amount authorized by voters, and, unless a waiver is sought and received from
the state, will not cause the district to exceed the limitation on debt issuances specified in the California
Constitution or Education Code 15106.

To the extent practicable, the district shall also consider credit issues, market factors, and tax law when sizing the

district's bond issuance. The sizing of refunding bonds shall be determined by the amount of money that will be
veqdlr€d t(‘l over +he mrinainal Af n/ NNy Infovoaf AN, 0N nA. anx. rado Lption prem;n Frar, f]*\n An]«f fn lf\o 1»\01/" nn

VA TPLLasvapla vy LA A e I R S R = P A 2

the call date and to cover appropriate financing costs.

Any general obligation bond issued by the district shall mature within 40 years of the issuance date or as
otherwise required by law. (California Constitution, Article 16, Section 18; Government Code 53508.6)

The final maturity of equipment or real property lease obligations will be limited to the useful life of the assets to
be financed but, with respect to a lease purchase of equipment, no longer than a period of 10 years. (Education
Code 17452)

Method of Sale

For the sale of any district-issued debt, the Superintendent or designee shall recommend the method of sale with
the potential to achieve the lowest financing cost and/or to generate other benefits to the district. Potential
methods of sale include:

1. A competitive bidding process through which the award is based on, among other factors, the lowest

offered true interest cost
151 of 154

LAXEGLRL AN xTlaN (AR V¥ B



2. Negotiated sale, subject to approval by the district to ensure that interest costs are in accordance with
comparable market interest rates

3. Private placement sale, when the financing can or must be structured for a single or limited number of
purchasers or where the terms of the private placement are more beneficial to the district than either a negotiated
or competitive sale

Investment of Proceeds

The district shall actively manage the proceeds of debt issued for public purposes in a manner that is consistent
with state law governing the investment of public funds and with the permitted securities covenants of related
financing documents executed by the district. Where applicable, the district's official investment policy and legal
documents for a particular debt issuance shall govern specific methods of investment of bond-related proceeds.
Preservation of principal shall be the primary goal of any investment strategy, followed by the availability of
funds and then by return on investment.

(cf. 3430 - Investing)

With regard to general obligation bonds, the district shall invest new money bond proceeds in the county treasury
pool as required by law. (Education Code 15146)

The management of public funds shall enable the district to respond to changes in markets or changes in payment
or construction schedules so as to ensure liquidity and minimize risk.

Refunding/Restructuring

The district may consider refunding or restructuring outstanding debt if it will be financially advantageous or
beneficial for debt repayment and/or structuring flexibility. When doing so, the district shall consider the
maximization of the district's expected net savings over the life of the debt issuance and, when using a general
obligation bond to refund an existing bond, shall ensure that the final maturity of the refunding bond is no longer
than the final maturity of the existing bond.

Internal Controls

‘T]';a anqrin{enden‘l‘- Or- deslgne\l Sl}ull estak]snk intarnal DO frl\] r\vnngduvas ft\ angure, txxub th ﬁvnnnnr‘a Ofan}r debt L e v gy

Lo Uhiemoa’ BV VLU L Y S YA i

issuance are directed to the intended use. Such procedures shall assist the district in maintaining the effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, properly expending funds, reliably reporting debt incurred by the district and the use
of the proceeds, complying with all laws and regulations, preventing fraud, and avoiding conflict of interest.

(cf. 3314 - Payments for Goods and Services)
(cf. 3400 - Management of District Assets/Accounts)

The district shall be vigilant in using bond proceeds in accordance with the stated purposes at the time such debt
was incurred as defined in the text of the voter-approved bond measure. (Government Code 53410)

When feasible, the district shall issue debt with a defined revenue source in order to preserve the use of the general
fund for general operating purposes.

The district shall annually conduct a due diligence review to ensure its compliance with all ongoing obligations
applicable to issuers of debt. Such a review may be conducted by general legal counsel or bond counsel. Any
district personnel involved in conducting such reviews shall receive periodic training regarding their

ibilities.
responsibilities 152 of 154



B g e e ¢

In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district completes, as applicable, all performance
and financial audits that may be required for any debt issued by the district, including disclosure requirements
applicable to a particular transaction.

Records/Reports

At least 30 days prior to the sale of any debt issue, the Superintendent or designee shall submit a report of the
proposed issuance to the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission (CDIAC). Such report shall
include a self-certification that the district has adopted a policy concerning the use of debt that complies with law
and that the contemplated debt issuance is consistent with that policy. (Government Code 8855)

On or before January 31 of each year, the Superintendent or designee shall submit a report to the CDIAC
regarding the debt authorized, the debt outstanding, and the use of proceeds of the issued debt for the period from
July 1 to June 30. (Government Code 8855)

The Superintendent or designee shall provide initial and any annual or ongoing disclosures required by 17 CFR
240.10b-5 and 240.15¢2-12 to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, investors, and other persons or
entities entitled to disclosure, and shall ensure that the district's disclosure filings are updated as needed.

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain transaction records of decisions made in connection with each debt
issuance, including the selection of members of the financing team, the structuring of the financing, selection of
credit enhancement products and providers, and selection of investment products. Each transaction file shall
include the official transcript for the financing, interest rates and cost of issuance on the day when the debt was
sold ("final number runs"), and a post-pricing summary of the debt issue. In addition, documentation evidencing
the expenditure of proceeds, the use of debt-financed property by public and private entities, all sources of
payment or security for the debt, and investment of proceeds shall be kept for as long as the debt is outstanding,
plus the period ending three years after the financial payment date of the debt or the final payment date of any
obligations or series of bonds issued to refund directly or indirectly all of any portion of the debt, whichever is
later.

The Superintendent or designee shall annually report to the Board regarding debts issued by the district, including
information on actual and projected tax rates, an analysis of bonding capacity, ratings on the district's bonds,
market update and refunding opportunities, new development for California bond financings, and the district's
compliance with post-issuance requirements.

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION €ODE

5300-5441 Conduct of elections

15100-15262 Bonds for school districts and community college districts

15264-15276 Strict accountability in local school construction bonds

15278-15288 Citizen's oversight committees

15300-15425 School Facilities Improvement Districts

17150 Public disclosure of non-voter-approved debt

17400-17429 Leasing of district property

17450-17453.1 Leasing of equipment

17456 Sale or lease of district property

17596 Duration of contracts

42130-42134 Financial reports and certifications

ELECTIONS CODE

1000 Established election dates

GOVERNMENT CODE

8855 California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission
153 of 154



- 1.8 GOVERNMENT ACCOUNTABILITY. OFFICE PUBLICATIONS. -

53311-53368.3 Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act
53410-53411 Bond reporting

53506-53509.5 General obligation bonds
53550-53569 Refunding bonds of local agencies
53580-53595.55 Bonds

53850-53858 Tax and revenue anticipation notes
53859-53859.08 Grant anticipation notes
CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION

Article 13A, Section 1 Tax limitation

Article 16, Section 18 Debt limit

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 15

780-4 Registration of municipal securities dealers
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 26

54E Qualified Zone Academy Bonds

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 17
240.10b-5 Prohibition against fraud or deceit
240.15¢c2-12 Municipal securities disclosure
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 26
1.6001-1 Records

Management Resources:

CALIFORNIA DEBT AND INVESTMENT ADVISORY COMMISSION PUBLICATIONS
California Debt Issuance Primer

GOVERNMENT FINANCE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION PUBLICATIONS

An Elected Official's Guide to Debt Issuance, 2nd Ed., 2016

Understanding Your Continuing Disclosure Responsibilities, Best Practice, September 2015
Investment of Bond Proceeds, Best Practice, September 2014

Selecting and Managing Municipal Advisors, Best Practice, February 2014

Debt Management Policy, Best Practice, October 2012

Analyzing and Issuing Refunding Bonds, Best Practice, February 2011

INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE PUBLICATIONS

Tax Exempt Bond FAQs Regarding Record Retention Requirements

Tax-Exempt Governmental Bonds, Publication 4079, rev. 2016

TANUYIVELLY

Internal Control System Checklist

WEB SITES

California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission: http://www.treasurer.ca.gov/cdiac
Government Finance Officers Association: http://www.gfoa.org

Internal Revenue Service: http://www.irs.gov

Municipal Security Rulemaking Board, Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA):
http://www.emma.msrb.org

U.S. Government Accountability Office: http://www.gao.gov

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission: http://www.sec.gov

12/16

154 of 154

S e . i 8 A & B % w0 S g 8 g



	Agenda
	Correspondence
	Corrective Actions
	Document Tracking Services
	Warrants
	Minutes
	Fund 40 Revision
	SDTA Proposal
	Policies



